bl

Brighton & Hove
City Council

Licensing Panel (Licensing Act 2003

Functions)
Date: 30 July 2021
Time: 10.00am
Venue Virtual Meeting - MS Teams

Members: Councillors: Deane, O’Quinn & Simson

Contact: Thomas Bald
Democratic Services Officer
thomas.bald@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date.

Electronic agendas can also be accessed through our meetings app available through
ModernGov: iOS/Windows/Android

This agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper


http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en_GB
https://www.microsoft.com/en-gb/p/modgov/9nblggh0c7s7#activetab=pivot:overviewtab
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en_GB

AGENDA

PART ONE Page
1 TO APPOINT A CHAIR FOR THE MEETING

WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS
2 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS

(a) Declaration of Substitutes: Where Councillors are unable to attend a
meeting, a substitute Member from the Licensing Committee may
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting.

(b) Declarations of Interest:

(a) Disclosable pecuniary interests;

(b) Any other interests required to be registered under the local
code;

(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision on the
matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting you or a
partner more than a majority of other people or businesses in
the ward/s affected by the decision.

In each case, you need to declare

(i) the item on the agenda the interest relates to;

(i) the nature of the interest; and

(i) whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other
interest.

If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee lawyer

or administrator preferably before the meeting.

(c) Exclusion of Press and Public: To consider whether, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration.
NOTE: Any item appearing in Part Two of the Agenda states in its
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the
public.

A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls.
3 PASCALS BISTRO BAR LICENSING PANEL (LICENSING ACT 2003 5-220

FUNCTIONS)

Contact Officer: Corinne Hardcastle Tel: 0127329
Ward Affected: Brunswick & Adelaide



The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public. Provision is also made on
the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be raised
can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings.

The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12
noon on the fourth working day before the meeting.

Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on
disc, or translated into any other language as requested.

Infra-red hearing aids are available for use during the meeting. If you require any further
information or assistance, please contact the receptionist on arrival.

FURTHER INFORMATION

For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Thomas Bald, (01273
291065, email penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk

WEBCASTING NOTICE

This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s website. At the
start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed. You
should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act 1998.
Data collected during this web cast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s
published policy.

Therefore, by entering the meeting room and using the seats in the chamber you are deemed
to be consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings for the purpose of web casting and/or Member training. If members of the public
do not wish to have their image captured, they should sit in the public gallery area.

ACCESS NOTICE

The Public Gallery is situated on the first floor of the Town Hall and is limited in size but does
have 2 spaces designated for wheelchair users. The lift cannot be used in an emergency.
Evac Chairs are available for self-transfer and you are requested to inform Reception prior to
going up to the Public Gallery. For your own safety please do not go beyond the Ground
Floor if you are unable to use the stairs.

Please inform staff on Reception of this affects you so that you can be directed to the Council
Chamber where you can watch the meeting or if you need to take part in the proceedings e.qg.
because you have submitted a public question.

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council staff.
It is vital that you follow their instructions:

e You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts;

e Do not stop to collect personal belongings;

e Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move

some distance away and await further instructions; and
e Do not re-enter the building until told that it is safe to do so.

Date of Publication - Thursday, 22 July 2021



mailto:democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk




Licensing Panel Agenda Item

(Licensing Act 2003 Functions)

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Review of a Premises Licence under the Licensing
Act 2003
Premises: Pascals Bistro Bar
6 Queens Place
Hove
BN3 2LT
Premises Licence Holder: Said Pascal Madjoudj
Date of Meeting: 30 July 2021
Report of: Executive Director for Housing, Neighbourhoods &

Communities

Contact Officer: Name: Jo Osborne Tel: (01273) 292100

Email: Jo.Osborne@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: Brunswick And Adelaide

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

To review a Premises Licence for Pascals Bistro Bar under the Licensing Act
2003.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Panel review the licence granted to the premises known as Pascals
Bistro Bar under the Licensing Act 2003.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION & CONSULTATION

Existing licence attached at Appendix A.

Brighton & Hove City Council is both the relevant Licensing Authority and a
Responsible Authority in respect of any premises and may in its capacity apply
under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for a review of any premises licence
in respect of the premises.

An application was received by the Licensing Authority on 11 June 2021 from
Sussex Police, to review the licence granted to the premises known as Pascals

Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place, Hove, BN3 2LT. The premises falls within the
Special Stress Area.

The grounds for the review relate to the following Licensing objective:

e The Prevention of Crime and Disorder



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Full details of the grounds for the review and supplementary information are in
Appendix B.

At this hearing the licensing authority must:

e Consider the application made in accordance with Section 51

e Consider any relevant representations

e Take such steps (if any) as are considered appropriate for the promotion of
the Licensing objectives. These steps are

to modify the conditions of the licence

to exclude a licensable activity

to remove the designated premises supervisor from the licence
to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months, or
to revoke the licence.

O O O O O

And for this purpose, the conditions of a premises licence are modified if any of
them are altered, omitted or any new condition is added. It may provide that the
modification or exclusion have effect for a specified period not exceeding 3
months. The determination, if not completed at the hearing, shall be within 5
working days of the hearing. Such determinations do not have effect until after
the appeal period or, if an appeal is lodged, until after the appeal is disposed of.

Representations received

Details of the representations made are notified to applicants on receipt by the
Licensing Authority using a pro-forma. A summary appears below:

Five representations have been received from local residents, Ward Councillors,
The Licensing Authority and The Food, Health and Safety Team on the grounds
of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and Prevention of Public
Nuisance, supporting the application submitted by Sussex Police seeking the
revocation of the licence.

Full details of the supporting representations from local residents and Ward
Councillors are attached at Appendix C.

Full details of the supporting representation from The Licensing Authority can be
found at Appendix D.

Full details of the supporting representation from The Food, Health and Safety
Team can be found at Appendix E.

A response from the legal representative of the Premises Licence Holder Mr Said
Pascal Madjoudj was received by the Licensing Authority on 9™ July 2021 in
response to Sussex Police application to revoke Premises Licence. This
response included photographs on refurbished toilets and an updated Staff
Handbook for the premises. Further correspondence with photographs of the
premises and a letter from the premise’s landlord were received on 20" July
2021. This information can be found at Appendix F.



3.12 A map detailing the location of the premises is attached at Appendix G.

4. COMMENTARY ON THE LICENSING POLICY

4.1 The following extracts from Brighton & Hove City Council Statement of Licensing
Policy are considered relevant to this application and are numbered as they
appear in the policy:

1. Introduction

11

This Statement of Licensing Policy has been prepared in accordance with the provisions
of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) and having regard to Guidance issued by the Home
Office under Section 182 of the act. This policy takes effect from 4 February 2021. The
licensing authority is Brighton & Hove City Council. The purpose of this statement is to
promote the licensing objectives and set out a general approach to making licensing
decisions. The discretion of the licensing authority in relation to applications under the
act is only engaged if ‘relevant representations’ are made by other persons or
responsible authorities. This policy will inform the approach to be taken when deciding
applications and imposing conditions when relevant representations are received. It is
also intended as a guide for applicants as to what to include in their operating
schedules, always recognising that if no representations are received, the application
must be granted. The licensing authority must carry out its functions with a view to
promoting the licensing objectives and this policy is framed around those objectives.
Each application will be given individual consideration on its merit. The scope of this
policy covers the following:

« Retail sales of alcohol;

« The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club, or to the order of, a member of
the club; The provision of regulated entertainment;

« The provision of late night refreshment.

1.1The licensing objectives are:-

(@) Prevention of crime and disorder;
(b) Public safety;

(©) Prevention of public nuisance;
(d) Protection of children from harm.

1.3 Scope

1.3.1 Licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, by
qualifying clubs and at temporary events. Any conditions attached to various
authorisations will be focused on matters which are within the control of individual
licensees and others with relevant authorisations; i.e. the premises and its vicinity. Each
application will be given individual consideration on its merit. Nothing in this policy shall
undermine the right of any individual to apply under the terms of the act for a variety of

3



permissions and to have any such application considered on its individual merits.
Similarly, nothing in this policy shall override the right of any person to make
representations on an application or seek a review of a licence or certificate where
provision has been made for them to do so in the act.

3.3 The Matrix Approach
The Licensing Authority will support:

3.3.1 Diversity of premises: ensures that there is a mix of the different types of licensed
premises and attracts a more diverse range of customers from different age groups,
different communities and with different attitudes to alcohol consumption. It gives
potential for positively changing the ambience of the city or an area of it. This will have a
positive effect in reducing people’s fear of crime and in increasing the number of
evening visitors to the city centre. The Community Safety Strategy recognises that too
many single uses in a confined area and patrons turning out onto the streets at the
same time may create opportunities for violent crime and public disorder and therefore
supports mixed use venues encouraging a wider age balance.

3.3.2 A “matrix” approach to licensing decisions has been adopted and is set out below.
It provides a framework of what the licensing authority would like to see within its area
and gives an indication of the likelihood of success or otherwise to investor and
businesses making applications.

Matrix approach for licensing decisions in a Statement of Licensing Policy (times relates
to licensable activities)

Matrix approach for licensing decisions in a Statement of Licensing Policy

Cumulative Special Stress
Impact Area Area Other Areas
Restaurant Yes (midnight) Yes (midnight) Yes (midnight)
Café Yes (10 pm) Yes (10 pm) Yes (10 pm)
Late Night No Yes (midnight) Yes (midnight)
Takeaways
Night Club No No No
Pub No Yes (11pm) Yes (midnight)

Non-alcohol lead
(e.g. Theatre)

Yes (favourable)

Yes (favourable)

Yes (favourable)

Off-licence

No

No

Yes (Up to 11pm
but if in densely
residential area

may be earlier —

see note 7 below)




Members Club Yes (<100 Yes (<100 Yes
(club premises capacity) capacity)
certificate) (11pm) (11pm)

Notes on matrix

Subiject to the following notes, the policy, as represented in the matrix, will be strictly
adhered to:

1.
2.

Each application will be considered on individual merit

Applications within the CIZ are subject to the special policy on cumulative impact
at para 3.1, and those within the special stress area to the special stress policy
considerations at para 3.2.

Departure from the matrix policy is expected only in exceptional circumstances
Exceptional circumstances will not include quality of management or size of
venue except where explicitly stated in policy matrix.

Exceptional circumstances may include: consultation with and meeting
requirements of responsible authorities, an appropriate corporate social
responsibility policy, community contribution to offset impact (such as financial
contribution to infrastructure), community support, alcohol sale ancillary to
business activity (demonstrable to responsible authorities and licensing authority,
for instance by licence condition allowing authorised officers access to sales
accounts).

The following licensing activities are encouraged and valued by the licensing
authority: outdoor regulated entertainment, community based street parties,
members clubs, traditional pubs outside the city centre and non-alcohol led
licensable activities, particularly within city centre.

Other Areas; consideration will be given to the nature of the area and location in
relation to any application. In a residential area for example the concerns of local
residents will be relevant when considering applications for off-licences, pubs or
cafes, especially if there is evidence of anti-social behaviour, street drinking or
underage drinking. Earlier closing times may be appropriate. Regard will be had
to the Public Health Framework for assessing alcohol licensing on our website
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/licensingact.

In an area where there are already several existing off-licences or where the
premises is situated within a parade with another off licence and where
representations are received about negative cumulative impact on the licensing
objectives of a further premises, the application may be refused on these
grounds or restrictions placed on the terminal hour to reflect opening hours of
other shops.

Outdoor events will be supported where arranged through the council’s event
planning process. Generally, regulated entertainment in the open air including
tents and marquees should have a maximum closure hour of 2300. Earlier hours
may be imposed in sensitive open spaces or near residential areas. The
licensing authority will have egard to Noise Council guidance.

10.Non-alcohol led category does not include “alcohol in shared workplaces”. It is

recommended that sale of alcohol in shared workspaces should have a terminal
hour of no later than10pm. For further advice and guidance on “alcohol in shared
workplaces” please see paragraph 3.3.4-3.3.6.



4 Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The following details and measures are intended to address the need for the prevention
of crime and disorder which may be associated with licensed premises and certificated
club premises. Conditions attached to licences and certificates will, as far as possible,
reflect local crime reduction strategies.

4.1.1 The licensing authority acknowledges that training and good management play a
key part in preventing alcohol and drug related crime. The authority expects that all
licensees of on-licensed premises attend training programmes which will raise their
awareness of the issues relating to drugs and violence in licensed premises, and that
suitable training be extended to all bar staff and door supervisors so that drug dealers
and users will be deterred from using licensed premises for illegal purposes and that
incidents of violence in licensed premises will be reduced. Licensees are also
encouraged to attend training programmes to help identify children at risk and issues of
basic child protection. It is the duty of the designated premises supervisor (DPS) to train
staff on induction concerning conditions on their premises licence.

4.1.2 It is expected that the DPS will spend a significant amount of time on the
premises. When not on the premises it will be essential that the DPS is contactable,
particularly should problems arise with the premises and that staff are authorised by the
DPS.

4.1.3 The location of violent attacks, anti-social behaviour and hate crime or related
incidents may be used to justify closing times.

4.1.4 Measures put in place should support the intentions of Operation Marble (police
operational order), which aims to prevent incidents of crime and disorder within the night
time economy, at weekends. Operation Marble operates with a view to minimising the
risk to the public of being a victim of public place violent crime; to reduce incidents of
violent crime and public disorder within the city centre; to deal positively with offences
and offenders; to secure and preserve evidence which will assist in the prosecution of
offenders and to support the night time economy and the responsibly run businesses
within it.

4.2 Sussex Police

4.2.1 Sussex Police have a specific Operation relating to the night time economy called
Operation Marble (detailed in 3.4.1) and work closely with partners to ensure a safe and
vibrant city centre. There continues to be an increasing demand for resources further
into the early hours of the morning with the highest concentration of crimes occurring
between 21:00 and 06:00 on a Friday into a Saturday and between 20:00 and 06:00 on
a Saturday night into a Sunday. The data set used shows that up to 80% of arrests
made in the timeframe 20:00 — 06:00 on these days were affected by alcohol. For full
details of these statistics see the Cumulative Impact Assessment at Appendix E of our
Statement of Licensing Policy.

10



4.2.2 The dealing and use of drugs remains an issue across the city and Sussex Police
welcome proactive policies from licensed premises. A drug safe and seizure recording
initiative is in place of which further details can be obtained by contacting Brighton &
Hove Police Licensing (brighton.licensing@sussex.pnn.police.uk) .This initiative
encourages licensed premises with Door Supervisors to search and seize drugs from
persons attempting to enter their premises and ensures that once drugs are removed
from persons, they can be safely collected and destroyed by Sussex Police.

4.2.3 Dispersal from the city centre during the late evening and early morning remains a
policing challenge. Over recent years, there has been a proliferation of off-licences and
late night refreshment venues along the city’s arterial routes. This has led to incident
‘hot spots’ where patrons from the night time economy continue to interact, albeit away
from any safety measures afforded by on-licences. As such, Sussex Police support the
Council’'s Special Policy in offering guidance to both applicants and the Licensing
Committee in relation to off-licences and late night refreshment licences.

4.2.7 Policing the night time economy continues to provide a challenge and in the
climate of limited resources and newly emerging problems, Sussex Police support
maintaining the council’s Special Policy which defines cumulative impact and special
stress and will continue to take enforcement action where appropriate if the actions of a
Premises Licence Holder, Designated Premises Supervisor, Door Supervisors or Staff
have fallen below the high standard expected across the city. Sussex Police also
recognise and support businesses which are aware of their social responsibilities and
as such, actively contribute towards keeping Brighton & Hove a safe and enjoyable city.

4.3 Care, control and supervision of premises

4.3.1 The Licensing authority supports the Business Crime Reduction Partnership and
other approved schemes. Where appropriate, premises licence holders should be
members of the BCRP for the deterrence to violent crime that such membership
provides. The BCRP NightSafe radio scheme is normally expected as an operational
requirement for city centre bars, clubs and pubs and is an example of good practice in
achieving the aim of reducing crime and disorder and improving public safety. Well
managed pub-watch schemes provide information exchange between the premises
licence holders and responsible authorities that reduce and deter violent crime and
disorder. The council will support a responsible licensing scheme.

4.3.2 The effective management and supervision of a venue is a key factor in reducing
crime and disorder, both within it and outside. The police will consider the applicants,
objecting to the application where appropriate. The police may suggest crime prevention
measures in relation to, for example, the internal layout of the premises, closed-circuit
television, help points, lighting and security staff. The police may ask for conditions
which support such measures to be imposed when licensing applications are granted,
eg type of licence, capacity, operating hours restrictions.

4.3.3 Following the grant of a licence, the management and supervision of the
premises, in so far as it might impact on crime and disorder, will continue to be
monitored. Particular attention will be paid to any licensed premises where there is
evidence of criminal activity or any association with racist or homophobic crime. The
licensing authority will keep itself well briefed on the nature, location and type of

11



premises where alcohol related violence and disorder are occurring so it can take full
account of the facts and avoid exacerbating problems as required by the Community
Safety Strategy. Where licensed premises are found to cause nuisance or be
associated with disorder or unreasonable disturbance, the review process may be
invoked, and powers of revocation or the imposition of conditions may be considered.
Conditions may include use of closed-circuit television, licensed door supervisors and
earlier closing times. Such action to restrict the operation may be taken for trial periods
to allow businesses an opportunity to remedy existing disorder, nuisance or
disturbance.

4.3.4 This policy recognises the use of registered Door Supervisors All Door
Supervisors will be licensed by the Security Industry Authority. Mobile security units and
similar systems are in use by some premises operators as a means of providing
security cover at very short notice at premises which may not normally require a
permanent security presence. This policy endorses the use of units following such
guidance and standards in appropriate circumstances.

4.3.5 The development of codes of practice and general operating standards for
security companies is encouraged for local businesses; premises operators are urged to
ensure that security services, when engaged, are provided by suitably qualified
businesses operating to recognised standards and who should be working towards SIA
accreditation.

4.3.6 Enforcement will be achieved by the enforcement policy appended (Appendix B of
SoLP) and at pages 14-23 of this report.

5 Public Safety

The following details and measures are intended to address the need for the protection
of public safety which may be associated with licensed premises and certificated club
premises.

5.1.1 The permitted capacity is a limit on the number of persons who may be on the
premises at any time, following a recommendation by the relevant fire and rescue
authority under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. For any application for
a premises licence or club premises certificate for premises without an existing
permitted capacity where the applicant wishes to take advantage of the special
provisions set out in section 177 of the 2003 Act, the applicant should conduct their own
risk assessment as to the appropriate capacity of the premises. They should send their
recommendation to the fire and rescue authority which will consider it and decide what
the “permitted capacity” of those premises should be.

5.1.2 Normally in the city centre, pubs and clubs will be expected to operate using
polycarbonate or toughened/shatterproof glass.

5.1.3 Conditions may be imposed in accordance with operating schedules to protect
public safety including where justified:

a. provision of closed-circuit television and panic buttons.

b. use of shatterproof drinking vessels; bottles requiring use of toughened glass or
plastic should normally be required unless applicants can show exceptional
reasons.

12



c. use of door supervisors, licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

d. requirement of a minimum of a licensed door supervisor for every 100 customers
in nightclubs and large city centre pubs or as indicated by risk assessment.

e. occupant capacity conditions will be applied where appropriate.

f. the provision of designated and suitably trained first aiders.

6 Prevention of Public Nuisance

The following details and measures are intended to address the need for the prevention
of public nuisance which may be associated with licensed premises and certificated club
premises:

6.1.1 In determining applications for new and varied licences, regard will be had to the
location of premises, the type and construction of the building and the likelihood of
nuisance and disturbance to the amenity of nearby residents by reason of noise from
within the premises, as a result of people entering or leaving the premises or from
individuals or groups of customers gathered outside (eg in order to smoke).

6.1.2 Applications for new licences or for the extension in size of licensed premises
should not normally be granted if the premises will use amplified or live music and
operate within or abutting premises containing residential accommodation except that
occupied by staff of the licensed premises. A condition may be imposed on new
licences that entertainment noise shall be inaudible in any residence. Noise emanating
from within licensed premises should not normally be audible outside.

6.1.5 In determining applications for new licences or extensions in hours or terminal
hours of licensed premises, regard will be had to late night public transport availability
and location of taxi ranks to aid dispersal of customers.

6.1.6 Reasonable controls are available to all premises operators to minimise the
impact of noise from customers outside. The council’s Environmental Health
Department has issued guidance on a number of steps that can be taken in this respect
which are endorsed by this policy (see 6.2 below).

6.2 Smoking Advice
6.2.1 Premises licence holders will be expected to:

Develop a management plan on how to manage smoking on their premises and ensure
that all staff are aware of the contents of this plan, and that it is effectively implemented.
Noise from people smoking and talking can be intermittent, vary in character and
volume and be intrusive. An effective smoking management plan will help prevent
neighbours being disturbed.

e Comply with any planning conditions restricting the use of outdoor areas.

e Ensure that any structures used by smokers comply with the design criteria
detailed in the Heath Act 2006 and that any structures, awnings, retractable
canopies, etc have the relevant planning permission.

e Ensure any new lighting to outdoor areas must be designed so as not to cause a
light nuisance to neighbours and again have the relevant planning permission
and building control consent.

13



Ensure that the conditions on the premises licence are complied with. There may
be conditions restricting the hours of use of gardens and outdoor areas. Having
reviewed the contents of the premises licence it may be necessary to request a
variation of your licence.

Licence tables and chairs on the Public Highway under the provisions of the
Highways Act 1980. These licences may have conditions restricting the times
that the area can be used.

Ensure drinks, glasses and bottles are not taken onto the highway unless there is
a tables and chairs licence permitting use. A system should be adopted to
prevent theft and ‘spiking’ of drinks, and reminding customers not to leave
unattended items.

Discourage smokers remaining in gardens and outdoor areas and determine
terminal hours.

Discourage smokers remaining outside by removing/disabling tables and chairs
or prohibiting their use after a certain time. Lights and heaters will also be turned
off.

Introduce a system that after a certain time the number of smokers outside are
restricted to a maximum number. Staff will be needed to manage this restriction.
Employ staff and/or SIA registered door supervisors to manage doors and control
customers and smokers entering and leaving the premises. Staff positioned on
the doors can help to encourage customers not to cause a noise problem. It may
be that staff are required to manage doors after a certain time, particularly during
the hours when neighbouring residents are trying to sleep.

Ensure door supervisors maintain order outside venues and protect customer
safety. BCRP supports the use of Night Safe. Radio net and other pager systems
and pub watch schemes can be used to provide for rapid police response and
alert other venues where customers and staff are endangered.

Position signs to remind customers that the premises is in an area where people
live. It is not always obvious in busy commercial streets with flats above. By
changing the design and wording of signs customers do not forget. Signs can be
located in and outside the premises and on tables.

Use CCTV to manage outside areas.

6.2.2 Licensed premises should normally display prominent, legible signs at exits
reminding customers to leave in a quiet, peaceful, orderly manner.

8 Integration of Strategies

8.1.1 The licensing authority shall secure the proper integration of this policy with local
crime prevention, planning policy, transport, tourism and cultural strategies by:-

Liaising and consulting with the Sussex Police, Community Safety Forum,
Sustainability Commission representatives and following the guidance in
community safety and crime and disorder strategy

Liaising and consulting with Public and Alcohol Programme Board

Liaising and consulting with the East Sussex Fire & Rescue Service

Liaising and consulting with the Local Strategic Partnership, Safety Advisory
Group (Emergency Planning) and Equalities and Social Justice Consultation
Forum

Liaising and consulting with the Planning authority

Liaising and consulting with the Highways authority

10

14



e Liaising and consulting with local business and business associations. Having
regard to any future documents issued relating to the Private Security Industry
Act 2001, for example liaison or information sharing protocols

« Liaising and consulting with the Trading Standards Team, for example with
regard to test purchasing codes of practice

8.1.2 In line with statutory requirements and the council’s Inclusion Policy, the Licensing
Authority shall have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, and to
promote equality of opportunity and positive relations between persons of diverse
backgrounds, for example communities of interest such as: lesbian, gay, bisexual and
transgender people; disabled people; racial and ethnic groups; religious and faith
groups.

8.1.3 This policy supports the aims of the tourism strategy, recognising the benefits for
the tourism economy of creating a safer and more attractive city centre and improving
competitiveness with other European cities. The Licensing Committee should receive
any reports relevant to the needs of the local tourist economy and the cultural strategy
for the area to ensure that it considers these matters.

8.1.4 The Licensing Committee should receive relevant information relating to the
employment situation of the area and the need for new investment and employment
where appropriate.

8.1.5 Specific conditions may be attached to premises licences to reflect local crime
prevention strategies. Such conditions may include the use of closed circuit television
cameras, use of the NightSafe radio system or accredited scheme, the provision and
use of shatterproof drinking receptacles, drugs and weapons search policy, the use of
registered door supervisors, specialised lighting requirements, hours of opening.
Certificates issued to club premises shall reflect local crime prevention strategies and
may include any or all of the requirements listed above.

8.1.6 The licensing authority will have regard to the need to disperse people quickly and
safely from the city centre to avoid concentrations which may produce disorder and
disturbance.

8.2 Other regulatory regimes

8.2.1 This policy avoids duplication with other regulatory regimes wherever possible.
The following notes are made with regard to specific regimes:

Health and Safety

Certain premises will be the subject of health and safety enforcement by the local
authority or the Health and Safety Executive (HSE). If other existing law already places
certain statutory responsibilities on an employer or operator of premises, for example
the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999, it will not be
necessary to impose the same or similar duties on the premises licence holder or club.
However, existing duties will not always adequately cover specific issues that arise on
the premises in connection with, for example, certain types of entertainment, and where
additional and supplementary measures are necessary to promote the licensing
objectives, necessary, proportionate conditions will need to be attached to a licence.

11

15



Fire Safety

Premises and their operators will be regulated by general duties under current fire
safety regimes and the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 rather than
licensing provisions.

Noise

Statutory and public nuisances are dealt with by the local authority’s Environmental
Health department under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, Noise Act 1996 and
associated legislation. Noise from commercial premises may often fall under review
powers set out in licensing provisions and closure powers in anti-social behaviour
provisions.

Equality Act 2010

The Public Sector Equality Duty obliges public authorities to have due regard to the
need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between persons who share protected
characteristics and persons who do not share it. The local authority’s equality and
inclusion policy produced under these obligations shall include reference to this
statement of licensing policy.

Community relations

Integration of corporate strategies with licensing policy will include the Inclusive Council
Policy which recognises the council’s role, as a community leader, to promote
community cohesion and good relations between diverse communities. Measures to
address prevention of crime and disorder recognise the need to improve wellbeing and
safety of all the communities in the city. Licensing policy supports the Crime and
Disorder Reduction Partnership’s crime reduction strategy. In particular it seeks to
confront and reduce racist, homophobic, transphobic and religiously motivated crimes,
incidents and anti-social behaviour.

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014

Contains powers to close premises that are causing nuisance or disorder. These
powers can be exercised by the council or Police and they replace the closure powers
in the Licensing Act 2003. The Act also contains powers to issue Community Protection
Notices in respect of persons or businesses committing anti-social behaviour which is
spoiling a community’s quality of life.

Litter and Smoking

CityClean contractors have Clean Neighbourhoods powers to enforce premises
operators’ responsibilities to keep frontages clear of litter.

Gambling Act 2005
In relation to casinos and bingo clubs, the principal purpose is gaming. The sale of

alcohol and the provision of entertainment in such premises is incidental to gaming and
in determining whether to permit entertainment that constitutes regulated entertainment

12

16



under the act, gaming license committees and / or the Gambling Commission will have
taken into account relevant government guidance. Accordingly, it is felt that the
licensing objectives will have been, or will be in the main, adequately considered by
such committees and duplication of conditions should be avoided when considering
applications under the 2003 Act where relevant representations have been made.

8.3 Enforcement

8.3.1 The Enforcement of licensing law and inspection of licensed premises is detailed
in the Protocol between Sussex Police, the East Sussex Fire & Rescue Service and
Brighton & Hove City Council. This protocol reflects the need for more efficient
deployment of Police and Local Authority staff commonly engaged in licensing
enforcement and can be found at Appendix D (Lead Agency Status) of the Statement of
Licensing Policy. In addition, the Licensing Authority will have regard to its published
Licensing Enforcement Policy in making enforcement decisions in accordance with
Brighton & Hove City Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy (Appendix B). In order to
better target enforcement resources, inspections will be undertaken outside of normal
office hours and the sharing of information between all enforcement agencies will be
encouraged through joint meetings or similar arrangements.

8.3.2 Attention is drawn to the targeting of agreed problem and high risk premises
requiring greater attention as identified in the protocol. A number of other council and
government policies, strategies and guidance documents must be taken into account to
complement the policy, including:

Community Safety & Crime Reduction Strategy

Drugs and alcohol strategies — local alcohol harm reduction strategy
Objectives of the Security Industry Authority

The Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003/ASBPC Act 2014

The Health Act 2006

The Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006

Policing and Crime Act 2009

9 Reviews

9.1.1 Reviews represent a key protection for the community. Where the licensing
authority considers action necessary under its statutory powers it will take necessary
steps to support the licensing objectives. Action following review will be informed by
licensing enforcement policy — Appendix B of the SoLP see below on page 14 of this
report.

9.1.2 Where style of operation of a premises leads to applications concerning likelihood
of racist, religiously motivated, homophobic or transphobic crimes or incidents, the
review process should also support the community safety policy. Action should be
proportionate and licences would normally be suspended or revoked in these
circumstances to deter further incidents.

13

17



APPENDIX B - Licensing Enforcement Policy

1.0 STATEMENT OF OBJECTIVES

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

The council as licensing authority and responsible authority is committed to the
Council’s priorities and will inform the enforcement actions taken. Amendments
to priorities will be embedded automatically.

This service policy promotes efficient and effective approaches to regulatory
inspection and enforcement that improve regulatory outcomes without imposing
unnecessary burdens. This is in accordance with the Regulators Compliance
Code.

In certain instances the service may conclude that a provision in the code is
either not relevant or is outweighed by another provision. It will ensure that any
decision to depart from the code will be properly reasoned, based on material
evidence and documented.

The service pursues a positive and proactive approach towards ensuring
compliance by:

 Supporting the better regulation agenda,;

» Helping make prosperity and protection a reality for the city’s community;
* Helping and encouraging regulated entities to understand and meet
regulatory requirements more easily;

» Responding proportionately to regulatory breaches; and

* Protecting and improving public health and the environment.

This policy is based on the seven‘Hampton Principles’ of:

Economic Progress: Regulators should recognise that a key element of their
activity will be to allow, or even encourage, economic progress and only to
intervene when there is a clear case for protection;

Risk Assessment: Regulators, and the regulatory system as a whole, should
use comprehensive risk assessment to concentrate resources in the areas that
need them most;

Advice and Guidance: Regulators should provide authoritative, accessible
advice easily and cheaply;

Inspections and other visits: No inspection should take place without a reason;

Information requirements: Businesses should not have to give unnecessary
information or give the same information twice;

Compliance and enforcement actions: The few businesses that persistently
break regulations should be identified quickly and face proportionate and
meaningful sanctions; and

Accountability: Regulators should be accountable for the efficiency and
effectiveness of their activities, while remaining independent in the decisions they

14

18



take.

1.6 The rights and freedoms given under the Human Rights Act, particularly Article 6
and 8, will be observed, as will the provisions of the Regulation of Investigatory
Powers Act.

2.0 SCOPE OF THE POLICY

2.1  This policy supports and supplements specific guidance on enforcement action
contained in the Statutory Code of Practice for Regulators, Brighton & Hove City
Council’'s Corporate Enforcement Policy, Statutory Codes of Practice and
relevant guidance documents and guidelines issued by government departments
and coordinating bodies.

2.2  This policy relates to actions taken to educate and enforce legislation where non-
compliances have been identified or have a realistic potential to occur.

2.3  The policy is limited to those enforcement activities lead by the Head of
Environmental Health & Licensing.

3.0 TRAINING

3.1  Officers undertaking enforcement duties will be suitably trained and qualified so
as to ensure they are fully competent to undertake their enforcement activities.

4.0 MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

4.1  The service will maintain management systems to monitor the quality and nature
of enforcement activities undertaken, so as to ensure, so far as is reasonably
practicable, uniformity and consistency.

5.0 ENFORCEMENT OPTIONS

5.1  The service recognises the importance of achieving and maintaining consistency
in its approach to enforcement. Statutory Codes of Practice and guidance issued
by government departments, other relevant enforcement agencies or
professional bodies will therefore be considered and followed where appropriate.

5.2  Sanctions and penalties will be consistent, balanced, fairly implemented and
relate to common standards that ensure individual’s, public safety or the
environment is adequately protected. The aim of sanctions and penalties are to:

» Change the behaviour of the offender;

+ Eliminate any financial gain or benefit from non-compliance;

* Be responsive and consider what is appropriate for the particular offender and
regulatory issue, which can include punishment and the public stigma that should
be associated with a criminal conviction;

* Proportionate to the nature of the offence and the harm caused; and

» Aim to deter future non-compliance.

5.3  Criteria to be taken into account when considering the most appropriate
enforcement option include:
* the potential of the offence to cause harm;
« confidence in the offender;

15

19



 consequences of non compliance;
* likely effectiveness of the various enforcement options.

5.4 Having considered all the relevant options the choices for action are:

5.5

* Informal Warning: All advice issued will be given in writing and specify the
nature of the breach or offence, and the actions required to remedy the issue. An
informal warning may be included with the advice, and may accompany higher-
level actions, such as Enforcement Notices or Voluntary Surrender:

* Licence review: Licence review power will be used where an application for
review relates to one or more of the licensing objectives.

* Taxi licence: Taxi licence suspension or revocation will be used to protect
public safety. Other sanctions such as DSA testing will be used to protect public
safety and in accordance with the taxi licensing policy (Blue book).

» Simple Caution: The issue of a Simple Caution by an authorised officer may
be undertaken as an alternative to prosecution where it is considered
unnecessary to involve the courts, and the offender’s response to the problem
makes repeat offending unlikely, or the offender’s age or health make it
appropriate. Cautions may only be issued where the offender makes a clear and
reliable admission of guilt and understands the significance of acceptance.

* Prosecution: A prosecution is appropriate where there is a breach of a legal
requirement, such that public safety, health, economic or physical well-being or
the environment or environmental amenity is adversely affected.

The Crown Prosecutor’s Code of Evidential and Public Interests tests must be
met in all cases. However, certain circumstances will normally justify prosecution
to prevent the undermining of the service’s enforcement responsibilities.

* Failure to comply with an Enforcement Notice

* Declining a Simple Caution

 Continued, reckless, negligent or pre-meditated non-compliance.

* Failure to pay a fixed penalty.

* Non-cooperation, acts of obstruction or threats of physical harm or abuse.

* Injunctions: Injunctive action as a means of preventing an activity or course of
action likely to result in significant risk to public or community safety or economic
wellbeing of consumers and businesses.

If the department is considering taking enforcement action which it believes may
be inconsistent with that adopted by other authorities, the matter will be referred
to the appropriate local co-ordinating body.

6.0 INFORMAL WARNING

6.1

Informal action may be taken when:

* the act or omission is not serious enough to warrant formal action, or

« from the individual's/enterprise's past history it can be reasonably expected that
informal action will achieve compliance, or

« confidence in the individual/enterprise's management or ability to resolve the
matter is high, or

* the consequences of non-compliance will not pose a significant risk to public
health, public safety, animal welfare or the environment.

16

20



6.2

When an informal approach is used to secure compliance with regulations,
written documentation issued will:

« contain all the information necessary to understand what is required and why;
« indicate the regulations contravened, measures which will enable compliance
with legal requirements and that other means of achieving the same effect may
be chosen;

* clearly differentiate between legal requirements and recommendations of good
practice. Such a differentiation will also be made when verbal advice is given.

7.0 SIMPLE CAUTIONS

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.1 A Simple Caution may be issued as an alternative to a prosecution. Cautions
may be issued to:

» deal quickly and simply with less serious offences;

« divert less serious offences away from the courts;

« reduce the chances of repeat offences.

The following factors will be considered when deciding whether a caution is
appropriate:-

» evidence of the suspect's guilt

* has a clear and reliable admission of the offence been made either verbally or
in writing

* is it in the public interest to use a caution as the appropriate means of disposal
when taking into account the public interest principles set out in the Code for
Crown Prosecutors.

» the suspected offender must understand the significance of a simple caution
and give an informed consent to being cautioned.

No pressure will be applied to a person to accept a Simple Caution.

The 'cautioning officer' will be the most appropriate officer from Service Director,
Service Assistant Director, Head of Service Environmental Health Manager or
Licensing Manager. The Cautioning Officer must not have taken an active part in
investigating the case.

Should a person decline the offer of a simple caution a prosecution will be
recommended.

8.0 PROSECUTION

8.1

8.2

The department recognises that the decision to prosecute is significant and could
have far reaching consequences on the offender.

The decision to undertake a prosecution will be taken after proper consultation in
accordance with the Scheme of Delegation for the council’s functions. The
decision to proceed with a prosecution will normally be taken following legal
advice. The matters to be taken into account when deciding if the issue of
proceedings is proportionate include:

* the seriousness and nature of the alleged offence;
17

21



8.3

8.4

8.5

* the role of the suspect in the commission of the offence;

« any explanation by the suspect or any agent or third party acting on their behalf;
* was the suspect in a position of trust, responsibility or authority in relation to the

commission of the offence;

* is there evidence of premeditation or disregard of a legal requirement for
financial reward;

» risk of harm to the public, an individual or the environment;

« relevant previous history of compliance;

* reliability of evidence and witnesses

 any mitigating or aggravating circumstances or the likelihood that the suspect
will be able to establish a defence;

» suspect’s willingness to prevent a recurrence of the offence;

* the need to influence future behaviour of the suspect;

* the likely penalty to be imposed; and

* a prosecution is in the public interest, there is realistic prospect of conviction
and sufficient evidence to support proceedings.

All relevant evidence and information will be considered before deciding
whether to instigate proceedings in order to enable a consistent, fair and
objective decision to be made.

Where an act or omission is capable of constituting both a summary and either
way offence, when deciding which offence to charge the following will be
considered:

« the gravity of the offence;

* the adequacy or otherwise of the powers of the summary court to punish the
offence,;

* the record of the suspect;

* the suspect's previous response to advice or other enforcement action;

+ the magnitude of the hazard;

* any circumstances causing particularly great public alarm;

« comments from the council's Solicitor’s Office.

As a general rule an individual or business will be given a reasonable opportunity

to comply with the law although in some circumstances prosecution may be
undertaken without giving prior warning, e.g.

* the contravention is a particularly serious one;
« the integrity of the licensing framework is threatened.

9.0 Home Office and Government Advice: Problem premises on probation

9.1 The licensing authority supports the strategies of interventions and tough

conditions to be assembled into packages released in 2008. The current version

is appended (appendix A).

11.APPEALS

If any person is unhappy with the action taken, or information or advice given

they will be given the opportunity of discussing the matter with the relevant team

manager, Head of Service or Assistant Director.

22

18



Any such appeal does not preclude any aggrieved person from making a formal
complaint about the service or any officers. Any such complaint will be dealt with
in accordance with corporate procedures and guidance.

Complaints that are not dealt with by the council’s complaints procedure are
listed in corporate policy and include:

« Complaints where the complainant or another person has commenced or
intends to commence legal proceedings against the council.

» Complaints where the council has commenced or intends to commence legal
proceedings against the complainant or another person relating to the matter of
complaint.

11. SHARED ENFORCEMENT ROLES
Lead agency status between Sussex Police, East Sussex Fire and Rescue
Service and the council’s trading standards, environmental health and licensing
officers are determined between the agencies at county level. The current
position is appended (appendix H).

ANNEX A

“PROBLEM PREMISES ON PROBATION” — RED AND YELLOW CARDS : HOW IT
WOULD WORK

The problem

1. In many cases, revocation of a premises licence effectively kills any business which
is focussed on retailing alcohol. This means that not only the business owner
suffers, but most people working there will lose their livelihoods. Many of these
workers will be entirely innocent of any wrong-doing. There is also an impact on
those who rely indirectly on income from the premises — such as local food suppliers
or cleaning contractors, and the closure of a premises can deprive some
communities of their local shop or restrict local consumer choice. Enforcement
agencies that apply for reviews and local councillors sitting on licensing committees
are well aware of this potential impact and it can lead to a reluctance to use the
powers in the act to revoke the licence instantly for any failure to promote the
licensing objectives. This risks patchy enforcement and uneven solutions to alcohol-
related problems around the country.

2. In addition, in many cases, enforcement agencies will prefer to negotiate additional
voluntary conditions with problem premises against the threat of review as an
immediate, pragmatic and less bureaucratic solution. While this may be a

reasonable approach in many cases, there is a risk that some premises are not
being dealt with as firmly as necessary, particularly given the level of test purchase
failures. Nor are voluntary agreements particularly visible, lessening the deterrent
effect on other premises.

3. Government wishes to support the enforcement agencies and licensing authorities
by providing clear guidance on a “yellow card / red card” system, which would
ensure a firm response to problems, but which give premises an opportunity to
reform. The intention is that such a system would be highly visible and send a clear

19

23



message to alcohol retailers, and the public, that action will be taken against those
who act contrary to the licensing objectives and the law.

4. The proposed interventions below would not prevent the giving of an instant red card
in an appropriately serious case. It should be realised that a “test purchase” failure
often masks multiple offences that have gone undetected.

Supporting enforcement agencies

5. The government will encourage enforcement agencies — mainly the police, trading
standards officers and environmental health officers — to seek more reviews in the
knowledge of the yellow card/red card system described below. This will mean not
giving formal warnings. It will mean that on identifying problem premises, the
licensing authority will be engaged faster than it might have been in the past.

6. Enforcement agencies would be encouraged to seek reviews when local intelligence
suggests that individual premises are selling to children or causing other crime
problems or causing noise nuisance.

7. Under the law, the licensing authority must then hold a hearing so long as the
application relates to one of the four licensing objectives and is made by a
responsible authority or by other persons like a local resident or another local
business.

First intervention

8. Responsible authorities will be encouraged to propose a package of touch new
conditions to be added to the existing conditions which are designed to combat the
identified problem. The kinds of conditions that we have in mind are set out in
Annex A. These would not be appropriate for every premises and need to be
tailored to the nature of the problem and the type of premises. Such action should
be supplemented where appropriate by:

* Removal of the designated premises supervisor and his/her replacement (the
manager is removed);

* Suspension of the licence for between one day and three months according to
the circumstances.

* Restriction on trading hours — cutting hours of trading in alcohol.

* Clear warning that a further appearance will give rise to a presumption

of revocation.

9. If appropriate following review, the licensing authority should consider these
packages of conditions and action s to challenge problem premises more
aggressively.

10. For example, requiring a major supermarket to make all alcohol sales through a
single till manned by a person aged 25 years or older in order to tackle sales to
underage. Over a year, this would potentially cost such a supermarket £millions. It
would also make them reflect on their levels of supervision at other stores.

11. In addition, enforcement agencies should make the premises in question a priority
for test purchases and more regular inspections.

20

24



12. The aim would be to put the premises on probation. Effectively, they are given a
yellow card. They are put on notice that the next offence or breach would mean an
automatic second intervention — a red card.

Second intervention

13. In the absence of improvement, enforcement agencies should seek another review.
The licensing authority again must grant a hearing.

14. If satisfied on the issue of the lack of improvement, the licensing authority should
look to revoke the licence. The action should be publicised in the area as an
example to other retailers.

Implementation

15. Requires:

» Development with the Home Office of a toolkit and guidance for police,
trading standards and ethos;

« Initial letters to Leaders of local authorities and Chief Executives;

« Ultimately, stronger statutory Guidance to be laid in Parliament for licensing
authorities themselves.

16. Central Government cannot tell licensing authorities what to do. The review powers
are devolved to them. Similarly, central government cannot direct enforcement
agencies how to enforce the law. It would remain their judgement when and how to
act.

ANNEX B
POSSIBLE TOUGH CONDITIONS TO BE ASSEMBLED INTO PACKAGES

n.b. These would not be appropriate for every premises and need to be tailored to the
nature of the problem and the type of premises.

GREATER CONTROL OVER SALE

1. Designated checkout(s) for alcohol sales (supermarket). Impact on protection of
children from harm, but also impact on sales and goodwill (probable loss of trade to
competitors).

2. Personal licence holder/DPS to be on site at all times during sales of alcohol.
Impact on protection of children from harm and new costs if additional staff have to
qualify as personal licence holder.

3. Personal licence holder/DPS to supervise and authorise every individual sale of
alcohol. Impact on protection of children from harm and new costs if additional staff
have to qualify as personal licence holder.

4. SIA registered security staff to be present at points of sales to support staff refusing
sales to u-18s and drunks.

5. Alcohol sales only to be made only by person aged not less than 25 years. Impact
21

25



on protection of children from harm, but also impact on sales and goodwill (probable
loss of trade to competitors).

6. CCTV installed at all points of sale and recorded. Recordings can be examined by
a constable or trading standards officer to determine sales to minors or drunks.

7. The licensed premises shall join the Business Crime Reduction Partnership
scheme.

TRAINING

8. All staff to read and sign a declaration that they understand the law every time they
start a shift.

9. Train all staff engaged in selling alcohol in alcohol awareness (not just personal
licence holders). All new staff to be trained within two weeks of commencing
employment. Evidence of training to be retained in writing and to be available for
inspection by any authorised person and training standards officers. Impact on all
licensing objectives.

ALCOHOL SALE BANNED AT CERTAIN HOURS

10. No alcohol sales Mon — Fri between 4pm and 8.30pm. Impact on protection of
children from harm or targeted hours reflecting times when local intelligence
indicates under 18s may be purchasing alcohol.

11. No alcohol sales — Friday to Sunday. Impact on all four licensing objectives.
ALCOHOL DISPLAYS

12. No displays of alcohol or advertising of alcohol promotions that can be seen from
outside the premises.

13. No alcohol stocks promoted alongside goods likely to appeal to children (eg
confectionary, toys).

CUTTING DOWN ON SHOPLIFTING

14. SIA registered security staff to be present at alcohol aisles during opening times to
prevent attempted under age sales or theft.

15. Location of alcohol stocks/displays not to be sited near the entrance/exit to deter
shoplifting.

16. No direct public access to alcohol products — like tobacco, alcohol to be kept behind
a dedicated kiosk.

NAMING AND SHAMING

17. Display an external sign/yellow card to state which of the licensing act objectives
they have breached and what action has been taken against them.

22

26



OTHERS

18. Maintain a log of all under-age attempted purchases from those who appear to be
under 18 or drunk.

19. Children aged under [18 years] not to be present or (not more than one child at any
one time) on premises (other than children living on the premises or of the people
working on the premises); or only children under 18 accompanied by an adult to be
permitted on the premises during retailing hours. Impact on protection of children

from harm.

20. Products to be labelled (a label stuck to the bottle or can) to show the details of the
shop from which it was bought. Purpose would be to provide evidence of unlawful
sales if product found commonly in possession of persons under 18.

21. Designated single items — beer, alcopops and cider — not to be sold to any person.
Impact on protection of children from harm. Purpose would be to reduce sales to
children and drunks. Alternative would be to prescribe sales of beer, alcopops and
cider in quantities of less than four.

22. CCTV installed, monitored and 24 hour recordings kept for a week and made
available to constables and persons authorised under the 2003 Act to help identify
attempted proxy purchasing.

23. Where there is no designated smoking area, readmission after midnight should
normally be prohibited.

23

27



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

The licensing Act 2003 provides for fees to be payable to the licensing authority
in respect of the discharge of their functions. The fee levels are set centrally at a
level to allow licensing authorities to fully recover the costs of administration,
inspection and enforcement of the regime.

Finance Officer Consulted Michael Bentley Date: 20/07/2021

Legal Implications:

The licensing authority must act to promote the four licensing objectives which
are:

The prevention of crime and disorder

Public safety

The prevention of public nuisance

The protection of children from harm

The licensing authority must have regard to its statement of licensing policy and
the guidance issued by the Secretary of State in carrying out its functions.

Lawyer Consulted: Rebecca Sidell Date: 20/07/21

Equalities Implications:

Diversity is valued and strong, safe communities are vital to future prosperity.
Licensing policy aims to protect children from harm including sale and supply of
alcohol to children.

Sustainability Implications:

Licensing policy aims to prevent public nuisance and develop culture of live
music, dancing and theatre.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

Appendix A — Part A of Premises Licence

Appendix B — Review Application

Appendix C — Supporting Representations from local residents and Ward Councillors

Appendix D — Supporting Representation from Licensing Authority

Appendix E — Supporting Representation from Food, Health & Safety Team Brighton &
Hove City Council

24

28



Appendix F - Response from Premises Licence Holders legal representative

Appendix G - Map of area showing Premises

Documents in Members’ Rooms

Brighton & Hove City Council, Licensing Act 2003: Statement of Licensing Policy 2021.

Home Office, Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003,
April 2018.

Public Health Framework for assessing Alcohol Licensing. Annual Report — Ward. 5%
edition. Public Health Intelligence. January 2019

Background Documents

Brighton & Hove City Council, Licensing Act 2003: Statement of Licensing Policy 2021.

25

29



30



¢

lcBl

Brighton & Hove
City Council

APPENDIX A Schedule 12
Part A Regulation 33, 34

Premises Licence
Brighton and Hove City Council

Premises Licence Number 1445/3/2014/06022/LAPRMV

Part | — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description,
including Post Town, Post Code

Pascals Bistro Bar
6 Queens Place
Second Avenue
Hove

BN3 2LT

Telephone number 01273 729990

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Performance of Recorded Music
Late Night Refreshment
Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Performance of Recorded Music — Indoors.
Music will be played by MPs player or CDs using amplifiers and speakers.
Monday to Thursday: 1 1:00 - 00:00, Friday to Saturday: |1:00 - 01:00, Sunday: 11:00 - 23:00

Late Night Refreshment — Indoors & Outdoors
Monday to Thursday: 23:00 - 00:00, Friday to Saturday: 23:00 - 01:00

Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Monday to Thursday: 1 1:00 - 00:00, Friday to Saturday: |1:00 - 01:00, Sunday: 11:00 - 23:00
Non-standard timings in respect of all the above activities: New Years Eve

Licence Issued: 01.09.2020 | of 8

31




¢

lcBl

Brighton & Hove
City Council

The opening hours of the premises
Monday to Thursday: | 1:00 - 00:00, Friday to Saturday: 11:00 - 01:00, Sunday: 11:00 - 23:00

Non-standard timings: New Years Eve

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off
supplies

Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premises.

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence

Said Pascal Madjoudj
REDACTED TEXT

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the
supply of alcohol

REDACTED TEXT

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

REDACTED TEXT

Licence Issued: 01.09.2020 2 0of8

32




hleRlch

Brighton & Hove
City Council

Annex | - Mandatory conditions

S 19; mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol

- no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence

(@) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence
or his personal licence is suspended

- every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by
a person who holds a personal licence

|.—(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange
or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities,
or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises-

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised
to sell or supply alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee
to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise

anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.

2. The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into the
mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by
reason of a disability).

Licence Issued: 01.09.2020 30of8

33



hleRlch

Brighton & Hove
City Council

3. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

4— (I) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that
the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification

policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—
(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.
5. The responsible person must ensure that—
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to
customers in the following measures—
(i) beer or cider: /2 pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml;
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which
is available to customers on the premises; and
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.”

6. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

Licence Issued: 01.09.2020 40of 8

34



¢

bl b

Brighton & Hove
City Council

7. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph |—
(2)“duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(1);
(b)“permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—

P=D+(DxV)
where—
(i) P is the permitted price,
(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on

the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises
licence—

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;
(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994(2).

8. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to
be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

9. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on
a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”)
as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

S 21; mandatory condition: door supervision
where a premises licence includes a condition relating to security activity, the licence must

include a condition that each individual must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority
(there are exemptions re theatre and films and clubs)

Licence Issued: 01.09.2020 50f8

35



¢

bl b

Brighton & Hove
City Council

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

For the Prevention of Crime and Disorder:

I. To use mobile support units and/or door supervisors in consultation with the police on special
events.

For Public Safety:

2. To provide toughened glasses.

For the Prevention of Public Nuisance:

3. Licensees and staff must undertake regular inspections inside and outside the premises in order to
monitor noise levels and ensure that both ambient sound and sound generated by recorded music is
at a level that does not constitute a nuisance.

For the Protection of Children from Harm:

4. Licensees and staff must operate a ‘Challenge 21’ policy in that any person attempting to purchase
alcohol who appears under the age of 2| will be asked to produce photographic identification.
Acceptable ID includes a passport, driving licence with a photograph, or a Portman Group, Citizen
Card or Validate proof of age card bearing the “PASS” mark hologram.

5. No persons under the age of 18 to be unaccompanied after 20:00 hours.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority - N/A

Licence Issued: 01.09.2020 6 of 8

36



chlelh

Br

ighton & Hove
City Council

Annex 4 - Plans

- / AT
| f===_1 2y 1 [ ﬁeEsx’:/La—r
J “\ | ! T- I | i
con - H B — i}
ROOM {1 [ ti b i
D B e Rt ot A 1 " et e
- el X L
¥ -0 T 47+7 : PP v
1 | e Ly P
A
P o
|
l‘— AT, Eitamars
|BAR i o TMeRAoLTR e
DL TS AT % . CONTTIREDL.
] s/
1 i
= / bl : E EXIT
i B | <k Ryl i D -
_ e .
{ RESTAURANT I H‘ mgiaing =
\{ # oo T T e L =
l l [" - — —.Sur
I |A¢4¢ tA’lﬁﬂMﬁ
: NI, gé,%.,p
S S 5 N —— — e

a

|
|

|

tn

|

|

roms  rices

_t |
I .
— | | ,” | \
I | l\ pE TR
[ i
A ol
P ™ I
FIRE EXIT " 1 e l |
i e — Y fiffe S s — | T'F
_.l"_we_____,t:r___ @ H_._bF _— W5 _ ! |
TTITITITT o — — o« 1TUITTOT
ERRTI L e e |

— 1

GRO_...D FL__R _AYOUT

Licence Issued: 01.09.2020

37

70f8



skl

Brighton & Hove
City Council

Licence Issued: 01.09.2020 8 of 8

38



APPENDIX B

Application for the review of a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

l, (insert name of applicant) Inspector REDACTED TEXT, Force Licensing Lead on behalf of Chief
Constable REDACTED TEXT

Apply for the review of a premises licence under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for
the premises described in Part 1 below.

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Pascal’s Bistro

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

6 Queens Place

Post Town Post code (if known)

Hove BN3 2LT

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Said Pascal MADJOUDJ

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)

1445/3/2014/06022/LAPRMV

Part 2 — Applicant details

Sussex Police
Application for review of a premises licence
07/2015

Page 1

39




lam,

Please mark X for yes

1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises
c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the

premises

1 0O OO

2) A responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A)

below)

[]

(A) DETAILS OFINDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please mark X for yes

Mr([] [Mrs [[ ] [Miss [[ ] [Ms |[ ]

Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname

First names

Please mark X for yes

| am 18 years old or over

[]

Current postal
address if different
from premises address

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Page 2

40

Sussex Police
Application for review of a premises licence
07/2015




Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

Email address (if any)

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address:

Sussex Police

Brighton & Hove Licensing
1%t Floor

John Street

Brighton

BN2 OLA

Telephone number (if any)

01273 REDACTED TEXT

(Email address (if any)

REDACTED TEXT

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please mark X for yes (one or more boxes)

1) the prevention of crime and disorder |E
2) public safety []
3) the prevention of public nuisance |:|
4) the protection of children from harm |:|

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1)

Sussex Police
Application for review of a premises licence
07/2015

Page 3

41




Since August 2020 Sussex Police have witnessed and evidenced a number of failings in how this premises
is being operated and run. Between the period of September 2020 and May 2021 we have on 3 separate
occasions conducted drug swabbing at the premises, all of which have returned high readings. In May
2021 there has been a serious assault which originated within the premises and has resulted in life
changing injuries to the victim. We have witnessed breaches of the premises licence conditions where the
management have not been using toughened glass within the outside area and they have not monitored
noise levels in regards to music when on one visit, all the windows were open and loud music from inside
was being emitted to the outside area. Finally we have concerns that the management does not control
intoxication levels.

In addition Police have received numerous calls from members of the public in relation to non-compliance
of Covid-19 Regulations, which has also been witnessed by ourselves. We have no confidence in the
management of the premises to operate it in a safe and responsible way and promote the licensing
objectives. Below we have listed the complete drug swabbing results followed by a summary of the assault
and our interactions with the premises owner/licence holder (PLH) and Designated Premises Supervisor
(DPS), Said Pascal MADJOUDJ.

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 2)

Drug Swab Results

Alarms of between 1 and 2 times the alarm threshold can be classed as a “low” response. It could be
attributed to cross contamination of the surface tested, background contamination, or greatly degraded
historic contamination. It is not indicative of recent direct contact.

Alarms of between 2 and 3 times the alarm threshold can be classed as a “medium” response. It could be
attributed to cross contamination of the surface tested or recent historic contamination that may have been
left a number of days prior to the sample being taken.

Alarms of between 3 and 4 times the alarm threshold can be classed as a “high” response. This level of
response would not be attributed to cross contamination and is indicative of recent and direct contact with
measurable quantities of the narcotic identified by the machine.

Readings of 4.00 and above are estimated to relate to microgram amounts of contamination being
transferred to the sample media. This level of contamination is not generally experienced in any other
environment than somewhere that has been in direct contact with a bulk amount of the source
narcotic, i.e. this level is not generally experienced as background contamination or through incidental
cross contamination by being in close contact with other contaminated areas or persons.

11t September 2020

A licensing police officer, REDACTED TEXT conducted drug swabbing on the evening of 11" September
2020.

The results from the drugs swab were as follows:-

Sink in male toilet — 2.67 Cocaine

Hand dryer in male toilet - Nil

Hand dryer in disabled toilet — 1.90 Cocaine
Ledge in disabled toilet — 6.29 Cocaine
Disabled/Male toilet, toilet seat — 4.62 Cocaine

Sussex Police
Application for review of a premises licence
07/2015

Page 4

42




Disabled/Male toilet, toilet roll holder - 5.94 Cocaine
Ladies right cubical toilet roll holder - 5.74 Cocaine
Ladies right cubical toilet seat — 4.99 Cocaine
Ladies hand dryer - 4.89 Cocaine

Ladies left cubical toilet roll holder — 5.71 Cocaine
Ladies left cubical toilet seat — 5.70 Cocaine

Said Pascal MADJOUDJ (PLH/DPS) was emailed the results on 14" September 2020 at 11:12hrs. Within
the email suggestions were made on how they could reduce the risk of drugs being consumed on their
premises. Sussex Police licensing also raised concerns over how the premises was being operated with
little regard for COVID regulations issued by the Government.

18t December 2020

A licensing police officer, REDACTED TEXT conducted drug swabbing on the evening of 18" December
2020.

The results from this drug swab were as follows:-

Sink in male toilet — 5.14 Cocaine

Hand dryer in male toilet — 5.34 Cocaine

Hand dryer in disabled toilet — 5.81 Cocaine
Ledge in disabled toilet — 6.34 Cocaine
Disabled/Male toilet, toilet seat — 6.30 Cocaine
Disabled/Male toilet, toilet roll holder - 6.74 Cocaine
Ladies right cubical toilet roll holder - 1.30 Cocaine
Ladies right cubical toilet seat — Nil

Ladies hand dryer - 1.55 Cocaine

Ladies left cubical toilet roll holder — 5.96 Cocaine
Ladies left cubical toilet seat — 4.22 Cocaine

The majority of these results are higher than the first drug swab, this clearly highlights the premises has a
drugs issue and that the management are not managing to resolve this problem. A final warning was
issued to the premises on 23™ December 2020. Within this we asked for a drug policy and action plan by
31st December 2020 which to this date has not been received by Police.

28" May 2021
A licensing police officer, REDACTED TEXT conducted drug swabbing on the evening of 28" May 2021.

The results from this drug swab were as follows:-

Sink in male toilet — 5.17 Cocaine

Hand dryer in male toilet — 5.87 Cocaine

Hand dryer in disabled toilet — 5.90 Cocaine
Ledge in disabled toilet — 6.20 Cocaine
Disabled/Male toilet, toilet seat — 2.62 Cocaine
Disabled/Male toilet, toilet roll holder - 4.90 Cocaine
Ladies right cubical toilet roll holder - Nil
Ladies right cubical toilet seat — Nil

Ladies hand dryer - Nil

Ladies left cubical toilet roll holder — Nil

Ladies left cubical toilet seat — Nil

Although no trace in the ladies, there are still very high readings within the male and disabled toilets. These
results were sent to the DPS/PLH Said Pascal MADJOUDJ via email on 03™ June 2021.

Sussex Police
Application for review of a premises licence
07/2015

Page 5

43




Serious incident

22" May 2021

At approximately midnight, Police responded to a 999 call where it was reported that a male had been
assaulted following a fight in the street. This has resulted in the victim having received serious injuries.
During the course of the investigations it has come to light that the incident originates from inside Pascal’s
Bistro where a fight first occurred. It is believed that intoxication levels and drug consumption played a part
in this incident. On 23 May 2021 the premises were approached for CCTV. When PCSO'’s attended they
were told by staff that the CCTV was not working due to builders cutting a cable. Later in the day a police
officer attended the premises again and asked to talk to the PLH/DPS, MADJOUDJ. He was not present
and staff refused to provide contact details for him. The Detective Sergeant then made contact with Police
Licensing to ask for assistance. On 27" May 2021 a Licensing PC visited to talk to MADJOUDJ (PLH/DPS)
about the CCTV. MADJOUDJ stated it was working but only records and stores for one day. Due to the
inconsistencies of what officers are being advised, the CCTV unit has been seized as part of the
investigation. Whilst the investigation is on-going, a male has been charged and remanded for the offence.

Licence breaches & interactions

14" August 2020

Joint visit with Brighton & Hove City Council Licensing department due to reports of concerns over Covid-
19 legislation/regulation compliance. Owner advised that Covid capacity was 51 however they had over
100 people present with customers even on the footpath and road. Intoxication levels were on the verge of

being too high. Security was present but not controlling numbers entering the premises and limited Track &
Trace” taking place. Sussex Police withessed breaches of the following licence conditions:

Witnessed by ourselves of which was in breach of the following licence conditions were tables outside full
of glasses and windows open with loud music coming from inside.

Annex 2 — Public safety:

2. To Provide toughened glasses.

Annex 2 — Prevention of public nuisance:

3. Licensees and staff must undertake regular inspection inside and outside the premises in order to
monitor noise level and ensure that both ambient sound and sound generated by recorded music is at a

level that does not constitute a nuisance.

11th September 2020

Visit by REDACTED TEXT to the premises to conduct a full licensing inspection and drug swabbing. Drug
swabbing results as above. Despite it being brought to the owner’s attention of the licence breach on 14
Aug 2020, during this visit they still had glasses on tables and window open omitting loud music both in
breach of the premises licence. Breach letter issued and included the drug readings.

26" September 2020

Licensing inspection conducted and no issues reported.

039 October 2020

Licensing inspection conducted and no issues reported.

Sussex Police
Application for review of a premises licence
07/2015

Page 6

44




23" October 2020

Licensing inspection conducted and no licensing issues reported. Concerns raised over COVID breaches
with customers walking around with no masks and not being challenged by staff and tables close together.

05" December 2020

Licensing inspection conducted. DPS given advice about serving persons already or on the verge of being
intoxicated as it was felt that some customers had reached that point.

239 December 2020

Final warning sent to the premises following the 2" high drug readings. Within that it was asked they
provide us with a drugs policy and action plan by 31 Dec 2020. This policy and plan has never been
submitted to Police.

In summary, Sussex Police have no confidence in the management of the premises, having seen little
improvements in reducing the levels of drug misuse within the premises and the recent assault. Sussex
Police contend that the licensing objective of the prevention of crime & disorder is being significantly
undermined.

On reviewing the current licence we do not feel that adding any additional conditions would help in reducing
the risks as the existing conditions on the licence are not being complied with.

Further, as Said Pascal MADJOUDJ is the premises licence holder (PLH) and the current DPS, a new DPS
is also not an option as MADJOUDJ will still ultimately be in control of the premises licence. There is no
mechanism within the Licensing Act 2003 to remove the PLH.

The exclusion of the sale of alcohol by retail from the scope of the licence or the restriction of times for
licensable activity could have been amended, however this course of action will not address the root cause
of the issues associated with this venue; the PLH failing to prevent drug use within and allowing intoxication
to reach a level where assaults are taking place.

The recommendation of Sussex Police therefore, would be the revocation of the premises licence.

Please mark X for yes

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before |:|

If yes please state the date of that application

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state what they were and
when you made them

N/A

Sussex Police
Application for review of a premises licence
07/2015

Page 7

45




Please mark X for yes

¢ | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities and |E
the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, as
appropriate

¢ | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application |E
will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD
SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN
OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (See guidance note 4). If
signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature (on behalf of the applicant)

REDACTED TEXT

Inspector
REDACTED TEXT

Date: 11 June 2021

Capacity:

Force Licensing Lead
Sussex Police

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with
this application (please read guidance note 5)

REDACTED TEXT
Sussex Police Licensing
1st Floor

John Street

Post town Post code
Brighton BN2 OLA
Sussex Police
Application for review of a premises licence
07/2015
Page 8

46



Telephone number (if any)

REDACTED TEXT

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional)

REDACTED TEXT

Notes for Guidance

—

. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are included in
the grounds for review if available.

3. The application form must be signed.

4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they

have actual authority to do so.

This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Sussex Police
Application for review of a premises licence
07/2015

Page 9

a7




48



Date: 22" July 2021

**BY EMAIL**

REDACTED

Licensing Officer
Brighton & Hove City Council

Dear REDACTED,

* Sussex Police

3 ﬂﬂﬁ Serving Sussex
www.sussex.police.uk

Brighton & Hove Licensing Unit

Police Station
John Street
Brighton

BN2 OLA

Tel: 01273 404 535 ext. 550826

Email: brighton.licensing@sussex.pnn.police.uk

Re: Pascal’s, 6 Queens Place, Hove — Review of a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

Further to our original application to call a review of the above premises licence, please find below additional paperwork
of which we would be grateful if you could share with the licensing panel.

It details our communications that we have had over a period of time with the management and also an update on the
assault that we mention within the original documents.

| can confirm that we will not be requesting for any of the hearing to be heard behind closed doors.

If you require any further information please do not hesitate to contact us.

Yours sincerely,

REDACTED

Licensing Officer
Brighton & Hove Division

Sussex Police

e ——

Sussex Police Headquarters

Malling House, Church Lane, Lewes, E. Sussex, BN7 2DZ

49

Telephone: 101 | 01273 470101

Email: brighton.licensing@sussex.pnn.police.uk



Email sent to Said Pascal MADJOUDJ on 14" Sept 2020 following first drug swabs.

From: Brighton Licensing

Sent: 14 September 2020 11:15

To: REDACTED

Subject: Pascal’s, 6 Queens Place Hove - Drug Readings
Importance: High

Good Morning Pascal,

Further to our visit and phone conversation on Friday 11" September 2020, as promised below are the results from the
drug swabs we took.

Sink in male toilet — 2.67

Hand dryer in male toilet—0

Hand drying in male/disabled toilet — 1.90
Ledge in male/disabled toilet — 6.29
Male/disabled toilet seat — 4.62
Male/disabled toilet roll holder — 5.94
Ladies right cubical toilet roll holder —5.74
Lades right cubical toilet seat — 4.99
Ladies hand dryer — 4.89

Ladies left cubical toilet roll holder — 5.71
Ladies left cubical toilet seat —5.70

All the above results are for cocaine. Attached is a document that explains the above numbers in detail.

As mentioned on the phone, | have never had a venue have so many high readings. It is now down to you to turn these
results around and make your venue less drug friendly. Some suggestions are:

e Removing flat surfaces within the toilets.

e Instant ban on anyone seen to be taking drugs or found with them.

e Regular toilet checks — often people taking drugs will do it with another person so making sure only 1 person is
in a cubical and remove anyone in breach of this.

e Posters — see attached.

With such high readings and breaches of your licence conditions, we could call a review now of your licence however,
we will give you this opportunity as part of our stepped approach to get on top of the drug issues within your premises.
If we have not seen a vast improvement of these readings when we come back to re-test, you will leave us with no other
option but to call a review.

As you know, we are also very concerned in how you’re operating your premises in regards to COVID. As of today please
be reminded of the new requirement of no more than 6 persons at a table and you must be doing track and trace. You
have a responsibility to ensure your staff and customers are kept safe — at the moment we don’t believe this is
happening. You need to keep intoxication levels down, have background music only and ALL customers should be
seated. Other venues throughout the City of all sizes are able to comply with this — there is no reason why your venue
can’t as well.

If you have any questions in regards to anything | have mentioned above, please do not hesitate to contact us.

We will be monitoring your venue and as mentioned, we will be back in near future to conduct new drug swab tests.

50



Kind Regards
REDACTED

REDACTED
Police Licensing Officer

Brighton & Hove Licensing Unit : John Street, Brighton
Telephone: 01273 404 535 Ext: 550826 Mobile: REDACTED

51



Copy of documents attached to the above email sent to Said Pascal MADJOUDJ on 14" Sept
2020

Itemiser Drug Machine Readings

Alarms of between 1 and 2 times the alarm threshold can be classed as a “low” response. It could be attributed to cross
contamination of the surface tested, background contamination, or greatly degraded historic contamination. It is not
indicative of recent direct contact.

Alarms of between 2 and 3 times the alarm threshold can be classed as a “medium” response. It could be attributed to
cross contamination of the surface tested or recent historic contamination that may have been left a number of days
prior to the sample being taken.

Alarms of between 3 and 4 times the alarm threshold can be classed as a “high” response. This level of response would
not be attributed to cross contamination and is indicative of recent and direct contact with measurable quantities of the
narcotic identified by the machine.

Readings of 4.00 and above are estimated to relate to microgram amounts of contamination being transferred to the
sample media. This level of contamination is not generally experienced in any other environment than somewhere that
has been in direct contact with a bulk amount of the source narcotic, i.e. this level is not generally experienced as
background contamination or through incidental cross contamination by being in close contact with other contaminated
areas or persons.

This premises operates a Zero Tolerance policy towards drug

possession and use. If you are caught in possession of drugs you risk;
@® Being ejected from this premises
Being banned from all city centre venues Y
Being arrested " T
Your home being searched by police

Don'’t bring drugs into clubs.

52



Copy of letter sent to Said Pascal MADJOUDJ on 17" Sept 2020

Police Station
John Street
Brighton

BN2 OLA

Tel: 01273 404 535 ext. 550826

Email: brighton.licensing@sussex.pnn.police.uk
Date: 17t September 2020

Pascal Madjoud;j
Pascal’s

6 Queens Place
Hove

East Sussex

BN3 2LT

Dear Mr. Madjoud;j,

Re: Pascal’s, 6 Queens Place, Hove - Licensing Act 2003 — Unauthorised licensable activities & drug readings.

Our records show that you are listed as the premises licence holder and designated premises supervisor of the above
premises.

Following our visit to your premises on Friday 11" September 2020, the following breaches of your licence where
witnessed by ourselves:

Annex 2:

For Public Safety:

2. To provide toughened glasses.
The outside tables were full of glasses and wine and beer bottles.

For the Prevention of Public Nuisance:

3. Licensees and staff must undertake regular inspections inside and outside the premises in order to monitor noise
levels and ensure that both ambient sound and sound generated by recorded music is at a level that does not constitute
a nuisance.

Your windows and doors were open with loud music coming from inside. It was very clear that the above condition
was not being complied with.

| remind you that non-compliance with licence permissions and conditions constitutes a breach of the Premises Licence
issued under the above legislation. Please ensure that all conditions on the licence are adhered to. It is an offence under

the Licensing Act 2003, S136(1) and (4) to carry on unauthorised licensable activities. The legislations states that: -

(1) A person commits an offence if —

53



(a) he carries on or attempts to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise than under and
in accordance with an authorisation, or
(b) he knowingly allows a licensable activity to be carried on.

(4) A person guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary conviction to imprisonment for a term not
exceeding six months or to a fine, or to both.

The highlighted breach constitutes an offence of carrying on licensable activity otherwise than under and in accordance
with an authorisation (the premises licence and the attached conditions). Please can you now ensure these breaches are
rectified with immediate effect. Police Licensing will monitor to ensure compliance and advise you that any further
breaches of your licence will result in enforcement action being taken.

| would also like to remind you of the drug swab readings that we took on the same night — | have emailed these to you
as well on Monday 14" Sept 2020.

Sink in male toilet — 2.67

Hand dryer in male toilet — 0

Hand drying in male/disabled toilet — 1.90
Ledge in male/disabled toilet — 6.29
Male/disabled toilet seat — 4.62
Male/disabled toilet roll holder — 5.94
Ladies right cubical toilet roll holder — 5.74
Lades right cubical toilet seat — 4.99
Ladies hand dryer —4.89

Ladies left cubical toilet roll holder — 5.71
Ladies left cubical toilet seat — 5.70

As stated within my email, these readings are very high — the highest | have seen at a venue and that’s even taking in to
account the night clubs. When we re visit to re test, if these results have not vastly improved, we will be left with no

other option but to call a review of your premises licence.

If there are any matters within this letter that you wish to discuss then please do not hesitate to contact us via the email
address above.

Yours sincerely,
REDACTED

Licensing Officer
Brighton & Hove Division

Sussex Police

c.c Brighton & Hove City Council Licensing Team — via email.

54



Copy of letter sent on 19" Dec 2020 to Said Pascal MADJOUDJ with second drug swab
results.

Police Station
John Street
Brighton

BN2 OLA

Tel: 01273 404535 ext. 550808

Email: brighton.licensing@sussex.pnn.police.uk
19/12/2020

Mr Said MADJOUDJ
REDACTED

Dear Said MADJOUDJ

Our records show that you are the Designated Premises Licence Holder and Premise Licence Holder for Pascal’s Bistro
Bar 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue Hove BN3 2LT.

As you are aware | attended last night in the company of licensing officer REDACTED from Brighton & Hove County
Council were a licensing check was carried out and the re testing of the drug swabbing.

The results of the drug swabbing are as follows;
| have included last times score, latest score are in red / amber

Sink in male toilet —2.67,<5.14

Hand dryer in male toilet — 0, < 5.34

Hand drying in male/disabled toilet — 1.90 < 5.81
Ledge in male/disabled toilet —6.29 < 6.34
Male/disabled toilet seat —4.62 < 6.30
Male/disabled toilet roll holder —5.94 < 6.74
Ladies right cubical toilet roll holder —5.74 <
Lades right cubical toilet seat —4.99, <

Ladies hand dryer —4.89 <

Ladies left cubical toilet roll holder — 5.71 < 5.96
Ladies left cubical toilet seat — 5.70 <

As you can see the majority of your readings are substantially higher than the time of my last visit and show no overall
improvement.

Readings of 4.00 and above are estimated to relate to microgram amounts of contamination being transferred to the
sample media. This level of contamination is not generally experienced in any other environment than somewhere that
has been in direct contact with a bulk amount of the source narcotic, i.e. this level is not generally experienced as
background contamination or through incidental cross contamination by being in close contact with other contaminated
areas or persons.

What this means is very recently people have consumed the drugs using these areas.

55



You have very high drug readings throughout the venue which need to be drastically reduced.

What we would normally suggest in situations like this is you need to make the area less user friendly for drug taking.
Remove flat surfaces if possible and if not cover them with a material that would not make it possible for them to snort
drugs of them. You could also increase your toilet checks and make the patrons aware that the toilets will be checked on
a regular basis.

I will have to consult with my supervision to ascertain what the next stage will be and | will be in touch in due course but
you have our e-mail address if you wish to discuss the results in the interim.

Yours sincerely,

REDACTED

Licensing Police Officer

Brighton & Hove Division

c.c Brighton & Hove City Council Licensing Team.

c.c REDACTED
c.c Pascal’s Bistro Bar 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue Hove BN3 2LT.

56



Copy of further to email sent on 23" Dec 2020 to Said Pascal MADJOUDJ following the
second drug swab results.

From: Brighton Licensing

Sent: 23 December 2020 11:24

To: REDACTED

Cc: REDACTED

Subject: Final Warning - Sussex Police

Dear Pascal,
c.c REDACTED Brighton & Hove City Council Licensing.

We are emailing you today in your position of Designated Premises Supervisor and Premises Licence Holder of Pascal’s
Bistro, 6 Queens Place, Hove, BN3 2LT.

Further to the email sent to you on 19" Dec 2020 from REDACTED in relation to the recent drug readings, we have had a
conversation with supervision and on their advice, issuing you with a final warning in line with our stepped approach.

You have had two high drug readings and also COVID compliance concerns. Normally we would call you in for a meeting
but due to COVID this is not possible.

As part of this formal warning, we kindly ask that you forward us an action plan and your drugs policy detailing how
you’re going to address the issue of persons using your premises to consume drugs.

I’'m sure you may have heard the term “County Lines” — this is when drug dealers operate outside of the city such as
London and use other persons to courier in and sell drugs within Brighton & Hove. Often the persons they use locally are
minors who are groomed in to becoming dealers. It’s because of this and the effects drugs has on a person that we take
this issue very seriously.

You will be subject to further checks and unless we see a vast improvement in the drug readings, we will be left with no
other option but to launch a review of your premises licence which could result in it being revoked.

If we could ask that you send us your drug policy and the action plan by 31 Dec 2020 please.
Should you have any queries in relation to anything within this email, please do not hesitate top contact us.
Kind Regards

REDACTED
Police Licensing Officer

Brighton & Hove Licensing Unit : John Street, Brighton
Telephone: 01273 404 535 Ext: 550826 Mobile: REDACTED

57



Copy of letter sent to Said Pascal MADJOUDJ on 15 April 2021 following COVID breaches.

Police Station
John Street
Brighton

BN2 OLA

Tel: 01273 404535 ext. 550808

Email: brighton.licensing@sussex.pnn.police.uk
15/04/2021

Said Pascal MADJOUDIJ
REDACTED

Dear Mr MADJOUDJ
The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Steps) (England) Regulations 2021
RE: Pascals Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT

Our records show that you are the Holder of the Premises Licence and Designated Premise Supervisor. | write with
reference to the above premises where Police Licensing had cause to attend the premise at 20.00 on 15/04/2021 due to
reports being made that there were persons seated inside your restaurant eating and drinking whilst seated at tables.

As you are fully aware when myself and my colleague attended you had 2 tables inside seated, 1 table of 2 people and a
larger table of people, possibly of 6 people having a celebration near the bar.

| personally spoke with you, you then informed the customers they had to move outside, the excuse you offered me was
that they had booked ages ago.

Please read the below regulation that you have failed to comply with

In relation to a breach of a Step 2 restriction imposed by regulation 7 and Part 2 of Schedule 2, paragraph 9(1)
(Restrictions on service of food and drink for consumption on the premises - applies to business or service listed in
paragraph 13(4), or is carried on from, or provided at, premises of a kind specified in paragraph 13(4)):

- Failed, without reasonable excuse, to close the premises, or part(s) of the premises, in which food or drink
are provided for consumption on the premises; and/ or

- Fadiled, without reasonable excuse, to cease providing food or drink for consumption on the premises

- Failed, without reasonable excuse, to cease carrying on a business/providing a service other than as
permitted by paragraph 9(2)(a), 9(2)(b), or the exceptions listed in paragraphs 10 and 11

Please note the penalties for not complying with the above regulation which would apply in this case.

Amount of Penalty and period to pay
In the case of a fixed penalty notice issued in respect of a business restriction offence, the amount of the fixed penalty to
be specified under regulation 12(5)(c) is—

a) £1,000, if the fixed penalty notice is the first one issued to the person in respect of a business restriction
offence;

58



b) £2,000, if the fixed penalty notice is the second one issued to the person in respect of a business restriction

offence;
c) £4,000, if the fixed penalty notice is the third one issued to the person in respect of a business restriction

offence;
d) £10,000, if the fixed penalty notice is the fourth one, or any subsequent one, issued to the person in respect of a
business restriction offence.

| verbally informed you that that this was your absolute last chance to get the current Regulations correct and that if you
were found with customers siting inside eating and drinking you would be issued with a £1000 fine.

If there are any matters within this letter that you wish to discuss then please do not hesitate to contact us via the email
address above.

Yours sincerely,

REDACTED

Licensing Police Officer

Brighton & Hove Division

c.c Brighton & Hove City Council Licensing Team.

c.c Pascals Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place Second Avenue Hove BN3 2LT
c.c REDACTED

59



Copy of email sent on 03" June 2021 to Said Pascal MADJOUDIJ with third drug swab results.

From: Brighton Licensing
Sent: 03 June 2021 12:22

To: REDACTED

Subject: Drug Reading Results

Dear Pascal,
Below are the results from the drug swabs that REDACTED took on 28" May 2021.

SINK'IN MALE TOILET — COCAINE 5.17

HAND DRYER IN MALE TOILET — COCAINE 5.87

HAND DRYING IN DISABLED TOILET — COCAINE 5.90
LEDGE IN DISABLED TOILET — COCAINE 6.20
DISABLED TOILET SEAT — COCAINE 2.62

DISABLED TOILET ROLL HOLDER — COCAINE 4.90
LADIES RIGHT CUBICAL TOILET ROLL HOLDER - 00.00
LADES RIGHT CUBICAL TOILET SEAT — COCAINE 00.00
LADIES HAND DRYER — COCAINE 00.00

LADIES LEFT CUBICAL TOILET ROLL HOLDER — COCAINE 00.00
LADIES LEFT CUBICAL TOILET SEAT — COCAINE 00.00

Although we have seen zero trace in the ladies, we continue to see high results in the male and disabled toilets. We will
be holding a meeting with our supervision to talk through the results and to get their steer on how we plan to move
forward with the issues at the premises.

Kind Regards

REDACTED

REDACTED
Police Licensing Officer

Brighton & Hove Licensing Unit : John Street, Brighton
Telephone: 01273 404 535 Ext: 550826 Mobile: REDACTED

60



Witness Statement from REDACTED

SUSSEX POLICE

RESTRICTED (when complete)

WITNESS STATEMENT

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9

URN
Statement of: REDACTED
Age if under 18: 0’18 (if over 18 insert ‘over Occupation: Police Constable
18’)
This statement (consisting of page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge

and belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have
wilfully stated anything in it, which | know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Signature:  REDACTED Date 20/07/2021

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear)

| first attended Pascals Bistro 6 Queens Place Hove BN3 3LT in the capacity of a Police Constable working as
a Licensing Officer on 14" August 2020 alongside with my colleague REDACTED and representatives from
Brighton and Hove Council. On this occasion during the midst of Coronavirus the venue was very busy both
inside and out. Track and trace was available and Said Pascal MADJOUDJ informed us the capacity inside
was 51 but it was obvious they had far more customers inside than this, some male groups of customers
appeared to be very loud and on the verge of being intoxicated in my opinion. It was noted there was one
SIA working on the door at the premises who was not displaying his badge which he is supposed to do.

On 11™ September | attended Pascals Bistro in the company of REDACTED to carry out drug swabbing of the
premise, the results are as follows

Male Toilets

Sink- Cocaine 2.67

Top of Hand Dryer — 0

Disabled Toilet

Ledge inside cubicle area — Cocaine 6.29

Toilet Seat — Cocaine 4.62

61

MG 11(T)



Toiler Roll Holder — Cocaine 5.94

Ladies Toilet

Right Cubicle Toilet roll holder — Cocaine 5.74
Right Toilet Seat — Cocaine 4.99

Left cubicle toilet roll holder — Cocaine 5.71
Left Toilet Seat — Cocaine 5.70

Top of Hand dryer — Cocaine 4.89

| am aware that REDACTED e-mailed Mr MADJOUDIJ the results with ideas and actions that could be taken
to reduce the high scores the next time.

The next time | visited Pascals was 4™ November 2020 at 22.15 in the company of REDACTED carrying out
post lockdown checks and the venue was not open. On arrival the lights were on and persons could be seen
seated within including Mr MADJOUDJ who according to my notes had no mask on, he stated that the
persons inside where staff including a door staff person. He also informed us that moving forward he would
be operating for takeout food. We reminded him of his responsibilities of how he could operate under the
Covid restrictions that were in place at the time.

| further visited Pascals on 2" December 2012 at 20:12 in the company of REDACTED. Mr MADJOUD)
advised us he was only serving alcohol to customers who were having food and he was allowing guests to
stay a further hour after they had eaten. We identified a group of people that were sitting at the front in
the outside area who seemed to only be drinking and again in my opinion seemed quite intoxicated, we
were advised that they had eaten already by Mr MADJOUDJ who we noted was not wearing a face mask
again having previously been told to so unless exempt.

| next attended Pascals on the 18" December in the company Of REDACTED, Trading Standards and
Licensing Officer from Brighton and Hove Council.

| carried out the second round of drug testing and can show the results as follows
Male Toilets

Sink — Cocaine 5.14

Top of Hand Dryer — Cocaine 5.34

Disable Toilet

Top of Hand dryer — Cocaine 5.81

Ledge inside cubicle area - Cocaine 6.34
Toilet Seat —Cocaine 6.34

Toilet roll holder — Cocaine — Cocaine 6.74
Ladies Toilets

Right Cubicle toilet roll holder — Cocaine 1.30

Right toilet seat 0

62



Left Cubicle toilet roll holder — Cocaine 5.96
Left cubicle toilet seat — Cocaine 4.22
Top of Hand dryer — Cocaine 1.55

It was noted on this visit that there was 1 SIA door supervisor working, Challenge 25 posters were visible
but the CCTV was displaying an incorrect time, this being 1 hour and 22 minutes fast

Mr MADJOUDJ informed me he allowed 2-3 hours for people when in the restaurant | gave him my opinion
that this would acceptable if they were having a 3 course dinner but not if they were only having 1 course
and he had to be mindful of what was reasonable under the Covid restrictions at the time.

Further to this | observed that Mr MADJOUD)J and staff were wearing a mixture of masks and visors and
people were seated in the venue, again in my opinion the intoxication level of certain groups may have
been on the higher side.

On 15th April 2021 | attended Pascals following reports that Covid restrictions were not being complied
with and that persons were sitting inside the premises eating. | observed on my visit 2 tables that were
seated inside, 1 table of 2 and a larger table of possibly 6 people, when | spoke with Mr MADJOUDJ he
informed me that they had taken the booking prior the restrictions and moved the table to an outside area.
Following this | sent Mr MADJOUDIJ a Covid breach letter.

On 28" May 2021 at 22.00 | re attended Pascals to carry out a further drug swabbing with colleagues from
Brighton and Hove Council, the results are as follows,

Male Toilets

Sink - Cocaine 5.17

Top of Hand dryer — Cocaine 5.84

Disabled Toilet

Top of Hand dryer — Cocaine 5.90

Ledge inside cubicle area — Cocaine 6.20

Toilet Seat — Cocaine 2.62

Toilet roll holder — Cocaine 4.90

No drugs were detected in the female toilets on this visit.

On the morning of 27™ May 2021 | attended Pascals Restaurant having received an email from a Sgt in CID
that they were having great difficulties in obtaining the CCTV from the restaurant. On my arrival Mr
MADJOUDJ was working in the kitchen but came through to see me and | explained to him that my
colleagues had previously attended on two occasions to obtain CCTV but felt they had been “fobbed off”. |
was aware that one colleague had been told by Mr MADJOUDIS staff that there was no CCTV as a builder
had cut through the wire and another colleague who had visited later had been told by the staff that only
Mr MADJOUDIJ could help but made no mention of the CCTV being broken.

Mr MADJOUDJ immediately apologised for his staff and told me he had told the staff off but could offer no
explanation as to why they had said what they had. | asked him to burn his CCTV off for the date and time
required, this being between 23" May 22.30 leading into 24" May at 00.30. Mr MADJOUDIJ could not load
the CCTV on his phone as apparently there was limited internet and it would not load, it was at this time he

63



decided to tell me that his CCTV only stored recordings for 1 day, which | found astonishing, | even recall
asking him what was the point in that. Mr MADJOUDIJ replied that CCTV was not one of his licensing
conditions and he had it just for one day in case there was a problem there and then. | have visited
hundreds of premises with CCTV and have never come across a venue purposely only recording for 1 day
and to be honest | personally questioned the truthfulness if it. It was at this time | felt | was left with no
other option than to seize the CCTV hard drive and take it back to the police station so at least we had the
box secure.

On 21% June 2021 at 15.15 | received a phone call from a gentleman claiming to be doing work for Mr
MADJOUDJ and wanted to know how to make the toilets less inviting for drug takers, | unfortunately didn’t
catch the man’s name but he told me that he had installed the bathroom and that the toilet seats had cost
a lot of money which was something similar to what Mr MADJOUDJ had said on one of my previous visits,
he then have me the impression that he did a lot of maintenance work for Mr MADJOUDJ. | did explain that
this was a bit late in the day as it was 9 months after the first high drug readings and general advice given
had been given to Mr MADJOUD! to try and help eradicate the problem. | further went on to give advice
such a removing flat surfaces and or moving and dryers/ toilet roll holders etc. This male also explained that
the CCTV system was going to be upgraded to which | explained our basic expectation. Our basic
expectation is to record all internal and external areas and to retain the data for 31 days, to have the
correct date and time, to have some available on site to be able to use the system at all time and be able to
download or send us the CCTV in a timely manner.

REDACTED 20/07/21

64



Summary of GBH incident

Occurrence Date & Time: Saturday 22" May 2021 at Midnight
Occurrence Locations: Pascal’s, 6 Queens Place Hove and Victoria Grove Hove

Summary:

Police responded to a report that a male had been assaulted in a public space on Victoria Grove, Hove by REDACTED. Of
note REDACTED is not connected to the incident as in neither parties had been inside prior. Witnesses to the assault are
customers of REDACTED that were sitting within the outside seating area.

In interview the aggressor states he had an altercation with the victim in Pascal’s and whilst inside the venue punched
the victim once to the face feeling he was himself about to be attacked. This seems to be over a comment relating to
drugs. The aggressor states he was asked to go to the toilet with others and believes it was to take cocaine. He then
mentions to the victim his noise is red and this is when the whole incident starts with the victim receiving his first punch
to the face. At this point security intervene and ejected both of them.

Witness in REDACTED were alerted to the sound of males yelling in the street. They state to officers that both the victim
and aggressor were in Pascal’s. REDACTED. During the course of the evening an argument has occurred and both were
ejected by security. The victim has approached the witnesses saying he is unsure why the other male was being
aggressive. The witnesses describe the victim as being intoxicated. Soon after the aggressor approaches the victim and
punches him for a second time which resulted in the victim falling backwards and striking his head with force on the
pavement.

Resulted Injures are consistent with an offence of Grievous Bodily Harm (GBH) and of which the aggressor has pleaded
guilty at court and is now awaiting sentencing.

65



66



APPENDIX C
JO CON ENDS 09.07.21 VALID PCD & PPN (B)

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 01 July 2021 10:04

To: EHL Safety <EHL.Safety@brighton-hove.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: Pascals Bistro Bar 6 Queens Place, Hove, BN3 2LT Licence Review

| have read the advice of REDACTED TEXT and, as a resident of REDACTED TEXT can say that |
agree with his observations.

No proper regard has been paid to the Covid regulations in any of the lockdowns; | have seen people
in the premises obviously drinking rather than working on a number of occasions when the premises
should have been shut.

The level of drug taking does not surprise me at all. Sometimes people are dealing in the street
REDACTED TEXT and drunkenness is common and seems not to be controlled by the management.

The noise can be really loud at night and his licence allows his terrace to be open to 1am at
weekends, which is far too late for our residential area.

Frankly, Pascal just behaves as if rules and regulations are for other people and, like REDACTED
TEXT | have no confidence that he will stick to any conditions that might be imposed.

Sincerely
REDACTED TEXT

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 06 July 2021 10:10

To: EHL Safety <EHL.Safety@brighton-hove.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: Pascals Bistro Bar 6 Queens Place, Hove, BN3 2LT Licence Review

I am a bit puzzled. | would have thought that disregard of Covid regulations and that the premises are
the venue for drug taking and may therefore be connected with the drug dealing that | have seen
outside REDACTED TEXT had a lot to do with crime, public safety and prevention of public nuisance.

Best wishes
REDACTED TEXT

67



From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 06 July 2021 22:31

To: EHL Safety <EHL.Safety@brighton-hove.gov.uk>
Subject: Licensing Review - Pascals Bistro Bar

JO CON ENDS 09.07.21 VALID PPN (D)

Dear REDACTED TEXT,

With regards to the licensing review for Pascals Bistro Bar of 6, Queens Place, Hove BN3 2LT. |
would like to put forward following points to be considered at the hearing;

The original business of over 10 year ago, was a well regarded restaurant of the local area.

1. The business was strictly a restaurant with no music or casual bar service.
2. Over the years, with a change in the trading name, the boundary of the business operation
and licensing changed;
o Operating as a simple bar
Regular events / private parties and loud music
Operation and serving tables on the pavement
Large screens showing sport programmes
A significant turn-over of staff and general managers.
Licensing hours extended to after midnight.
3. This clear change from the original business has brought about the following continued
nuisance to the local community and close neighbours.
o The casual nature of the venue attracts larger crowds of patrons only consuming
alcohol
o The management have little control over the consumption of excessive alcohol
o [Excessive crowds are permitted to gather on the premises against COVID
restrictions.
o Excessive crowds spill onto the pavement area blocking the thoroughfare
o No consideration is given to the noise generated by these large crowds.
o Patrons were permitted to visit the indoor premises whilst national restriction forbade
such activity
o Patrons are freely encouraged to park illegally either at the front of the premises or
blocking the adjacent Mews.
o The owner has made several unauthorised alterations to a listed building without
planning permission
o These alterations are in breach of building regulations
o The alternations and additional doorway significantly increase the radiated noise for
adjacent neighbours
o Business rubbish is dumped in the adjacent Mews and Church Road Lane.
Business rubbish has been dumped in communal bins
o The building fabric and fitting are not maintained including drainage and kitchen
extraction equipment.

O O O O O

o

In general, these points only emphasise the owner has no consideration or respect for the local
community and neighbourhood, continuing to operate outside the law clearly demonstrated by his
attitude towards repeated grievances.

With regards,

REDACTED TEXT

68


mailto:EHL.Safety@brighton-hove.gov.uk

JO CON ENDS 09.07.21 VALID PCD & PS (E)

Dear licensing team,

We are writing in response to the review of license for Pascals Bistro Bar (pka La
Fourchette) 2021/01792/LAREV 6 Queens Place, Hove as ward councillors for
Brunswick and Adelaide which the premises is within. We note the unusual
circumstances of this being a review requested by Sussex Police on the grounds of
Prevention of Crime and Disorder.

Our concerns with the license are as follows:
Prevention of crime and disorder

This premises is within the Cumulative impact zonez1, recognising the impact that the
number of licensed premises has on the immediate area.

The immediate area which this premises is within is close to a large residential
population. Residents regularly report to us as councillors that they have been kept up at
night or woken up at night by drunk and disorderly behaviour taking place in this area.

In the surrounding area, 40% of crimes reported between June 2020 — May 2021 relate
to anti-social behaviourz. It should also be considered that the impact of anti-social
behaviour makes the area unsafe for residents and visitors. As councillors we regularly
receive complaints from residents in the surrounding streets regarding noise from the
number of licensed premises in the area.

Public safety
The Brunswick and Adelaide ward is densely populated. This density means that the

licensing authority must be mindful of the undue impact of licence applications that have
the potential to impact so many people at once.

Drinking outside licensed venues in this area in 2016 tragically led to a death of a young
man who was killed under a truck outside the Temple Bar public house. A premises
serving alcohol on a major road into the city until 1am on some days can

1https://present.brighton-
hove.gov.uk/Published/C00000117/M00005639/A100050736/520160310125641_008564 0036763 _SolLP2015
ChangesAccepted210116.docA.ps.pdf

2 https://www.police.uk/pu/your-area/sussex-police/adelaide/?tab=Statistics

69



only add to this danger. This road is busy and has traffic throughout all hours of the day.

The neighbourhood already faces some stark consequences for access to alcohol.
According to the Brighton & Hove Public Health Framework for Assessing Alcohol
Licensing Police recorded alcohol related incidents are the 8t highest in the city.3

There is a clear and well-evidenced relationship between alcohol consumption and
antisocial behaviour and crime.

In addition, discussions we have had previously from nearby residents have raised
concerns regarding the opening hours of the terrace and access to the pavement for
people with disabilities or buggies due to the pavement licensing.

We also understand that this has been raised by Sussex Police as a result of drug
swabbing, assault and non-compliance with covid-19 measures. We have also had

communication from residents and seen ourselves evidence which would back up non-
compliance; including lack of social distancing and tables close together.

We would be grateful if this could be taken into consideration with the review
Best wishes
REDACTED TEXT

3 https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/sites/brighton-
hove.gov.uk/files/Public%20Health%20Framework%20for%20assessing%20Alcohol%20Licensing%20Annual%2
OReport%202018.pdf

70


https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/sites/brighton-hove.gov.uk/files/Public%20Health%20Framework%20for%20assessing%20Alcohol%20Licensing%20Annual%20Report%202018.pdf
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/sites/brighton-hove.gov.uk/files/Public%20Health%20Framework%20for%20assessing%20Alcohol%20Licensing%20Annual%20Report%202018.pdf
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/sites/brighton-hove.gov.uk/files/Public%20Health%20Framework%20for%20assessing%20Alcohol%20Licensing%20Annual%20Report%202018.pdf

2 https://www.police.uk/pu/your-area/sussex-police/adelaide/?tab=Statistics

Crime levels overview
for the last 12 months (from Jun 2020 to May 2021)

Last 12 months Last 3 years
Crime per Month
200 -
100
o
Jun  Jul Aug Sep Oct Mov Dec Jsn Feb Mar Apr May

2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021

View as a list

Crimes by outcomes

Crime types description
for the last 12 months (from Jun 2020 to May 2021)

Last 12 months Last 3 years

Latest month

Anti-soeisl behaviour [
Violence and sexual offences [T
Other theft [
Public order N
Crminal damage and arson ||
Bicycle theft 10
‘fehicle crime [0
Drugs
Burglary
Shoplitting 11
Robbery [
Ciher crime |
Theft from the persan |
Possession of weapons |
1] 100

for the last 12 months (from Jun 2020 to May 2021)

Latest month

Last 12 months

Last 3 years

N other

- Unable to prosecute
suspect

- Further investigation is not
in the public interest

- Status update unavailable

- Local resolution

Formal action is not in the
public interest

- Investigation complete; no
suspect identified

- Under investigation

Awaiting court outcome

- Court result unavailable
- Offender given a caution

- Action to be taken by
another organisation

71


https://www.police.uk/pu/your-area/sussex-police/adelaide/?tab=Statistics

72



P@W(ND‘ A D Safer Communities

Licensing Team
& & Brighton & Hove City Council
2" Floor Bartholomew House

Bl'icg.htocn & Hﬁve Bartholomew Square
ity ouac Brighton

BNI [JP
REDACTED TEXT Date: 30 June 2021
Licensing Authority

f: 102 REP/EH
Brighton & Hove City Council R
Bartholomew House Phone: REDACTED TEXT
ST T L Email:  REDACTED TEXT
Brighton
BNI IJP

JO CON ENDS 09.07.21 VALID PCD, PS & PPN (A)
Dear REDACTED TEXT

Licensing Act 2003
Representation in support of an application by Sussex Police seeking a review of the

Premises License - 2021/01792/LAREY
Pascals Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place, Hove BN3 2L T

| write to make a representation on behalf of the Council’s Licensing Team, in their capacity as a
responsible authority, in relation to the above application made by Sussex Police seeking to review
the Premises Licence for the Pascals Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place, Hove BN3 2LT.

This representation is made as the Licensing Team have concerns that the licensing objective of the
Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and Prevention of Public Nuisance are not being

upheld.

The history of this matter is explained in more detail in the application of Sussex Police.

On 3 August 2020, following a complaint received that the premises were not complying with Covid
restrictions, an email was sent providing advice/guidance. A copy of this email can be seen at

Appendix A.

On 17 August 2020, following a visit made to the premises on 14 August 2020, a further email was
sent. A copy of this email can be seen at Appendix B and Mr Madjoudj response dated 21 August

2020 at Appendix C.

On || September 2020, following a re-visit carried out at the premises on 14 September 2020, a
further warning was sent. A copy of this email can be seen at Appendix D.

On 2 December 2020, a further visit was carried to the premises and again issues were found. On
5 December 2020, a further warning was sent to the premises. A copy of this email can be seen at

www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

73



Appendix E. On |0 December 2020, a response was sent from the Bar Manager. A copy of this
response can be seen at Appendix F.

On 18 December 2020, | accompanied Sussex Police where they carried out drug swabbing in the
premise’s toilets. The results of these tests were given to Mr Madjoud;.

Following a visit conducted by Sussex Police on 15 April 2021, on 23 April 2021, a further warning

was sent relating to Covid restrictions being breached. A copy of this email can be seen at Appendix
G.

On 28 May 2021, a visit was carried out at the premises where Sussex Police again conducted drug
swabbing. Again, these results were given to Mr Madjoud;.

Photos of the premises obstructing the public highway, with tables and chairs, without any consent
or permission issued by Highways can be seen at Appendix H.

| have little confidence in Mr Madjoud] as the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises
Supervisor in running the premises. Despite substantial Officer interaction with this premises,
including visits, advice and warnings, it is my opinion that the premises is poorly run, there are
breaches of the premises licence and the licensing objectives are not being upheld. [ believe if the
premises licence remains in place, there will be further problems occurring at the venue.

In the circumstances, | fully support the application of Sussex Police seeking the revocation of the
premises licence and consider that this is necessary to ensure that the licensing objectives of the
Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and Prevention of Public Nuisance are met.

Yours sincerely

REDACTED TEXT

REDACTED TEXT
Licensing Officer
Licensing Team

Appendix A — Email sent dated 3 August 2020
Appendix B — Email sent dated 14 August 2020
Appendix C — Email received dated 21 August 2020
Appendix D — Email sent dated [4 September 2020
Appendix E — Email sent dated 5 December 2020
Appendix F — Email received dated 10 December 2020
Appendix G — Email sent dated 23 April 2021
Appendix H — Photos of highways obstruction

74



APPENDIX A

From: REDACTED TEXT
Sent: 03 August 2020 16:06

To: REDACTED TEXT
Subject: La Fourchette, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT - 2020/16694/LICCOV/EH

Importance: High

Dear Said Pascal Madjoudj

Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (No. 2) (England) Regulations 2020
Keeping Workers and Customers Safe during Covid 19
La Fourchette, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT

We have received a complaint that you are not complying with social distancing in your premises and
outside.

You are responsible for taking all reasonable steps to ensure that everyone, including staff, customers and
delivery personnel entering your premises are not exposed to Covid-19.

You must carry out a risk assessment to consider and control measures relating to Covid-19 and your

operation.
https://www.hse.gov.ulk/risk/assessment.htm.

Objective: To manage interactions at the venue resulting from service of food and drink.

Steps that will usually be needed:

e Maintaining social distancing (2m, or 1m with risk mitigation where 2m is not viable, is acceptable)
from customers when taking orders from customers.

e Using social distance markings to remind customers to maintain social distancing (2m, or 1m with
risk mitigation where 2m is not viable, is acceptable) between customers of different households or

support bubbles.

e Minimising customer self-service of food, cutlery and condiments to reduce risk of transmission.
For example, providing cutlery and condiments only when food is served.

e Encouraging contactless payments where possible and adjusting location of card readers to social
distancing guidelines (2m, or 1m with risk mitigation where 2m is not viable, is acceptable).

e Providing only disposable condiments or cleaning non-disposable condiment containers after each
use.

e Reducing the number of surfaces touched by both staff and customers. For example, asking
customers to remain at a table where possible, or to not lean on counters when collecting

takeaways.

e Encouraging contactless payments where possible and adjusting location of card readers to social
distancing guidelines (2m, or 1m with risk mitigation where 2m is not viable, is acceptable).

75



* Minimising contact between front of house workers and customers at points of service where
appropriate. For example, using screens or tables at tills and counters to maintain social distancing
guidelines (2m, or 1m with risk mitigation where 2m is not viable, is acceptable).

* Ensuring all outdoor areas, with particular regard to covered areas, have sufficient ventilation. For
example, increasing the open sides of a covered area.

Below is the latest update of guidance:

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.ulk/media/5eb96e8e86650c278b077616/working-safely-during-covid-
19-restaurants-pubs-bars-takeaway-090720i.pdf

If you wish to discuss the contents of this email | can be contacted on REDACTED TEXT

Regards

REDACTED TEXT | Fair Trading Officer & Licensing Officer (Trading Standards & Licensing), Safer
Communities

Brighton & Hove City Council, 2" Floor, Barts House, Barts Square, BN1 1JP
REDACTED TEXT

Our customer promise to you
We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things
done | We will be clear and treat you with respect

Rate your experience
We are committed to providing you services in accordance with our Customer Promise.

Please tell us about vour experiences of using Brighton & Hove City Council services. It will take no
longer than 5 minutes to complete.

CORONAVIRUS - WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:

e Get home or into work

e Blow your nose, sneeze or cough

e Eat or handle food

— NHS
£ U D

CATCHIT. BINIT. KILLIT.

Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

76



APPENDIX B

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 17 August 2020 15:57

To: REDACTED TEXT

Cc: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: Licensing Act 2003 - Warning - La Fourchette, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT -

2020/16694/LICCOV/EH
Importance: High

Dear Said Pascal Madjoudj

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) (No. 3) Regulations 2020
Licensing Act 2003 - Breach of Licence Conditions - Warning

La Fourchette, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT

Premises Licence Number: 2014/06022/LAPRMV

| am writing to you in your capacity as the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and Designated Premises
Supervisor (DPS) for the above premises concerning a complaints we have received concerning your
premises continuously causing a Public Nuisance regarding noise coming from your premises and no social

distancing measures being carried out.
| emailed you regarding these complaints on 3 August 2020 (a copy of this email can be found below).
| am also aware that my colleague, REDACTED TEXT, has also been in contact with you.

On Friday 14 August 2020 accompanied by colleagues from Police Licensing and Environmental Protection
Officer visited your premises and spoke with yourself.

At the time of our visit to your premises, there was no evidence of any social distancing measures in
place. The inside and outside area was completely fall. Customers were also on the Public Highway and
Road. You did have an SIA on duty, but he had clearly not been given any instructions or guidance from
you. | note Police Licensing also spoke to him about not complying with his SIA conditions.

| see from your risk assessment you provided to REDACTED TEXT that you were only having 51 customers at
any time, to include the inside area and terrace area. When I spoke to you, you advised that your capacity
was for 60 people. There was clearly over 100 people at the time of my visit, which consisted of over 40
people using the terrace area (not counting the customers on the Highway and Road). Your security guard
advised there was about 120 people in total, although he was not keeping count.

| also asked to see a copy of your ‘track and trace’ contact details for 14 August. You eventually produced
a piece of paper with about 5-6 names on, stating that it was difficult to keep, and what could you do if
people didn’t want to provide you with any details.

There is a higher risk of transmitting COVID-19 in premises where customers and visitors spend a longer
time in one place and potentially come into close contact with other people outside of their household. To
manage this risk you should collect details and maintain records of staff, customers and visitors.

| also carried out a licensing inspection and below are breaches of your premises licence condition:

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

77



For Public Safety:

2. To provide toughened glasses.
The outside tables were full of glasses and wine and beer bottles.

For the Prevention of Public Nuisance:

3. Licensees and staff must undertake regular inspections inside and outside the premises in order to
monitor noise levels and ensure that both ambient sound and sound generated by recorded music is at a
level that does not constitute a nuisance.

Your windows and doors were open with loud music coming from inside. It was very clear that the above
condition was not being complied with.

I remind you that non-compliance with conditions constitutes a breach of the Premises Licence issued
under the above legislation. Please ensure that all conditions on the licence are adhered to. It is an offence
under the Licensing Act 2003, S136(1) and (4) to carry on unauthorised licensable activities. The
legislations states that:-

(1) A Person commits an offence if —

(a) he carries on or attempts to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises
otherwise than under and in accordance with an authorisation, or

(b) he knowingly allows a licensable activity to be carried on.
(4) A person guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary conviction to
imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months or to an unlimited fine, or to both.

Irrespective of the permission's and restrictions attached to any premises licence, all licensed premises are
required to operate with regard to the 4 licensing objectives, which are;

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Public Safety

Prevention of Public Nuisance
Protection of Children from Harm

o ©0 O ©O

Please be aware that any enforcement action is taken in line with our Licensing Enforcement Policy which
includes, issuing of formal warnings, followed by potential prosecution. You are also reminded that at any
stage, following the grant of a premises licence, a responsible authority, such as the Police, Environmental
Health, or an interested party such as a resident living in the vicinity of the premises, may ask the Licensing
Authority to review the licence because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any of the
four licensing objectives.

In light of the above information, | am issuing you with a Warning in accordance with our Licensing
Enforcement Policy.

Please note this Authority and Sussex Police have officers monitoring the City both day and night.

A copy of this email has also been sent to the Police Licensing, Environmental Protection Team and
REDACTED TEXT

If wish discuss the above please contact me on REDACTED TEXT

Yours sincerely

78



REDACTED TEXT | Fair Trading Officer & Licensing Officer (Trading Standards & Licensing), Safer

Communities
Brighton & Hove City Council, 2" Floor, Barts House, Barts Square, BN1 1JP

T REDACTED TEXT

Our customer promise to you
We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things

done | We will be clear and treat you with respect

Rate your experience
We are committed to providing you services in accordance with our Customer Promise.

Please tell us about vour experiences of using Brighton & Hove City Council services. It will take no
longer than 5 minutes to complete.

CORONAVIRUS - WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:

¢ Get home or into work

e Blow your nose, sneeze or cough

o Eat or handle food

INHS

A @ D %

CATCHIT. BINIT. KILLIT.

Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

From: REDACTED TEXT
Sent: 03 August 2020 16:06

To: REDACTED TEXT
Subject: La Fourchette, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT - 2020/16694/LICCOV/EH

Importance: High
Dear Said Pascal Madjoudj

Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (No. 2) (England) Regulations 2020
Keeping Workers and Customers Safe during Covid 19
La Fourchette, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT

We have received a complaint that you are not complying with social distancing in your premises and
outside.

You are responsible for taking all reasonable steps to ensure that everyone, including staff, customers and
delivery personnel entering your premises are not exposed to Covid-19.

You must carry out a risk assessment to consider and control measures relating to Covid-19 and your

operation.
https://www.hse.gov.uk/risk/assessment.him.

Objective: To manage interactions at the venue resulting from service of food and drink.

Steps that will usually be needed:

79



* Maintaining social distancing (2m, or 1m with risk mitigation where 2m is not viable, is acceptable)
from customers when taking orders from customers.

® Using social distance markings to remind customers to maintain social distancing (2m, or 1m with
risk mitigation where 2m is not viable, is acceptable) between customers of different households or
support bubbles.

* Minimising customer self-service of food, cutlery and condiments to reduce risk of transmission.
For example, providing cutlery and condiments only when food is served.

* Encouraging contactless payments where possible and adjusting location of card readers to social
distancing guidelines (2m, or 1m with risk mitigation where 2m is not viable, is acceptable).

* Providing only disposable condiments or cleaning non-disposable condiment containers after each
use.

* Reducing the number of surfaces touched by both staff and customers. For example, asking
customers to remain at a table where possible, or to not lean on counters when collecting
takeaways.

* Encouraging contactless payments where possible and adjusting location of card readers to social
distancing guidelines (2m, or 1m with risk mitigation where 2m is not viable, is acceptable).

* Minimising contact between front of house workers and customers at points of service where

appropriate. For example, using screens or tables at tills and counters to maintain social distancing
guidelines (2m, or 1m with risk mitigation where 2m is not viable, is acceptable).

* Ensuring all outdoor areas, with particular regard to covered areas, have sufficient ventilation. For
example, increasing the open sides of a covered area.

Below is the latest update of guidance:

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5eb96e8e86650c278b077616/working-safelv-during-covid-19-
restaurants-pubs-bars-takeaway-090720i.ndf

If you wish to discuss the contents of this email | can be contacted on REDACTED TEXT

Regards

REDACTED TEXT | Fair Trading Officer & Licensing Officer (Trading Standards & Licensing), Safer
Communities

Brighton & Hove City Council, 2" Floor, Barts House, Barts Square, BN1 13P
REDACTED TEXT

Our customer promise to you
We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things
done | We will be clear and treat you with respect

Rate your experience
We are committed to providing you services in accordance with our Customer Promise.

Please tell us about your experiences of using Brighton & Hove City Council services. It will take no
longer than 5 minutes to complete.

80



CORONAVIRUS - WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:

¢ Get home or into work

e Blow your nose, sneeze or cough

e Eat or handle food

i =
@ O ¢

CATCHIT. BINIT. KILLIT.

Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

81



APPENDIX C

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 21 August 2020 12:44

To: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: Licence and Covid Pascal Madjoudj

This email originates from outside of Brighton & Hove City Council. Please think carefully before opening
attachments or clicking on links.

Good Afternoon REDACTED TEXT.

Thank you for your email.

Since your visit we have new security for a Friday and Saturday night to help monitor the number of customers on
the premises.

We have implemented a maximum number of people 75 including the terrace with 8 on the highway which the
tables will be removed on a Friday and Saturday between 8-830pm to discourage people from gathering on the

public high way.
Also we have another manager and door supervisor who will help implement the new changes.

Kind Regards

Pascal Madjoud;j

Sent from my iPhone

82



APPENDIX D

From: REDACTED TEXT
Sent: 14 September 2020 13:35

To: REDACTED TEXT
Subject: Licensing Act 2003 - Final Warning - La Fourchette (aka Pascals), 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3

2LT - 2020/21786/COVIDC/EH
Importance: High

Dear Said Pascal Madjoudj

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) (No. 3) Regulations 2020
Licensing Act 2003 - Breach of Licence Conditions — Final Warning

La Fourchette (aka Pascals), 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT
Premises Licence Number: 2014/06022/LAPRMV

| am writing to you in your capacity as the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and Designated Premises
Supervisor (DPS) for the above premises regarding a re-visit carried out at your premises on Friday 11
September 2020 with Police Licensing and Environmental Protection Officers and spoke with yourself.

In my previous email you were informed of specific areas to improve in your business, provided with the
relevant guidance and instructed to undertake/review a/your risk assessment in order to protect your staff

and customers from the risk of COVID-19.

Although you had provided my colleague REDACTED TEXT with an updated risk assessment, it was noted that
insufficient action had been taken following my advice and further improvements are needed within your
business to protect staff and customers from COVID-19.

Also at the time of our visit it was witnessed that the intoxication level of some of your customers was
unacceptable. There was vertical drinking and lack of social distancing of customers which was not being

managed by you or your staff.

| also noted that you were still breaching your premises licence conditions:
Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

For Public Safety:

2. To provide toughened glasses.
The outside tables were full of glasses and wine and beer bottles.

For the Prevention of Public Nuisance:

3. Licensees and staff must undertake regular inspections inside and outside the premises in order to
monitor noise levels and ensure that both ambient sound and sound generated by recorded music is at a

level that does not constitute a nuisance.
Your windows and doors were open with loud music coming from inside. It was very clear that the above

condition was not being complied with.

| remind you that non-compliance with conditions constitutes a breach of the Premises Licence issued
under the above legislation. Please ensure that all conditions on the licence are adhered to. It is an offence

83



under the Licensing Act 2003, $136(1) and (4) to carry on unauthorised licensable activities. The
legislations states that:-

(1) A Person commits an offence if -

(a) he carries on or attempts to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise than
under and in accordance with an authorisation, or

(b) he knowingly allows a licensable activity to be carried on.
(4) A person guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary conviction to imprisonment for
a term not exceeding six months or to an unlimited fine, or to both.

| also would like to remind you that it is an offence under $1410f the Licensing Act 2003 to sell alcohol to a
person who is drunk;

(1) A person to whom subsection (2) applies commits an offence if, on relevant premises, he
knowingly—

(a) sells or attempts to sell alcohol to a person who is drunk, or

(b) allows alcohol to be sold to such a person.
(4) A person guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary

Irrespective of the permission's and restrictions attached to any premises licence, all licensed premises are
required to operate with regard to the 4 licensing objectives, which are;

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Public Safety

Prevention of Public Nuisance
Protection of Children from Harm

O © ©0 O

Please be aware that any enforcement action is taken in line with our Licensing Enforcement Policy which
includes, issuing of formal warnings, followed by potential prosecution. You are also reminded that at any
stage, following the grant of a premises licence, a responsible authority, such as the Police, Environmental
Health, or an interested party such as a resident living in the vicinity of the premises, may ask the Licensing
Authority to review the licence because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any of the
four licensing objectives.

In light of the above information, | am issuing you with a Final Warning in accordance with our Licensing
Enforcement Policy.

Please note this Authority and Sussex Police have officers monitoring the City both day and night.

A copy of this email has also been sent to the Police Licensing, Environmental Protection Team and
REDACTED TEXT

If wish discuss the above please contact me on REDACTED TEXT

Yours sincerely

REDACTED TEXT | Fair Trading Officer & Licensing Officer (Trading Standards & Licensing), Safer
Communities

Brighton & Hove City Council, 2" Floor, Barts House, Barts Square, BN1 1JP
REDACTED TEXT

Our customer promise to you

84



We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things
done | We will be clear and treat you with respect

Rate your experience
We are committed to providing you services in accordance with our Customer Promise.

Please tell us about vour experiences of using Brighton & Hove City Council services. It will take no
longer than 5 minutes to complete.

CORONAVIRUS - WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:

e Get home or into work

e Blow your nose, sneeze or cough

o Eat or handle food

P ==
@ O &

CATCHIT. BINIT. KILLIT.

Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

85



APPENDIX E

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 05 December 2020 16:31

To: REDACTED TEXT

Cc: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: FINAL WARNING - Pascals Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT -

2020/49244/COVIDC/EH
Importance: High

Dear Said Pascal Madjoud]

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (All Tiers) (England) Regulations 2020
The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Wearing of Face Coverings in a Relevant Place) (England)

Regulations 2020
Pascals Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT

| am writing to you following a visit to your premises accompanied by colleagues from Police Licensing, PC

REDACTED TEXT and REDACTED TEXT from Environmental Protection, on Wednesday 2 December 2020. At

the time of our visit we witnessed that you were breaching the above Regulations. Whereby, you were not
wearing a face coverings, which you have been advised about on previous visits.

By law, staff and customers of venues that provide food and drink will be required to wear a face covering
in the following circumstances, unless they have an exemption.

Businesses must remind customers and staff to wear a face covering where required (for example by
displaying posters).

Face Coverings — STAFF
It is compulsory for retail, leisure and hospitality staff to wear a face covering in areas that:

e are open to the public and;
o where they come or are likely to come within close contact of a member of the public.

This includes shops, supermarkets, bars, pubs, restaurants, cafes, banks, estate agents, post offices and the
public areas of hotels and hostels.

The new requirement for hospitality staff to wear face coverings only applies to consumer-facing staff and
not ‘back of house’ kitchens or office areas of hospitality premises. Staff working ‘back of house” will only
have to put on a mask if they move into public customer-facing areas of the business e.g. staff will need to
wear a face covering when moving from the back kitchen into the seating area where customers may be

present.

for COVIN-1S secure

tf busmesses have taken steps in line with Health and Safety Executive guidance for COVID-19 secure
workplaces to create a physical barrier between workers and members of the publlc then staff behmd the
barrler WI” not be required to wear a face covering. However, you are urged to discuss the installation of
any screens/barriers with you inspecting officer before you spend money on something that may not be

suitable.

Businesses already have legal obligations to protect their staff under existing employment law. This means
taking appropriate steps to provide a safe working environment, which may include providing face coverings
where appropriate, alongside other mitigations such as screens and social distancing Businesses should
advise workers how to use face coverings safely.

86



Face Covering - CUSTOMERS
Customers must wear a face covering at all times when in premises providing hospitality (bars, pubs,
restaurants, cafes), except when seated at a table to eat or drink.

Businesses should take reasonable steps to encourage customer compliance for example through in-store
communications or notices at the entrance. If necessary, police can issue fines to members of the public for
non-compliance. Businesses will not be required to provide face coverings for their customers.

Some people do not have to wear a face covering including for heaith, aze or 2quality reasons. No one who
is exempt from wearing a face covering should be denied entry if they are not wearing one.

For the full guidance see:
https://www.;zov.uk/government/publications/face-coverings—when—to-wear-one-and—how—to-make—vour—
own/face-coverings-when-to-wear-one-and-how-to-make-vour-own

I am so providing with guidance for Licensed Premises:

Restrictions on service of food and drink for consumption on the premises
13.—(1) A person responsible for carrying on a restricted business, or providing a restricted service, in the
Tier 2 area that falls within paragraph 15(2) and which serves alcohol for consumption on the premises
may sell food or drink for consumption on the premises only if—

a) the food or drink is ordered by, and served to, a customer who is seated on the premises, and

b) the person takes all reasonable steps to ensure that the customer remains seated whilst consuming

the food or drink on the premises.

(4) For the purposes of this paragraph, a “table meal” is a meal eaten by a person seated at a table, or at a
counter or other structure which serves the purposes of a table and is not used for the service of
refreshments for consumption by persons not seated at a table or structure serving the purposes of a
table.

Requirement to close businesses selling alcohol for consumption on the premises
14.—(1) A person responsible for carrying on a business of a public house, bar or other business involving
the provision of alcohol for consumption on the premises must cease to carry on that business, unless sub-
paragraph (2) applies.

(2) This sub-paragraph applies if alcohol is only served for consumption on the premises as part of a
table meal, and the meal is such as might be expected to be served as breakfast, the main midday or

main evening meal, or as a main course at such a meal.

(3) For the purposes of sub-paragraph (1)—

(a) alcohol provided by a hotel or other accommodation as part of room service is not to be treated as
being provided for consumption on its premises;

(b) an area adjacent to the premises of the business where seating is made available for customers of
the business (whether or not by the business), or which customers habitually use for consumption
of food or drink served by the business, is to be treated as part of the premises of that business.

(4) For the purposes of this paragraph, a “table meal” is a meal eaten by a person seated at a table, or at
a counter or other structure which serves the purposes of a table and is not used for the service
of refreshments for consumption by persons not seated at a table or structure serving the purposes of a
table.

In addition to this;
* you must not socialise with anyone you do not live with or who is not in your support bubble in any
indoor setting, whether at home or in a public place
® you must not socialise in a group of more than 6 people outside, including in a garden or a public
space —this is called the ‘rule of 6.

87



e businesses and venues can continue to operate, in a COVID-Secure manner, other than those which
remain closed by law, such as nightclubs.

The guidance states:

e pubs and bars must close, unless operating as restaurants. Hospitality venues can only serve alcohol
with substantial meals.
e hospitality businesses selling food or drink for consumption on their premises are required to:
o provide table service only, in premises which sell alcohol.
o close between 11pm and 5am (hospitality venues in airports, ports, transport services and
motorway service areas are exempt).
o stop taking orders after 10pm.
e businesses that do not ordinarily serve food may enter into a contracting arrangement in order that
they are able to do so and remain open. However, allowing customers to bring food into the
premises that had been purchased elsewhere in order to consume alcohol remains prohibited.

As the legislation states that the alcohol is to be served ‘as part of’ the meal it is clear that the main purpose
of frequenting the premises should be to have a main table meal and this should be a plated meal, served at
a table. The alcohol is only ‘part of it ‘and therefore secondary to the meal.

The regulations are clearly not intended to allow a person to sit and drink multiple alcohol drinks for a much
longer period either side of a meal being ordered and consumed.

Premises should only accept a drinks order alongside a food order, to prevent people ordering drinks but
subsequently not ordering a meal. A drink ordered alongside food may be served in advance of it. The end
of the meal is likely to be an appropriate time to stop taking orders of alcohol, although one further drink

could be considered.

The regulations require the substantial meal to be ordered from and provided by the premises which is
serving alcohol. It is not permissible for customers to order a takeaway to be delivered to a pub or bar, or to
otherwise bring their own food into the premises: food must be ordered in the same transaction in which
alcohol is purchased in order for the premises to be deemed to be operating as a restaurant.

If a pub/bar that has previously not had a food offer wants to transition providing a substantial meal itself,
it will need to comply with legal requirements applying to food businesses. This would include Register a
New Food Business {brighton-hove.gov.uk), with an inspection by a food safety team being part of that to
check that the kitchen is capable of being used for that purpose. You will also need to comply with the
guidance for Food Allergens (brighton-hove.gov.ukj. There may also be planning considerations, depending
on where and how the business intends to prepare food.

The amount of alcohol being served should be proportionate to the food being provided, and premises
should not offer / customers should not expect that spending an unlimited amount of time in a pub or bar
will be deemed compliant simply because some food has been provided. Meals should also not be artificially
served, for example to fit within the natural breaks of a parallel event like a quiz or live performance as the
meal must be the ‘main activity’. Under the new Regulations, the purpose for the persons on site is for a
main meal, alcohol and performances are secondary to the meal as the main activity because to be open
you must be operating as a restaurant first and foremost.

The guiding principle in this must be the intention of the regulations, which is that alcoholic drinks should be
secondary to the meal. Enforcement will be targeted at those premises which are clearly stretching things
too far by allowing customers to stay well beyond the duration of a meal and in effect facilitating longer
drinking sessions which present a greater COVID 19 transmission risk.

88



Making your establishment COVID-19 secure will make both your clientele and staff feel safer and will reduce
the risk of closure and local lockdowns.

For further Covid-related advice and information you can visit our website at:
https://new.brighton-hove.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19

I must advise that if further breaches are witnessed, then enforcement will be taken.

Yours sincerely

REDACTED TEXT | Fair Trading Officer & Licensing Officer (Trading Standards & Licensing), Safer
Communities

Brighton & Hove City Council, 2" Floor, Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton BN1 13P
REDACTED TEXT

Our customer promise to you
We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things
done | We will be clear and treat you with respect

Rate your experience
We are committed to providing you services in accordance with our Customer Promise.

Please tell us about your experiences of using Brighton & Hove City Council services. It will take no
longer than 5 minutes to complete.

CORONAVIRUS - WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:

¢ Get home or into work

* Blow your nose, sneeze or cough

e Eat or handle food

INHS

T8 g ¢

CATCHIT. BINIT. KILLIT.

Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

89



APPENDIX F

From: Pascal Madjoudj REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 11 December 2020 13:16

To: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: Re: FINAL WARNING - Pascals Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT -

2020/49244/COVIDC/EH

This email originates from outside of Brighton & Hove City Council. Please think carefully before opening
attachments or clicking on links.

| am the new Bar manager. Please do not hesitate to give me an email or a call if you have any other concerns.

Kind regards,
REDACTED TEXT

On Thu, 10 Dec 2020 at 17:17, REDACTED TEXT wrote:
Dear REDACTED TEXT

Thank you for your response.

Could | please ask what your position is within Pascals Bistro Bar?
Many thanks

Regards

REDACTED TEXT | Fair Trading Officer & Licensing Officer (Trading Standards & Licensing), Safer

Communities
Brighton & Hove City Council, 2" Floor, Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton BN1 1JP

REDACTED TEXT

Our customer promise to you
We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things

done | We will be clear and treat you with respect

Rate your experience
We are committed to providing you services in accordance with our Customer Promise.

Please tell us about vour experiences of using Brighton & Hove City Council services. It will take no
longer than 5 minutes to complete.

CORONAVIRUS - WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:
¢ Get home or into work
e Blow your nose, sheeze or cough
o Eat or handle food

WiE

CATCHIT. BINIT. KILLIT.

Protect yourself & others

90




For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

From: Pascal Madjoudj REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 10 December 2020 16:37

To: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: Re: FINAL WARNING - Pascals Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT -
2020/49244/COVIDC/EH

This email originates from outside of Brighton & Hove City Council. Please think carefully before opening
attachments or clicking on links.

Dear REDACTED TEXT

[ 'am writing in response to your email, final warning notification. At Pascal’s, we have been taking Covid 19 risk

management very seriously as illustrated by our Covid risk assessment and rigorous implementation of control
measures.

I' have investigated the circumstances at the time of your visit and offer the following information. A member of our
team, Mr Madjoudj had been sat at a table without a face covering whilst working. He then moved from the bar
area, to behind the bar, again without a face covering, in breach of regulations. At the time, all other regulatory
obligations were being met.

I have reminded all staff of the regulations and the seriousness of breaching regulations. To further reinforce
guidelines, | will be briefing staff at the start of every shift.

Please be assured of our full attention to Covid compliance.
Kind regards

REDACTED TEXT
On Sat, 5 Dec 2020 at 16:30, REDACTED TEXT wrote:

Dear Said Pascal Madjoudi

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (All Tiers) (England) Regulations 2020
The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Wearing of Face Coverings in a Relevant Place) (England)
Regulations 2020

Pascals Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT

I am writing to you following a visit to your premises accompanied by colleagues from Police Licensing, PC
REDACTED TEXT and REDACTED TEXT from Environmental Protection, on Wednesday 2 December 2020. At
the time of our visit we witnessed that you were breaching the above Regulations. Whereby, you were not

wearing a face coverings, which you have been advised about on previous visits.

By law, staff and customers of venues that provide food and drink will be required to wear a face covering
in the following circumstances, unless they have an exemption.

Businesses must remind customers and staff to wear a face covering where required (for example by
displaying posters).

Face Coverings — STAFF

It is compulsory for retail, leisure and hospitality staff to wear a face covering in areas that:

91



e are open to the public and;
e where they come or are likely to come within close contact of a member of the public.

This includes shops, supermarkets, bars, pubs, restaurants, cafes, banks, estate agents, post offices and the
public areas of hotels and hostels.

The new requirement for hospitality staff to wear face coverings only applies to consumer-facing staff and
not ‘back of house’ kitchens or office areas of hospitality premises. Staff working ‘back of house’ will only
have to put on a mask if they move into public customer-facing areas of the business e.g. staff will need to
wear a face covering when moving from the back kitchen into the seating area where customers may be

present.

; T o
tor COVID-1 SEEBGE
i v T ILS AJ SR U

If businesses have taken steps in line with Hezith and Safety Executive zuidanc
worknlzces to create a physical barrier between workers and members of the public then staff behind the
barrier will not be required to wear a face covering. However, you are urged to discuss the installation of
any screens/barriers with you inspecting officer before you spend money on something that may not be

suitable.

(L‘)

Businesses already have legal obligations to protect their staff under existing employment law. This means
taking appropriate steps to provide a safe working environment, which may include providing face coverings
where appropriate, alongside other mitigations such as screens and social distancing Businesses should
advise workers how to use face coverings safely.

Face Covering — CUSTOMERS

Customers must wear a face covering at all times when in premises providing hospitality (bars, pubs,
restaurants, cafes), except when seated at a table to eat or drink.

Businesses should take reasonable steps to encourage customer compliance for example through in-store
communications or notices at the entrance. If necessary, police can issue fines to members of the public for
non-compliance. Businesses will not be required to provide face coverings for their customers.

Some people do not have to wear a face covering including for heaith, age or equality reasons. No one who
is exempt from wearing a face covering should be denied entry if they are not wearing one.

For the full guidance see:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/face-coverings-when-to-wear-one-and-how-to-make-vour-

own/face-coverings-when-to-wear-one-and-how-to-make-vour-own

| am so providing with guidance for Licensed Premises:

Restrictions on service of food and drink for consumption on the premises
13.—(1) A person responsible for carrying on a restricted business, or providing a restricted service, in the
Tier 2 area that falls within paragraph 15(2) and which serves alcohol for consumption on the premises
may sell food or drink for consumption on the premises only if—

a. the food or drink is ordered by, and served to, a customer who is seated on the premises, and

b. the person takes all reasonable steps to ensure that the customer remains seated whilst consuming

the food or drink on the premises.

(4) For the purposes of this paragraph, a “table meal” is a meal eaten by a person seated at atable, orata
counter or other structure which serves the purposes of a table and is not used for the service of
refreshments for consumption by persons not seated at a table or structure serving the purposes of a

table.
Requirement to close businesses selling alcohol for consumption on the premises

92



14.—(1) A person responsible for carrying on a business of a public house, bar or other business involving
the provision of alcohol for consumption on the premises must cease to carry on that business, unless sub-
paragraph (2) applies.

(2) This sub-paragraph applies if alcohol is only served for consumption on the premises as part of a
table meal, and the meal is such as might be expected to be served as breakfast, the main midday or

main evening meal, or as a main course at such a meal.

(3) For the purposes of sub-paragraph (1)—

a. alcohol provided by a hotel or other accommodation as part of room service is not to be treated as
being provided for consumption on its premises;

b. an area adjacent to the premises of the business where seating is made available for customers of
the business (whether or not by the business), or which customers habitually use for consumption
of food or drink served by the business, is to be treated as part of the premises of that business.

(4) For the purposes of this paragraph, a “table meal” is a meal eaten by a person seated at a table, or at
a counter or other structure which serves the purposes of a table and is not used for the service

of refreshments for consumption by persons not seated at a table or structure serving the purposes of a
table.

In addition to this;
* you must not socialise with anyone you do not live with or who is not in your support bubble in any
indoor setting, whether at home or in a public place
* you must not socialise in a group of more than 6 people outside, including in a garden or a public
space — this is called the ‘rule of 6.

 businesses and venues can continue to operate, in a COVID-Secure manner, other than those which
remain closed by law, such as nightclubs.

The guidance states:

* pubs and bars must close, unless operating as restaurants. Hospitality venues can only serve alcohol
with substantial meals.
« hospitality businesses selling food or drink for consumption on their premises are required to:
o provide table service only, in premises which sell alcohol.
o close between 11pm and Sam (hospitality venues in airports, ports, transport services and
motorway service areas are exempt).
o stop taking orders after 10pm.
* businesses that do not ordinarily serve food may enter into a contracting arrangement in order that
they are able to do so and remain open. However, allowing customers to bring food into the
premises that had been purchased elsewhere in order to consume alcohol remains prohibited.

As the legislation states that the alcohol is to be served ‘as part of the meal it is clear that the main purpose
of frequenting the premises should be to have a main table meal and this should be a plated meal, served at
a table. The alcohol is only ‘part of it ‘and therefore secondary to the meal.

The regulations are clearly not intended to allow a person to sit and drink multiple alcohol drinks for a much
longer period either side of a meal being ordered and consumed.

Premises should only accept a drinks order alongside a food order, to prevent people ordering drinks but
subsequently not ordering a meal. A drink ordered alongside food may be served in advance of it. The end

of the meal is likely to be an appropriate time to stop taking orders of alcohol, although one further drink
could be considered.

The regulations require the substantial meal to be ordered from and provided by the premises which is serving alcohol.
It is not permissible for customers to order a takeaway to be delivered to a pub or bar, or to otherwise bring their own

93



food into the premises: food must be ordered in the same transaction in which alcohol is purchased in order for the
premises to be deemed to be operating as a restaurant.

If a pub/bar that has previously not had a food offer wants to transition providing a substantial meal itself,
it will need to comply with legal requirements applying to food businesses. This would include Register a
New Food Business (brighton-hove.gov.uk), with an inspection by a food safety team being part of that to
check that the kitchen is capable of being used for that purpose. You will also need to comply with the
guidance for Food Allergens (brighton-hove.gov.uk). There may also be planning considerations, depending
on where and how the business intends to prepare food.

The amount of alcohol being served should be proportionate to the food being provided, and premises
should not offer / customers should not expect that spending an unlimited amount of time in a pub or bar
will be deemed compliant simply because some food has been provided. Meals should also not be artificially
served, for example to fit within the natural breaks of a parallel event like a quiz or live performance as the
meal must be the ‘main activity’. Under the new Regulations, the purpose for the persons on site is for a
main meal, alcohol and performances are secondary to the meal as the main activity because to be open
you must be operating as a restaurant first and foremost.

The guiding principle in this must be the intention of the regulations, which is that alcoholic drinks should be
secondary to the meal. Enforcement will be targeted at those premises which are clearly stretching things
too far by allowing customers to stay well beyond the duration of a meal and in effect facilitating longer
drinking sessions which present a greater COVID 19 transmission risk.

Making your establishment COVID-19 secure will make both your clientele and staff feel safer and will reduce
the risk of closure and local lockdowns.

For further Covid-related advice and information you can visit our website at:
https://new.brighton-hove.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19

| must advise that if further breaches are witnessed, then enforcement will be taken.

Yours sincerely

REDACTED TEXT | Fair Trading Officer & Licensing Officer (Trading Standards & Licensing), Safer

Communities
Brighton & Hove City Council, 2™ Floor, Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton BN1 1JP

REDACTED TEXT

Our customer promise to you
We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things

done | We will be clear and treat you with respect

Rate your experience
We are committed to providing you services in accordance with our Customer Promise.

Please tell us about vour experiences of using Brighton & Hove City Council services. It will take no
longer than 5 minutes to complete.

CORONAVIRUS - WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:
e Get home orinto work
e Blow your nose, sneeze or cough
o Eat or handle food

94



at YI¥S

@ 0 &
CATCHIT. BINIT. KILLIT.

TR ke oven

)

Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

Notice to recipient:

The information contained in this electronic mail message is intended only for the use of the individual to whom it is
addressed

and may contain information which is privileged and confidential, the disclosure of which is prohibited by law.

If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, please note that any dissemination, distribution or
copying of this

communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error please notify the sender
immediately.

Thank you in anticipation of your co-operation.

You can visit our website at http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

Please consider the environment, only print out this email if absolutely necessary.

Please Note: Both incoming and outgoing Emails may be monitored and/or recorded in line with current legislation

95



APPENDIX G
Dear Said Pascal Madjoud;j

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Steps) (England) Regulations 2021
Pascals Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove BN3 2LT

I am writing to you in your capacity as the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and Designated Premises
Supervisor (DPS) for the above premises following a visit by Sussex Police on 15 April 2021. We have been
advised that you were allowing persons inside your restaurant, eating and drinking whilst seated at
tables. This contravenes the above Regulations.

In relation to a breach of a Step 2 restriction imposed by regulation 7 and Part 2 of Schedule 2, paragraph
9(1) (Restrictions on service of food and drink for consumption on the premises - applies to business or
service listed in paragraph 13(4), or is carried on from, or provided at, premises of a kind specified in
paragraph 13(4)):
* Failed, without reasonable excuse, to close the premises, or part(s) of the premises, in which food
or drink are provided for consumption on the premises; and/ or
* Failed, without reasonable excuse, to cease providing food or drink for consumption on the
premises
* Failed, without reasonable excuse, to cease carrying on a business/providing a service other than as
permitted by paragraph 9(2)(a), 9(2)(b), or the exceptions listed in paragraphs 10 and 11

Please note the penalties for not complying with the above regulation which would apply in this case.

Amount of Penalty and period to pay
In the case of a fixed penalty notice issued in respect of a business restriction offence, the amount of the

fixed penalty to be specified under regulation 12(5)(c) is—
a) £1,000, if the fixed penalty notice is the first one issued to the person in respect of a business

restriction offence;
b) £2,000, if the fixed penalty notice is the second one issued to the person in respect of a business

restriction offence;
c) £4,000, if the fixed penalty notice is the third one issued to the person in respect of a business

restriction offence;
d) £10,000, if the fixed penalty notice is the fourth one, or any subsequent one, issued to the person
in respect of a business restriction offence.

All businesses have a legal requirement to carry out a Covid risk assessment before opening. In the risk
assessment you need identify control measures relating to Covid-19 and your operation. Risk assessments
must be specific to your operation and they may differ from others. You may need to implement or think
about other risks and control measures specific for your business.

I need to remind you that Covid-19 is highly contagious (a biological hazard) and is captured by the Health
and Safety at Work etc Act 1974. You therefore have a duty to protect the health and safety of staff and
customers at all times.

The government has issued guidance on social distancing and extra vigilance over personal hygiene and we
advise that you and your staff comply with government guidance to ensure a 2m distance is kept between
each other and customers at all times.

96



If you fail to take action to safeguard yourself, your staff and your customers and we assess the risk as
unacceptable then we have the power to take formal action to make you comply and if necessary, we can
stop you trading.

Please be advised that follow up visits will be carried out.
Regards

REDACTED TEXT| Fair Trading Officer & Licensing Officer (Trading Standards & Licensing), Safer
Communities

Brighton & Hove City Council, 2" Floor, Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton BN1 11P
REDACTED TEXT

Our customer promise to you

We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things
done | We will be clear and treat you with respect

Rate your experience
We are committed to providing you services in accordance with our Customer Promise.

Please tell us about your experiences of using Brighton & Hove City Council services. It will take no
longer than 5 minutes to complete.

CORONAVIRUS - WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:

* Get home orinto work

* Blow your nose, sneeze or cough

« Eat or handle food

S AN o A INHS!
$ U

CATCHIT. BINIT. KILLIT.

Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

97



APPENDIX H




Aegenors €
Regulatory Services

&I@l i Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square

Brighton & Hove Brighton
City Council BN1 1JP
REDACTED TEXT Date: 6 July 2021
Licensing Authority Our Ref:

Brighton & Hove City Council Contact: REDACTED TEXT
Bartholomew House Phone: REDACTED TEXT
Bartholomew Square Email: REDACTED TEXT
Brighton
BNI 1P

JO CON ENDS 09.07.21 VALID PS (C)

Dear REDACTED TEXT

Licensing Act 2003
Representation in support of an application by Sussex Police seeking a review of the

Premises License - 2021/01792/LAREV
Pascals Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place, Hove BN3 2LT

| write to make a representation on behalf of the Council’s Food, Health and Safety Team, in their
capacity as a responsible authority, in relation to the above application made by Sussex Police
seeking to review the Premises Licence for the Pascals Bistro Bar, 6 Queens Place, Hove BN3

2LT.

This representation is made as the Food, Health and Safety Team have concerns that the licensing
objective of the Public Safety is not being upheld.

The history of this matter is explained in more detail in the application of Sussex Police.

On 4 August 2020, following complaints received from local residents and visit by REDACTED
TEXT Licensing Officer | phoned restaurant, now called Pascal's Bar. | was informed that Pascal
Madjoudj, the owner was away REDACTED TEXT for 3 days. The new manager,
REDACTED TEXT advised that a Covid Risk Assessment had been carried out. Following this
conversation, | sent an email requesting a copy of the Covid risk assessment. On receipt of the
risk assessment further email was sent with my comments on and asking for a revised version by
12 August 2020. Copies of email correspondence and risk assessment can be seen at Appendices

A Band C.

If requested by a third party under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 the contents of
this letter may be disclosed by Brighton & Hove City Council. For further advice please contact (01273)
291207 or search our website on www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foi

Telephone: 01273 290000
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

w29 Qs



On 12 August 2020, as no revised risk assessment had been received, | visited the premises. At
the time of this visit | spoke with Pascal Madjoudj, and discussed cleaning, hygiene and the risk
assessment. Pascal Madjoudj telephoned REDACTED TEXT and informed me that | would
receive the risk assessment in the next 2 days.

On 20 August 2020, a further email was sent to Pascal Madjoudj, following another visit by
REDACTED TEXT and her findings at time of visit. A copy of this email can be seen at
Appendix D.

On 21 August 2020, | received an email from REDACTED TEXT with the updated risk
assessment. A copy of this email and documents and my response can be seen at Appendices E,
F, G and H.

Following a further visit by REDACTED TEXT and her findings at time of visit, a further email

was sent to Pascal Madjoudj on 16 September 2020. A copy of this email can be seen at Appendix
l.

On 17 September 2020, | served an Improvement Notice on Pascal Madjoudj and the premises.
Copies of correspondence and Improvement Notice can be seen as Appendices J, K, L, M and N.

Based on my previous interactions with Pascal Madjoudj and the premises, | have little confidence
in either the owner or any individuals who are running the premises.

In the circumstances, | fully support the application of Sussex Police seeking the revocation of the
premises licence and consider that this is necessary to ensure that the licensing objectives of Public
Safety are met.

Yours sincerely
REDACTED TEXT

REDACTED TEXT
Senior Technical Officer

Appendices A, B, C — Copies of email correspondence and risk assessment

Appendix D — Copy of email dated 20 August 2020

Appendices E, F, G, H — Copy email and documents 2| August 2020

Appendix | — Email sent dated 16 September 2020

Appendices J, K, L, M, N — Email sent, and Improvement Notice dated 17 September 2020

100



Appendix A

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 05 August 2020 15:20

To: REDACTED TEXT

Cc: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: FW: Pascal's Bar - Covid-19 Risk Assessment with comments

Dear REDACTED TEXT

I have now read through your Risk Assessment and attach a version with my comments. { understand that the
original document was produced by REDACTED TEXT for their sites and that you have tweaked it for Pascal’s Bar
{previously La Fourchette). However, it needs to be made specific to Pascal’s Bar and it requires much more detail
on the Covid-19 control measures that you have put in place.

Since we spoke yesterday, | have been sent a photo taken in the evening on Saturday 1% August 2020 outside the
premises, showing a densely packed terrace, and a large crowd of people spilling out onto the pavement and into
the road. These people are all very close together and so there is a very high risk of spreading Coronavirus. This
situation is unacceptable and must not be repeated. Some people clearly have bottled drinks in their hands and
they are obstructing the public highway. | understand that my colleague in Licensing has written to Pascal about

this.

I understand that the changes you have made since you started work include going over to table service only, which
will help alleviate some of the problems. However, it is essential that you complete the Risk Assessment fully and
put all necessary controls in place to stop the virus spreading. Being ‘Covid Secure’ will protect the staff, customers
and the business. | expect that you and Pascal are aware of the potential consequences for the business if there was
an outbreak linked to the restaurant, with possible formal closure being something that | am sure you would wish to
avoid. |appreciate that you have made changes and it’s good that you are willing to do more. |also attach a Toolkit
which includes on Page 2 a link to a template Risk Assessment, showing all the areas you need to consider. | hope
this is helpful, along with my comments on additional detail required. Please contact me to discuss if it’s unclear.

Please send me a copy of your revised Risk Assessment by 12 August 2020.

Once completed, you must share your Risk Assessment with your staff and let customers know you have completed
it and have safety measures in place. Details of how to do this and a poster you can display to tell customers are on

Page 11 of the restaurant guidance:-
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5eb96e8e86650¢278b077616/working-safely-during-covid-

19-restaurants-pubs-bars-takeaway-090720i.pdf

You will see from the list of revisions at the start of the guidance that it is constantly being updated as we learn more
about Coronavirus, so it’s important that you regularly check for updates.

| have copied this email in to the restaurant, but In case | get another bounceback from REDACTED TEXT please can
you provide me with an alternative working email address for Pascal as | need to write to him? Alternatively, please
can you forward this email on to him and ask him to reply to me?

Many thanks for your help. Please contact me if you have any questions or need further guidance. Best to email me
and | will then phone you.

Kind regards,

REDACTED TEXT

Food Safety Team, Environmental Health & Licensing
Public Health, Brighton & Hove City Council
Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square

Brighton, BN1 1JP

Tel: REDACTED TEXT
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foodsafety

101



My working days are Monday to Thursday

CORONAVIRUS
Keep your business safe by following social distancing guidelines:-
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/social-distancing/index.htm

WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:

o Get home or into work

e Blow your nose, sneeze or cough

° Eat or handle food

g &

CATCHH. BINIT. KILLIT.

NHS

Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things done | We will
be clear and treat you with respect

Brighton and Hove City Council may disclose the contents of this email if requested by a third party, under the
provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000. For further advice please contact (01273) 291207 or search our
website on www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foi

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 04 August 2020 17:08

To: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: Re: Pascal's Bar - Covid-19 Risk Assessment and table spacing

Hi REDACTED TEXT

Thanks for the Risk Assessment, I’ve had a quick look at it but will have a proper read through tomorrow
and email you my comments. It is important that it is site-specific though, and includes details of all the
Covid-19 controls that you have put in place in the restaurant.

Thanks for confirmation about the name change and ownership.
I will be in touch again soon.
Kind regards,

REDACTED TEXT

Food Safety Team, Environmental Health & Licensing
Public Health, Brighton & Hove City Council
Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square

Brighton, BN1 1JP

Tel: REDACTED TEXT

www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foodsafety

We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things done |
We will be clear and treat you with respect

102



Brighton and Hove City Council may disclose the contents of this email if requested by a third party, under
the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000. For further advice please contact (01273) 291207 or
search our website on www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foi

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: Tuesday, August 4, 2020 4:51:11 PM

To: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: Re: Pascal's Bar - Covid-19 Risk Assessment and table spacing

Hi REDACTED TEXT

Please find attached Risk assessment I’ve put together.
It is still running by the same company but it’s being renamed and branded to Pascals Brasserie. But the

owners ect are the same. Please let me know if you have any other concerns. Which I can implement to sort
out.

REDACTED TEXT
On 4 Aug 2020, at 16:12, REDACTED TEXT > wrote:

Dear REDACTED TEXT

It was good to talk to you, I'm pleased to hear that you have completed a Risk Assessment and that the table spacing
has now been sorted out. You also mentioned that the number of tables has been reduced, the outside ones
changed to seat 4s now, table service and no more standing at the bar and that you have hand sanitisers in place.

 would be pleased to receive a copy of the Risk Assessment.

Also, if you could confirm that the name of the business has changed from La Fourchette to Pascal’s Bar, | will update
our records, thank you. ls the company running the business still La Fourchette Brasserie Ltd or has that changed as
well? If it’s changed, | may need Pascal (or someone else) to fill out a new Food Business Registration Form.

Many thanks for your help.

Kind regards,

REDACTED TEXT

Food Safety Team, Environmental Health & Licensing
Public Health, Brighton & Hove City Council
Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square

Brighton, BN1 1JP

REDACTED TEXT
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foodsafety

My working days are Monday to Thursday

CORONAVIRUS
Keep your business safe by following social distancing guidelines:-
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/social-distancing/index.htm

WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:

s Get home or into work

« Blow your nose, sneeze or cough

1. Eat or handle food

<image001.jpg>

103



Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things done | We will
be clear and treat you with respect

Brighton and Hove City Council may disclose the contents of this email if requested by a third party, under the
provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000. For further advice please contact (01273) 291207 or search our
website on www. brighton-hove.gov. uk/foi

Notice to recipient:

The information contained in this electronic mail message is intended only for the use of the individual to
whom it is addressed

and may contain information which is privileged and confidential, the disclosure of which is prohibited by
law.

If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, please note that any dissemination, distribution or
copying of this

communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error please notify the
sender immediately.

Thank you in anticipation of your co-operation.

You can visit our website at http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

Please consider the environment, only print out this email if absolutely necessary.

Please Note: Both incoming and outgoing Emails may be monitored and/or recorded in line with current
legislation

104



APPENDIX B — STAFF, CUSTOMER, PREMISES, KITCHEN

Before Work:

Staff Knowledge

REDACTED TEXT
How do you keep a
record of this
training/briefing?

training and briefing done with team members
Pre arrival symptoms check

REDACTED TEXT

How will you do this?
Inciude the symptoms in
this document, ie new

Staff informed to wash their work clothes ata minimum
temperature of 60 degrees.

Arriving to work Staff - HIGH Travel to work - assess per individual continuous cough, fever,
Al staff to follow guidance on public transport and Chazg"-/b“ of taste or
Smed
stagger shifts to avoid public transport at peak times
Cycle to work preffered. Is there a safe space for bikes
to be locked up securely? bike rack at top of road
Walking for those live near -
2 TREDACTED TEXT —
Protected We will understand and take into account individual's Y::Bk"tﬂfehg;:hw":m'
P . . the me;
Characteristics particular circumstances n aof al yo:r" staff ||
R and how you will provide
On Arrival: support & information |
, , Staff/Customer -
Spread of infection 117 Return to Work Health Questionnaire & Advice REDACTED YEXT
HIGH 4 Do you have posters on
Everyone to wash hands on arrival and use hand sanitiser |dspRy reminding people
. about washing hands, not to
Remove out of work clothes - change to uniform/work come in if they have
clothes on site u SYWW':: a;\d other
. R utions?
Outside clothes Designated staff area for bags, clothes etc and staff precautions
contamination asked to not bring excess belongings to site keptin office
B
Space between hooks (where possible) in staff area so
belongings don't overlap
Induction:
Staff/Customer -
Spread of infection raining:
P f inf HIGH On site training REDACTED TEXT
How wifl you ensure staff
can take customers’ orders
New service measures explained and demonstrated: safely? 2mdistancing or
Roles: Floor, host, bar, cleaning, table service... other measures, eg face
> masks/visors for waiting
Run through H&S measures & risk assessments staff? Avold sharing pens
Cleaning products refresher - COSHH and order pads.
Distancing measures & Expectations meeting on Friday with tear
Caring for your colleague & customer training
Hygiene and cleaning measures expectations
Designated roles and clean down before and after shift
swaps
During Work:
Staff/Customer -
Staff Knowledge 4 Daily briefing:
HIGH
Changes to health questionnaire
Changes to service measures
Changes risk assessment REDACTED FExT
What your role is today ¢ Have you considered
Hygiene and cleaning measures addtional Personal
. - L, R Protective Equipment
Medical Conditions Staff who have pre-existing conditions or living with (PPE) such as gloves for
people who do to take the safest available roles cleaning and face masks
to protect each other
and customers (where
Staff/Customer - 2mdistance can't be
Breaks HIGfli/ Encouraged outside or in designated areas rmaintained)? Safe
disposal of used PPE?
Staggered with other shift members
Wash sanitise hands on return
Staff/Customer -
Using the toilet 417/ Employees able to skip queue if no staff toilet in place.
HIGH REDACTED TEXT
Toilet check to take place at the same time - clean as you [|Remember i's not just
cleaning, but
g0 disinfection too, using a
suitable disinfectant that
B . 50 kils viruses, paying
Spread of infection  Staff/Customer - 2 !
P f inf £1/ Hygiene and Cleaning: particular attention to
through surfaces HIGH hand-contact paints and
Sanitiser stations and regular handwashing f:;b‘t“::sces such as
Checklist reminders for frequent cleaning schedule
Clean as you go in shared staff areas
1f staff feel unwell, staff should follow isolation
Spread of infection  Staff/Customer - measures. If difficulty breathing 111 shouid be
HIGH contacted. Ops Manager should be contacted.
After Work:
Spread of infection Post shift review with all team members

105




APPENDIX B — STAFF, CUSTOMER, PREMISES, KITCHEN

Before Arrival:

REDACTED TEXT

Customers encouraged to use booking system to
minimise queueing outside. Customers given time-slot
to help manage crowds

Overcrowding

.

Where will take-away customers queue/wait? Is it clear where to go? Signage

How are you keeping customer records for NHS Test & Trace?

On Arrival:

Spread of infection Cuftomers/Staff Sanitiser station on arrival WI‘Fh signage asking
- High customers to use when entering

Keeping a safe social
distance

Clear instructional signage of new service procedures by
entrance and queueing

Directional signage - queueing system

Host support during peak times

Customers asked not to move furniture around

Queues where possible will be wheelchair accessible
and customers with disabilities will be attended to on
an individual basis

Disabilities

REDACTED TEXT

Barriers? Floor markers to keep 2m apart?

REDACTED TEXT

Signs on tables or menus? Staff aware of layout and positioning of
tables and chairs when putting them out each day, or putting back after
re-arranging them for bigger groups? Maybe draw out a layout plan.

During Visit:

Keeping a safe social
distance to limit
soread of infection

Customers/Staff
- High

Full Table service where possible via KC with
instructions on table to how to use with staff support

Clear signage and queue system if order at the bar
Social distancing measures and directional flow and
signage

Food and drink brought to table on tray or glasses
handled from the bottomn 1/3 of glass

Tray on table server steps back / or area on table to
place glasses down

Same process for clearance
Condiments

Customers/Staff
- High

Limited number of people in toilet per use dependant
on amount of toilets and entrance/exit space
Toilet queing system and clear signage - host to assist

Toilets

Customers/Staff Customers not respecting social distance will be asked
- High politely to leave
Pets are asked to be kept on leads
Children running around asked to stay at family table
uniess accompanied by adult to toilet
No Childrens entertainment {colouring etc) to be
supplied, customers are asked to bring their own

Customer Conflict

Accidents, security
and other incidents

Customers/Staff
- High

In an emergency, for example, afire or break-in, people
do not have to stay 2m apart if it would be unsafe.
People involved in the provision of assistance to others
should pay particular attention to sanitation measures
immediately afterwards, including washing hands

g

Condiments prepared per order into individual ramekins"

A2

table service in inside area outside and takeaway at bar

REDACTED TEXT
How is this marked? Barriers, floor markers, signs? Walkways to toilets?

REDACTED TEXT
Is this what you do? Other aptions are mentioned elsewhere in this
document.

|abmes Zara T e gETTS7 UTSauTE Tat a TITE - OIS o ar

REDACTED TEXT
No group singing or loud ampiified music either, so that customers don't

After Visit:

Customers/Staff

Spread of infection - High

Thorough and regular hygiene and cleaning processes

Sanitising table and chairs between each use

106




APPENDIX B — STAFF, CUSTOMER, PREMISES, KITCHEN

Before Opening:

Business ready to
open safely

Equipment safety

Overcrowding

Moving Furniture -
Manual Handling

lLegionaires

Public Highway

Staff/Customers
~HIGH

Staff/Customers
~HIGH

Staff/Customers
~-HIGH

Staff/Customers
~HIGH

Staff/Customers
~HIGH

Risk of Statutory
notices and
closure -
MEDIUMNM

Risk of Statutory
notices and

Daily manager walk-around: posters, signage ete,
sanitiser stocked, PPE, IT Check

Re-starting equipment - check safe to use, statutory
certs reinstated

Adjusted Capacity Calcufation based on number of seats
in remaining in the business. Table layout will be done
allowing space for social distance and walkways for staff

62
and customaers. As there will be no vertical drinking,

inside plus 26 on terrace 88

capacity will be calcuiated entirely from seats. Excess
furniture will be removed.

As spacing of furniture is maintained to Gov. guidelines
on social distancing, the duty manager/host will manage
the seating arrangements so we can assess that screens

REDACTED TEXT
between customers seated at
other mitigation you have in

ptace and how it & rmanaged
and raintained

are not essential between tables. This also applies to fu
screens at bars. if we are to operate fully by table

service, no one will be at the bar for extended periods
contact time so no screens necessary. 1

Business lay out with new service journey - including
distancing measures, floor plans, directional signage,
clear queueing system, no pinch points and no verticat
drinking

REDACTED TEX

You need to clearly state
exactly what the controls
are in your business - this|
Risk Assessment need to
be sita-specific rather
than generic

Moving furniture to atlow for social distancing measures -
excess furniture to be put in storage. Any staff moving
furniture must have completed Manual Handling

training g
Table plan and distancing measures

REDACTED TEXT
Again, be specific about
Thi

Flush through water systems for 3-5 minutes before use
and temperature checks Opening Checklist

“/
No items (or queueing) will be placed on public highway
if avoidable, if items are put on highway, they will be

REDACTED TEXT
Please email me a copy of]
your Gpening Checidist

REDACTED TEXT
Where will custorrers
queue and how will you
keep them distant from
people dining on the

placed to ensure they do not reduce pavement space
that prevents the public from social distancing

Keep to the business allocated space and not encroach
on space allocated to other businesses. Entrance
queueing system will allow people to distance from

REDACTED TEXT

Are you allowing any
walk-ins or do alt
customers have to book
in advance? How will you
manage diners on the
terrace? How will you
ensure that customers

Deliveries

Ventilation

Touch Points

Off Sales

Congregations

/Delivery Drivers -
HIGH

Staff/Customers
-HIGH

Staff/Customers
-HIGH

Risk of Statutory
notices and
closure -
MEDIUM

Risk of Statutory
notices and
closure -
MEDIUM

deliveries put away promptly into correct area

delivery will be before business opens

External Areas .
closure - each other and b.e clea.rly marked out with tape. Putv don't socialise with other
MEDIUN Manager/Host will limit number of people entering the peopie outside of their
premises in line with reduced capacity calculation. househald/bubble/group
booking?
During Opening: _
& LIp & REDACTED TEXT m—
Maintaining Social Staff/Customers Visitors - sign in, by appaintment, service workers not You rrust also ask visitors
B - . " N 5 to confirn that they have
Distance HIGH durmg busy times, was.’:nng h_ands on arrival _ ot had any Covid
Toilets - frequent cleaning, signage, staggered queing, syrretoms or been in
considered with service flow & |REDACTED TEXT
Queues - clear markings, signage, no pinch pointes, How do you manage
considered with flow of service and toilet queues pinch points? How do you
. N N ensure ‘one in, one out’
Consider neighbours, other businesses and passers by for tollets? What if
when managing queues and crowd dispersal ::n‘::;a queue for the
Service and payment areas where table service not possmh
REDACTED TEXT
. P . Safe procedures for
Maintaining Social usingpcard machines?
Distance and Staff/Customers Stagger staff use - one at a time in cellar, office, dry What if customer pays
Cleanliness in Stoff ~HIGH store and walk in fridge freezers with cash? Procedures
for taking and
Areas quarantining cash?
Areas to be divided up by job role to fimit spread T Eoer
between staff Do you have a walk-in
Clean as you ga rule, equipment , door handles etc freczer and separate dry
N . N store? This must be site-
Bar work stations: spacing for side by side working, specific.
reduce close working as much as possibie, setjob roles REDACTED TEXT
and shift patterns to particular areas on site How will you keep people
separate in the (very
5 ff/C small, narrow) kitchen?
ta, ustomers N N " N " . - Have you divided staff
Maintain social distance with delivery drivers & into different

teams/shifts, so all staff
don’t need to isolate if
thera Is a case?

Keeps doors and windows open where possible

REDACTED TEXT

Is there a separate
entrance for themto
use?

Keep internal doors open {unless fire door) to minimise
touch points

&
Do you have an off
licence? This rust be site
ensure you have the right ficence and are using correct specific
recepticles
1

For take-away sales customers must not congregate on
pavements and must be asked to politely move an.

REDACTED TEXT
Irmproving ventilation/air
flow is & really important
controt measure for

REDACTED TEXT

REDACTED TEXT
If you do take-outs, how
will you manage this?

Ensure you have spoken to the councit and can display
posters at request nd follow their guidelines to adhering
to the controlled drinking regulations

107

If no screens and less than 2m

tables, you need to state what

I table service inside only




APPENDIX B — STAFF, CUSTOMER, PREMISES, KITCHEN

Before Opening:

A~{ REDACTED TEXT
Follow normal Trail procedures, plus extra Covid daily Do you use the Trail
Business r : H g : system? I thought this
ess ready to Staff/Customers checklists by sh|ft leader covering: cleaning product was just for REDACTED
open safely -HIGH stocks, frech whites for staff, workstation shift plan, TEXT Co premises. Do
. . s neauida frach sahitac
staff health checks, signage in place. & |REDACTED TEXT i
CPLTraining completed before return to work Again, is CPL just the
system that REDACTED
R . TEXT use? What training|
Uniform Staff/Customers Staff to change into uniform in business and asked to have you given your
-HIGH only bring minimum personal belongings staff in Covid measures?
Records of this training?
Whilst Open:
a~{ REDACTED TEXT
Allowing kitchen access to as few people as possible. How do you keep kitchen
) Staff/Customers ff from ba
Overcrowdin i i i i staff separate from bar
g -HIGH Putting tf—:‘ams mFo shlfts to restrict the number of <taff and floor staff?
workers interacting with each other.
. . e
Spacing workstations apart as much as REDACTED TEXT
possible,recognising the difficulty of moving equipment  |How ha:'e mu doIne this
. in your Kitchen? It's
such as sinks,hobs and ovens. realy narrow,
REDACTED TEXT
Using ‘one way’ traffic flows to minimise contact. Is this marked out, if so,
Minimising access to walk-in pantries, fridges and hid 2
g P » 1Tidg REDACTED TEXT
freezers, for example, with only one person being able Do you have a walk-in
to access these areas at one pointin time. pantry? Make this site-
specific to your business,
Minimising contact at *handover’ points with other staff,
inimising contact at ‘handover’ points with other staff,
Staff/Customers & . P . REDACTED TEXT
Contact HIGH such as when presenting food to serving staff and Explain exactly how you
- N . do this.
delivery drivers.
cvery crivers " |REDACTED TEXT
Continuing high frequency of hand washing throughout Are hands dried with
the day. paper towels, as this is
. ) the safest way of drying
Asking workers to wash hands before handling plates to prevent Covid Sp?;ad
and takeaway boxes.
& REDACTED TEXT
Breaks Staff/Customers Minimising interaction between kitchen staff and other How do you do this?
-HIGH workers, including when on breaks.
«& |REDACTED TEXT
Increase cleaning frequency to existing cleanin As before, they need
Touch points and Stoff/Customers rocedures. Pa gclos: atte:tion to su:aces toﬁch disinfecting i a
, -HIGH pro - ey ' product that kils viruses
general hygiene points and utensils
REDACTED TEXT
Providing only disposable condiments or cleaning non- So which of these do you
, Staff/Customers . gonly . P . ¢ actually do? Y
Condiments etc HIGH disposable condiment containers after each use. Or use ’
ramekins to dispnse per use.
REDACTED TEXT
Menus Staff/Customers Display menus on boards and or laminated menus or Again, which of these do
-HIGH disposing of paper menus aftereach use. you actually have in
. . . place? Disposable menus
Any changes to existing menus require allergen list are the safest.
& REDACTED TEXT
Handover Staff/Customers Clean and disinfect,
-HIGH Full clean down at shift handovers, phones, touch points ;‘i:’}‘gegmdm which ks

108



9 jo | adey (0T/S0/97) 1 uoIsIDA ID}j00] 6L-AIAOD

1USLLLISACK) _\MI Yasywpvaies

3y} 40 1eay

t

1S9M YINos au)

diysiauying ul palaal)aqg

'Ajajes ssauisng JnoA 3uiuesad 03 nok apind djpy [Im 1y 1001 6 1-AIAOD (Viggd) NIV J0) ssauisng 19339 Siy |

"(dusqam anof uo paysignd
9 os|e p|noys siy3 saako|dwa a1ow 40 (g dABY NOA §) ISIPPBYD 21n23s QIAOD), Y1 319|dwod pue ssauisng oA 03 Jyidads JusLIssasse 3SId B 30npuod)

‘uado 01 pamoj[e aue nok a5uo 3de|d Ul 3q 03 painbau $[OIUOD puE SHSLI BYI SUlISPISUOD T3S [|13S Pinoys nok 194 uado Jouued nok ]

‘8utuado-au 03 JoLid

949 31| -uado ued 3ey3 sasiwaid Jo 1sl| 3y uo aue nok J PaYD)
¢uado | ued aq pjnoys uotjsanb 3siiy ano,

'61L-AINOD
§O |0.3U03 Y3 01 JUBAJ|3. SAUIIPING JUBWIUIDAOL) JUBIIND YIIM 93ep 03 dn doad) osje NoA aunsus aseajd IBj00 | Siy3 Ul paisagsns mco_um._mn_m:Ououco_p_Eum:_

'noA djay 03 sapind |njasn pue sisippaYd ssauisng ‘ueld uonoe pue
91e|dWa3 JUSLISSISSE H{SId B SB YINS SIUSWINIOP [Nyasn sapIAod IDj00] ¢L-PIA0D) siy| "Ajojes ssauisng noK Supielsad 10} suoie.IapIsSUOd urew ay3 Yydnoayl noA
aping djoy 03 suopesiuedo paisn.y Wo.y s92Inosa. Jay39803 Suliq 03 asiuadxe pue a8pajmowy| JIyl pasn sey diysasuiied (yigg) ||V 10} ssauisng J9139g oY |

v

L. ssauisng Iolisyg

o xipuaddy

109



9 jo 7 32ed

(07/S0/97) | UOISIBA IB|00] 61L-AIAOD

e

‘paJinbau
J1 JUDWISSISSE H|SIJ DY dPISBUOJE SIY3 3S[) "IUSWISSISSE
5S4 UNOA JO I NS3J © SB 1IN0 A4led 01 Padu NOA suojIde
ay3 JO ||e p4od3ad 03 Judwindop Ateluawa|ddns y ueld UoNdY | 07/S0/0T LA
“JUDWISSISSE JISId INOA 1IN0 SUlAUIBD UBYM SN0} 03 VETES
JeyM J3pisuod nok djay |jim Ajoses Supjuom o3 sdais § SUDJIOAA 03 sdR3S G | 07/50/0T LA
191504 94ndag pIACD
OIN'AOD) SNJIAIOUOI0D Sulnp Aj2JeS SUDIIOAA
(3SH) snaiaeucIOd paJinbau suonoe pue s3uipuyy 4nok paodad
SUIIUaAS1d INOQE SIDIOM JNOK JIM SUDj[e] | 03 Juawndop uejd UoiIde ay3 Yam uopduniuod ut asn
3SH) °pInH “20e|d>40M B3 JB SNJIIABUO.IOD JO peauds ay3 Juaaaud
110US  SNJIABUOIO ) SULINp A|9jeS SUDIOAA | ©1 ade|d ul @ARY NOA S[0JIUOD SY3 PJoda. 03 919|dwod JUBWISSASSY
(3SH)IuUBWISSasSY dsiy 03 NOA 10} WI0J JUBWISSISSY disiy dre|dwa v 3ty 61-AIAOD | 07/S0/0T LA

*JUBWNIOP 3Y] PDOJUMOP PUD M3IA 03 3)GDI 3Y3 Ul Yulj aY3 UO Y21)2 aspajd

*JUSWISSISSE HYSLI JNOA pajajdwod SulAey ssaulsng d1j10ads NOA 03 JueAdja. S4B Jey] Sj01IU0D ppe pue puswe pinoys
NOA Uo1D3.Ip awWos NOA aALS djay pjnoys asay3 YSNoYljy *dduepins JUSLIND UO Paseq $]043U0d JURASjal Jo s3jdwexa ureluod sisiIayd 9y 310N

‘Buiuado-a. uaym asn [ednnoedd Jo sjuswndop pue ‘ueld UONDE ‘SIsIPIOBYD 93B|dWSI BYI PUl [|IM SISSBUISN] JBYI S| W Y | ADUSSY SPJEPURIS POO HN'AOS

SS[EAN UOIIBAOUU| pOO] ‘HI[D ‘©pnjoul s224nog “diysiauiied ygg 9yl SSOJJE JJels Aq 9oueping JuSWIUISAOS JUSLIND WOJ PaIR|j0d Uddq SBY ID]|003 SIY |

110



9

Jo ¢ a8ey

(0T/S0/97) | UOISIaA IDjj00] 6L-AIAOD

ssauisng JNoA o3ul SUILOD SUOJISIA PUE SIOIDBIIUOD
03 92ejd ul Ind aABY NOA s|0JIUOD Aue SIEDIUNLILLIOD
noA djay 01 aping JOLISIA B PI1JeIS DARY DAA

SpING) SIOISIA

0¢/90/0C

LA

"9e|d Ul aJe $|04Iu0D SUIDUBISIP [B120S pUE $SIIDB
A3wo3snd aunsua noA djay o3 3sipPayd 1aeIsad y

1SIP]PayY D) JBWoIsnD)

0¢/50/0C

LA

$Pd"3dd 404 ISIPPRYD 93edNISD 3D 4ISg
pdoiwapued ¢ -QIAQD Y3 SULINp A 3y
ul asn 4o} S3UIIBA0D 308} PUR $HISBW 0] 9pINn3 |Sg

"9ouBpINg 15318 243 Y1m a3ep 03 dn dooy|

ases|d ‘pamairal Ajauelsuod 3uiaq si sty -sSupias ased
Y3feay jo apisino g L-QIAQD Isurede 10a301d 031 344
JO 3sn ay3 Jo 9duepIng JUBWUIA0S3 Y3 jo Asewiuns

® 59AI8 Ma1AA0 JusWwdinba aAda30.d feuosiad ay |

MBIAIRAO JUBWIdINDY
DA1D310.4d [BUOSID

07/90/0C

LA

35UepIND SHN

‘MO|jo4

03 Paau Jjels suoiIdniisul mau Aue apnjul pjnoys

3] “JUDWISSISSE Sl g |-OIAQD JnoA Suimojjoy 2oe|d
u1 3nd aAey noA sadueyd ufew ay3 aredjunwwod djay
03 S| SIY | 'NOA 10§ OOqPUEY }JBIS B PIIJEIS DABY SAA

>|00qpueH jels

0¢/90/0T

LA

92UBPIND) [9ABI] S|(] AOD

"14odsueay
21jgnd UO pUE SO|DIYDA Ul HIOM WO} PUR O3 [2ARL] O
paau oym ajdoad 1oy uonesapisuod Sulinbay sualre)

JJIOAA O [9ARL]

07/90/0T

LA

UDWIOM JUBUS3Id IO} 93UEBDING)

61-AIAOD 03 3|qeJaU[NA ISOW 350y} JO SUIP|SIYS
(H3I1D) Y3feaH [eaus|y

(3sH) (Quawdinb3 usaudg

Ae[ds|( SUIPN|oUl) SIDIOAA SWOH 3UI12330.1

—

"9oejd>1oM

ay3 ui sauawaainbaa auai84y jo juswaeuew

pue spaau Julutes) [euoIppe jo uoinudodal
‘U0I3BINSUOD SUIPN[DU| {40M O3 11} PUE ||SM UlRWIDI
J#e3s unoA aunsua noA djay 01 1sip|P8Yd uelsad

ISIPPayYD Hels

07/50/0¢

LA

111



9 Jo p adeq (07/50/97) | uoIsI3A |00 61-AIAOD

S|03U0d 61-AIAOD
Joy Aressadau sjuswaduedie auai3Ay [euostad ISIP|PaY D) 2USISAH

O3PIA SUIYSEM pUBH pue Bujues|d [euonIppe Ajauapi djay 01 ISIPPAYD Y | [EUOSIdd pUE SUlUES)D | 0T/S0/0T LA

"sao130e.4d 3upjJoMm 3jes 4oy
sdia pue suly pue ajdoad pue sjelia3ew ‘syonpo.d jo
SIUSLUSAOW 3Y3 PUE 33IS Y3 UIYIIM SUOIIBDO| dY3 |8
JO MBIAISAO Ue apiroud 03 st ueld 91is ay3 Jo wie ay | ueld @IS | 07/S0/0T LA
2DUBISI(] W dod))
SURN3NEY) USYM 9DUBIS|(] WY a3}
S13W03sSN7) JO J9qUWINU a3 supiwr] N
519150 ade|d)JoMm JnoA uj BuidUBISIp [BID0S JO JuUSWadBURW 1
JSH SuidUe)SI(q |BIDOS Uo adUepIing ay3 Japisuod nok djay jjim IsippRayd siy L ISIPIIRYD) B2 S[HOAA | 07/S0/0T LA
sassaulsnq
9SE3SIp SoJjeuUO|3o] pUE Bjj2uUoISaT] 03 opInD) J93.e| 10} 9|qeINS 0N (T 1 ON 'SW1sAS J91BM p|OD
9seasIp s,a4[BUUOIZa] HI|D PUE 30U JINOA UO U3XEI SUOJIDE PIOdaL O3 ISIP|I3YD) ISIPPRYD) EjjpuoidaT | 07/S0/0T LA
3wl jo potsad e Joj pasopd
U935 SBY Jey3 SSauisng e 10} AIeSSadau 3319 se3 ‘U9IEMm ISIPIP3YD senijin
uo $33Y> pJoda4 pue Ajnauapi djpy o3 1sipjrsy D puUe SadiAJag suipjing | 07/S0/0T LA

- ssauisng Ja3199g




9 jo g a3ey (0T/S0/97) | UOISIOA ID}|00] 61-IAOD

61 PIAOD SULIND SS3UISNg POO] 0} 3UBPING) H'AOD) :9DIAPY JUSWUISAOL)
(H31D) ssauisng pooj e ul A|9jeg SUD[IOAA ‘3DIAPY Y3|eSH [BIUSWIUOUIAUT JO 91N11ISU| paJtalteyD)
ISIP23YD) 3UlUdO-aYy SSauIsng POO pue )N"AO3 P00 :92IAPY Aduady spJepuel§ poo

$3SSBUISNG POOJ 01 JUBAS|DJ SHUI| GIM [BUOIIIPPE 2.J4¢ 24dY) 910U 35BI|J

'SIYIIYIA WO} IO Ul jIoM oym djdoad oy adueping
pue ‘saydue.q pue sdoyg

‘A1oA1jop 40 Aemeadiel SUlId}JO SIUBINEISDY

‘sswoy s,sjdoad JsoyiQn
$9.3USD 1DBIUOD PUE SADIYO
‘s9131|108} Yd4B359.4 pUB SqET]
‘sasnoyaJem pue siue|d ‘salioloe
]40M 10OPINO JIYIO pUE UOIIdNIISUOD)

.

3

~ N MmN YN o0

140} §[043U0D 22B|d}IOM gL-(IAOD d3elddoadde

JO UOIIRJBPISUOD PUE JUSLUSSISSE HSLI INOA LIIM 3SISSE 03 540M 30 s3d43 dy1dads Lo 8duepINg 40} (HN'AOD) SNIIAIOUGIOD BULIND A[3JeS SUDJIOAA USIA

"SUOIID® JAIID3110D AUe paodal
PINACS 9Yd S35 INOSSISNIIARUOI0D/:SAIY| 01 pue 23e|d Ul UfeWS] JUDSWISSISSE HSIi UNOA Ul S22y 013U

3uiSessow eIpa}y [BIDOS PUE 19104 |  PaIIIUSP! SABY NOA SUNSBAW PO O3 1PNE-}as Aeq-6L-AIAOD | 07/S0/0T LA

113



9 jo g adey (07/50/97) | UOISIDA 3D}j00] 41-AIAOD

1¥0 /¥0 9SPEO |[BD 4O /YdN0I1-UI-183|N 0D GNYYIMOISMSJOIIBIY MMAM//:5d11Y suoile.idse pue spasu ssauisng JnoA 39aw 03 3uoddns 1ysia aya Ajizuspi
pue uonsanb unoA 01 suamsue puy ‘suoindo 3uoddns ssauisng a3e3iAeu NoA djoy 01 WEd gNH YIMO.UL) ISIAA YINOS 33 JO 1B SY3 IDBIUOD OS|e UBD NOA

/||B-10J-S5aUISNG-12138G5|N" 03" GNUYIMOIZMSJOLIBIY MMM//:SA31Y 1949y PUNOy 9q UBD $308IU0D A11Ioy3ne [BI0] [euoi8al syl 03 Hjur
'ssauisng 4nok moJd noA djay pue ssausApiadwod inok aroadwi ‘ASuow pue awil NoA dABS Ued sJolendad

[220] J4NOA Y2M SUPJJOM MOY MOYS O) PUE 19SISWOS @ UOAS(] Ul PJSAI|IP dJE SADIAISS AJorejnSad moy aaoadwi 01 swie yjgg ‘uoidaloud oygnd Sulureuiew
18)Iym ‘Aaisdsoud sjwouods [edo] a10woud 01 195I9WOS § UOAI(] SSOJE pue siolejndau pue juoddns ssauisnq ‘sassauisng usamiaq diystauilied [ed0| ® S| yigg

¢(vigg) 1|V Jo} ssauisng 1a1l1ag st Jeym

/SS8UISNg-10}-110ddNs-g | -PIAOD 5N 03 qNUYIMOISMSJOLIBBY MMAM//:sd11Y 1uoddns
$SAUISNQ Jay3an) pue 3JUeping ‘@dIAPE ‘SAWBYIS O3 SHUI| SMO||O} 3IdH "SNUIABUOIOD) ay3 jo s1oedull ay3 y3nouys Suideurw yim sisse 03 31oddns ssauisnq Jay3o
pUE SaWBYDS JUSWIUISAOL) UO 15938 33 JO NOA WJOjul pue ssauisng 40y 14oddng ¢ -p1aoD) uo paiepdn noA dasdj 03 paey Supjiom aJe Weal gnpH YIMouo) ay |

“S35S3UISNQ-10}-30]APe-[e1auad

=61 -PIAOD/SSaUISN( >N A0S SPIEPUEISSUIPEII30S IOWOSUCASP MMM/[:S011Y 103 19Ja. 3ses|d Hea1qino ¢L-gIAOD Sulinp ssdi3dedd 3upiid pue ssjes pue sajes
suoydsa3 01 Suiyoams “uasiiues puey {(3dd) 3uawdinbg sA119910.y [euostay Buik|ddns ojdwiexs 4o} ‘spaepuels SuipeJl JO BaJE Y3 Ul UOIIBWIOUL JBYIINY 404

Hy ssauisng is}ieg

114



Appendix D

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 20 August 2020 16:48

To: REDACTED TEXT

Cc: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: Pascal's Bar, 6 Queens Place, Hove, BN3 2LT - warning letter re lack of Covid controls

Importance: High

Dear Pascal,

I was very concerned to hear what my colleague REDACTED TEXT and the Police saw at your premises when they
visited on 14 August 2020. | had warned you just 2 days before about the importance of carrying out a proper Risk
Assessment and putting adequate controls in place to minimise the risks of Coronavirus transmission. | have still not
received a copy of your revised Risk Assessment.

I must warn you that continued non-compliance, cases linked to your business, or evidence of high Coronavirus
transmission could result in the formal closure of your business. The attached letter explains more in detail and
you have 7 days in which to send me your revised Risk Assessment. Printed copies have been sent out in the post. |
have copied in my colleagues in Licensing and Environmental Protection. | also attach a Registration Form for you to
complete and return to show the change of trading name of the business.

I look forward to receiving your Risk Assessment and completed Registration Form. Further visits will be made to
check for compliance in due course.

Kind regards,

REDACTED TEXT

Food Safety Team, Environmental Health & Licensing
Public Health, Brighton & Hove City Council
Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square

Brighton, BN1 1JP

REDACTED TEXT
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foodsafety

My working days are Monday to Thursday

CORONAVIRUS
Keep your business safe by following social distancing guidelines:-
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/social-distancina/index.htm

WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:

e Get home or into work

» Blow your nose, sneeze or cough

o Eat or handle food

g &

CATCHIT. BINIT. KILLIT.

A Lremrvend

Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

115



, Regulatory Services
‘ l } ‘ Bartholomew House
\IPLL0, TITL ) W Bartholomew Square

Brighton & Hove Brighton
City Council BN1 1JP
REDACTED TEXT
Date: 20 August 2020

Our Ref:  2020/16096/COVIDC/EH,
2020/15689/FPHYG/EH &
2020/15961/FPHYG/EH

Contact: REDACTED TEXT

Phone: REDACTED TEXT

Email: REDACTED TEXT
FIRST CLASS

Copy also sent to premises (for the
attention of Mr P Madjoudj) and by
email to REDACTED TEXT

Dear Sir/Madam,

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) Regulation 2020
Food Safety Act 1990

The Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013

Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004

Complaints about hygiene issues, overcrowding and a lack of social distancing
Re: Pascal’s Bar (formerly La Fourchette), 6 Queens Place, Hove, BN3 2LT

I write with reference to recent phone calls and emails sent to Mr Pascal Madjoudj and REDACTED
TEXT (the Manager) and my visit to your premises on 12 August 2020. During this visit, recent
complaints were discussed with Mr Madjoudj in person and Mr REDACTED TEXT on the phone. We
recently received two complaints alleging the bin area smelt and covered in broken glass, there
were flies in the bar and food was being prepared where dirty plates and cutlery were stacked up
in the kitchen. A further complaint concerned noise from loud music, overcrowding of the
premises, a lack of social distancing and the tables and chairs on the terrace being very close
together. The noise issue is being dealt with by our Field Officer our-of-hours Team, but playing
loud music also has implications for Covid-19 (Coronavirus) controls within your business. If
people on the premises have to raise their voices over loud music, there is an increased risk of the

virus spreading in airborne droplets, as | explained to Mr Madjoudj during my visit on 12 August
2020.

| first discussed these complaints with Mr Madjoudj by phone on 30 July 2020 and was told that he
and the new Manager were looking at re-arranging the customer seating over the weekend. |
emailed guidance including posters showing how to safely arrange seating for social distancing. |
phoned again on 4 August 2020 and spoke to Mr REDACTED TEXT as | was told that Mr Madjoud] was
away. Mr REDACTED TEXT described Covid control measures that had been put in place and
emailed me a copy of the Risk Assessment for the business. The Risk Assessment was based on
one produced by the REDACTED TEXT and was not site specific. It also required much more

116



detail on the Covid control measures in the business, as | explained in my email to Mr Madjoudj
and Mr REDACTED TEXT on 4 August 2020.

In the email, | explained what you needed to do to protect your staff, customers and other people
affected by your business (eg visitors, contractors, delivery drivers) from Coronavirus. As an
employer, you have a duty under the Health & Safety at Work etc Act to protect people from harm.
In particular, | expressed my concern at the photo taken in the evening on Saturday 1 August 2020
outside the premises, showing a densely packed terrace, and a large crowd of people spilling out
onto the pavement and into the road. The people were all very close together and so there is
a very high risk of spreading Coronavirus. | warned you that this situation was
unacceptable and must not be repeated. Some people clearly had bottled drinks in their hands
and they were obstructing the public highway. | understand that my colleague in Licensing
(REDACTED TEXT) emailed Mr Madjoudj about this on 3 August 2020 as she had also received a
complaint. | understand that she made a further visit with REDACTED TEXT from Environmental
Protection and the Police on 14 August 2020. In her warning letter emailed to Mr Madjoudj and Mr
REDACTED TEXT on 17 August 2020, Ms REDACTED TEXT states that there was no evidence of any
social distancing measures in place at the time of the visit. The inside and outside of the
premises were overcrowded. This is particularly disappointing as | had met with Mr Madjoudj on
site on 12 August 2020, 2 days prior to Ms REDACTED TEXT visit, and explained clearly what
measures were required. Customers should be sat at tables and not standing around together
drinking. | left a printed copy of our seating guidance to assist you in working out a safe seating
plan and | advised on how tables and chairs should be rearranged. | also explained that the seats
on the pavement were too close to the ones on the terrace and so needed to be moved round or a
screen installed on top of the boundary wall. Without these measures, there is a risk of
customers contracting Coronavirus from close contact with others groups of people.

Below is a further explanation of what you need to do with regard to customer seating:-

Seating

You should ensure that as a minimum, you enable customers to sit at least 1 metre apart from
people not in their household/bubble in all directions (measure from person to person as sat in
their chairs). If customers are seated at 1 metre (and not 2 metres), you must also have extra

controls in place, such as:

» Screens between people;

« Ensure good ventilation;

« Set up chairs back to back;

+ If this is not possible side to side (least preferred).
This applies to all the business’s tables and chairs inside and outside. You may need permission
from the council’s Highways Team for tables and chairs on the pavement, so | suggest that you
contact them. You must also ensure that staff keep at least 1 metre apart from customers and
from each other. | gave Mr Madjoud] a poster that you may find helpful to put up for staff and
customers to see to ensure they have an understanding of why tables and chairs may be arranged

in a certain way or why they cannot sit in a certain place.

| expect you to manage seating arrangements by ensuring that customers do not move chairs and
tables (unless it is to accommodate all members of their household/bubble only). Your staff need
to monitor this and you could put notices up or stickers on the tables telling customers not to move

the furniture.

When | visited on 12 August 2020, | had not been sent a copy of your revised Risk Assessment.
Mr REDACTED TEXT asked for a further two weeks to complete it but as you should have carried out a
Risk Assessment at the beginning of lockdown in March (as your business was to continue trading

117



as a take-away during restrictions), and had re-opened fully at the beginning of July, | felt you had
already had adequate time. | asked for the revised document to be sent to me by 14 August 2020.
To date, this has still not been received. | ask that you email me a copy of your revised
Covid-19 Risk Assessment within 7 days. Ifitis not received by then, continued non-
compliance could result in the service of a Prohibition Notice to close your premises until
you carry out an adequate Risk Assessment and put control measures in place to minimise
the risks from Covid-19. | must warn you that we can close your business at any time if we
see further poor compliance, the risk of transmission remains high or if there are cases
linked to your business. Ms REDACTED TEXT has also warned you about the potential impact
on your alcohol licence from failing to meet your licence conditions.

In your Risk Assessment, you also need to address the ‘pinch point’ by the customer
toilets/kitchen where people passing each other will be too close together, particularly if queuing
for the toilets. You need to ensure that customers maintain social distancing when using the
toilets, and devise a safe system, as there are two cubicles in the ladies’ toilets but a shared lobby.
The use of signs on the walls near the toilets, the toilet doors or floor markers indicating where to
stand and how to maintain 2m distancing will all help to minimise the risk of the virus spreading, as
discussed on site with Mr Madjoudj on 12 August 2020.

Incidentally, | noted that a new cubicle containing a urinal and wash hand basin had been installed
by the kitchen. | believe that this, the new ladies’ toilets and possibly other alterations that you
have made to the building this year, require Building Control approval, so | have informed that
Department. You must seek approval for such works.

I would reiterate what | said in my email of 4 August 2020 to Mr REDACTED TEXT copied to Mr
Madjoud;. It is essential that you complete the Risk Assessment fully and put all necessary
controls in place to stop the virus spreading. Being ‘Covid Secure’ will protect the staff, customers
and the business. | expect that you are aware of the potential consequences for the business if
there was an outbreak linked to the restaurant, with possible formal closure being something that |
am sure you would wish to avoid. | included the Better Business for All Toolkit with a link to a
template Risk Assessment, showing all the areas you need to consider.

The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) have also put together some guidance and an example
risk assessment template to help you comply: https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/working-
safely/risk-assessment.htm

Ms REDACTED TEXT also informed me that you did not have adequate records of customers when
she visited on 14 August 2020. | will explain below what you should do:-

How to gather data from customers
Help the NHS ‘Test and Trace’ system by keeping a temporary record of customer details for 21
days in line with GDPR Regulations. You can do this by:

» Taking the name, email, phone number and date from one person per family/bubble

» Making sure you store the details safely so no one else can see them (locked box)

* Do not use the contact details for any other purpose

e Destroy the contact details after 21 days
You should assist the Test and Trace service by keeping a temporary record of your staff shift
patterns and visitors to the business for 21 days too. See Pages 14 and 42 of the government’s
guidance for more information:-
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5eb96e8e86650c278b077616/working-safely-
during-covid-19-restaurants-pubs-bars-takeaways-140820i.pdf

Making your establishment Covid-19 secure will make residents, visitors, your clientele and staff
feel safer and will reduce the risk of closure and local lockdowns.

118



Finally, when | visited, | noted that the name of the premises has been changed from La
Fourchette to Pascal’'s Bar. You must complete the enclosed Registration Form to show the
new trading name and also to confirm that the above limited company is still the ‘food
business operator’. | ask that you return your completed form to me within 7 days, or you
can complete it online at https://new.brighton-hove.gov.uk/business-and-trade/food-

safety/start-and-register-new-food-business

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this letter further, please do not hesitate to contact me
at the above address. For further Covid-related advice and information, you can visit our website

at https://new.brighton-hove.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19

If you are unhappy with the service you have received, please contact the Regulatory Services
Manager, contact number (01273) 292157.

Yours faithfully,
REDACTED TEXT

REDACTED TEXT, Food Safety Officer.

Enclosure:- Food Registration Form

c.c. Mr P Madjoudj at the premises and by email
C.C REDACTED TEXT — Brighton & Hove City Council

119



APPLICATION FOR THE REGISTRATION OF A FOOD BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT

(Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 on the Hygiene of Foodstuffs, Article 6(2))

This form should be completed by food business operators in respect of new food business establishments and submitted to us 28 days
before commencing operation.

Address of Establishment (or address at which moveable establishment, like a mobile food van, is kept)

Status of Food Business Operator(s):

Sole Trader o Partnership o Limited Company o Other o (Please specify .........c.oovveiiiiiiiiii e,

Head office address of Food Business Operator (where different from address of establishment) If a limited company provide
Co. Number and registered address. [f not a limited Co. please provide Home address

Telephone No. ... Email

Type of food activity (Please tick ALL the boxes that apply):

Staff restaurant/canteen/kitchen

a Hospital/residential home/school ]
Retailer (including farm shop) n| Distribution/warehousing o
Restaurant/café/snack bar u| Food manufacturing/processing ]
Market/ Market Stall ] Importer m]
Takeaway m] Catering ]
Hotel/pub/guest house m] Packer o
Private house used for a food business Moveable establishment e.g. ice creamvan O
Wholesale/cash and carry a Primary Producer — livestock =i
Food Broker u] Primary Producer — arable o
Other (Please give details): ..ottt et e
If this is a2 new business, what date do you intend £0 OPEen? ....................oiiiiiiiiiii it
Signature of Food Business Operator (5) .................c...oovuvviiiinnieeceeenn, Date ...
NAMIE L e e (BLOCK CAPITALS)
Once completed, this form should be sent to: AFTER THIS FORM HAS BEEN SUBMITTED, YOU

MUST NOTIFY ANY SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO

Brighton and Hove City Council THE ACTIVITIES STATED ABOVE (INCLUDING
Food Safety Team CLOSURE) TO US AND SHOULD DO SO WITHIN
Bartholomew House 28 DAYS OF THE CHANGE(S) HAPPENING.
Bartholomew Square
Brighton BNI )P

On the basis of the activities carried out, certain food business establishments are required to be approved rather than registered.
If you are unsure whether any aspect of your food operations would require your establishment to be approved,
please contact us for guidance — telephone 01273 292161 email ehl.food@brighton-hove.gov.uk
or look at our website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foodsafety

120




Appendix E

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: Wednesday, August 26, 2020 11:12:45 AM

To: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: Fwd: Pascal's Bar - Covid-19 Risk Assessment and table spacing

This email originates from outside of Brighton & Hove City Council. Please think carefully before
opening attachments or clicking on links.

Morning REDACTED TEXT
In correspondence to your findings

Return to Work Questionnaire
| was surprised that there wasn’t anything done here. So yes | borrowed it from my work REDACTED TEXT

as it’s what we used before we even opened so just so | could get the team here some advice on a
structure. | understand it’s not the latest information as you said changed last week but | carried out this
training previously but it’s to get the team at least have a understanding.

It is a bit generic words like pub bar break areas but I'll change it to hospitality venue or to pascals.

This needs amending as government advice on shielding was changed 6 days ago when shielding for
the clinically vulnerable was paused, see https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-
shielding-and-protecting-extremely-vulnerable-persons-from-covid-19/guidance-on-shielding-and-
protecting-extremely-vulnerable-persons-from-covid-19

The government guidance on car sharing includes other safety precautions, not solely opening car
windows.

Face coverings are mandatory on public transport.

Your Questionnaire says “Every staff member must carry out a return to work assessment” —do you
have a copy of this document please?

As the document refers to ‘the pub’s risk assessment, the pub’s back office and staff break-out
areas/canteens’, is the Questionnaire also borrowed from the REDACTED TEXT? You need to make it
relate to Pascal’s Bar.

If you have symptoms, you now have to self-isolate for 10 days. If you've been in contact with a case,
it’s 14 days, seehttps://www.nhs.uk/conditions/coronavirus-covid-19/self-isolation-and-treatment/when-
to-self-isolate-and-what-to-do/

Visits to the business Coronavirus Policy Document
Any visitors will have to book in with us ... think that’s what most companies are doing now. Delivery

drivers have been told to deliver before doors open to public as well by myself.

Opening Checklist
Yes last week | had table toppers saying had to sign in for track and trace. However I've changed it today to

having a QR code so it’s stored in the cloud no papers and to comply with GDPR pic is attached

Risk Assessment
Staff sheet — I've ensured that we have got a disinfectant chemical to clean ... I've attached a picture

121



Legionnaire’s Disease —this control was for after we reopened the bar and toilets etc ... | did not know
that he / pascal had ran a takeaway Buisness whilst on lockdown. So that control was for when the
Buisness was reopening . As everything is used now I'm only doing this once a week... is this ok ??

| have addressed the Walkin fridge freezer is done by the lead chef ( the one at the pass) in the risk
Assessment. | have put more signage on floors to guide customers for pinch points etc... team have been
shown and trained on payment procedure ( disinfected the Pdq machine on every usage) toilets we have
signage coming in only allowing certain number of guests in as in risk Assessment 1 at a time for gents and
two at time for ladies as have two cubicles.

To clarify my position as | think You need to know. | am here at pascals as a consultant not his manager as
he is telling everyone. | currently work as a manager partner with REDACTED TEXT as well as with the
REDACTED TEXT so | was asked 4 weeks ago to come and help him build a team for his site.

On my appointment | was surprised with the lack of organisation and basic information like having a risk
assessments being in place ... ( im lucky that | work with these big national companies who have a whole
health and safety departments were we are informed and kept up to date with all matters ) therefore |
have used some info from REDACTED TEXT and the REDACTED TEXT to help me get this place up to
scratch. And to be legal. | appreciate your time and hopefully together we can get it all sorted.

I have attached some pics. My personal number is REDACTED TEXT please call me to discuss further as I'm
not based on site as have two other venues that | run

REDACTED TEXT

3000 4O OVHL ANV NOVHL

122



123



Date: 24 August 2020 at 17:35:40 BST
To: REDACTED TEXT
Cc: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: RE: Pascal's Bar - Covid-19 Risk Assessment and table spacing

Dear REDACTED TEXT

Thank you for your email of 21 August and the documents. | can see you have made changes to the Risk
Assessment, but further amendments are still needed. 1 would reiterate that the Risk Assessment and
other documents must reflect the procedures in place in Pascal’s Bar. If you use documents from other
companies to form the basis of your Risk Assessment and written policies, it is essential that the
instructions in them are specific to your business. They must also be up to date and the Risk Assessment
must be ‘dynamic’ so that it is amended in line with new rules/guidance as they are issued (see below).

Below are my comments which | would welcome your response to or copies of amended documents. If

the documents are updated satisfactorily, | would then expect to see these procedures in place in the
bar/restaurant.

Return to Work Questionnaire

* This needs amending as government advice on shielding was changed 6 days ago when shielding for
the clinically vulnerable was paused, see https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-
on-shielding-and-protecting-extremely-vulnerable-persons-from-covid-19/guidance-on-shielding-
and-protecting-extremely-vulnerable-persons-from-covid-19

¢ The government guidance on car sharing includes other safety precautions, not solely opening car
windows.

¢ Face coverings are mandatory on public transport.

¢ Your Questionnaire says “Every staff member must carry out a return to work assessment” — do you
have a copy of this document please?

¢ Asthe document refers to ‘the pub’s risk assessment, the pub’s back office and staff break-out
areas/canteens’, is the Questionnaire also borrowed from the REDACTED TEXT? You need to make
it relate to Pascal’s Bar.

 If you have symptoms, you now have to self-isolate for 10 days. If you’ve been in contact with a
case, it's 14 days, see https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/coronavirus-covid-19/self-isolation-and-
treatment/when-to-self-isolate-and-what-to-do/

Visits to the business Coronavirus Policy Document
¢ It may not always be possible for visitors to make an appointment.
e See above re self-isolation times.
e Again, this document refers to a pub, rather than the bar/business it needs to relate to. It also
mentions ‘the property team’ so | guess it’s a REDACTED TEXT document.

Opening Checklist
¢ The Daily Manager Morning Checks refers to ‘table toppers’ being in place — do you have these?

Risk Assessment

e Staff sheet — Hygiene & Cleaning — as per my comment previously, remember it's not just cleaning,
but disinfection too, using a suitable disinfectant that also kills viruses, paying particular attention
to hand-contact points and also surfaces such as table tops

e Legionnaire’s Disease — your control is ‘Flush through water systems for 3-5 minutes before use and

temperature checks Opening Checklist’, but | don’t see the check listed on the Opening Checklist
document.

124



e Premises sheet - my previous comments on managing pinch points and toilet use, taking card/cash
payments, being site specific about the dry stores/walk-in freezer and whether or not delivery
drivers use a separate entrance have not been addressed.

I'd be grateful if you or Pascal could reply by 27 August 2020. Many thanks.

Kind regards,

REDACTED TEXT

Food Safety Team, Environmental Health & Licensing
Public Health, Brighton & Hove City Council
Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square

Brighton, BN1 1JP

REDACTED TEXT
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foodsafety

My working days are Monday to Thursday

CORONAVIRUS
Keep your business safe by following social distancing guidelines:-
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/social-distancing/index.htm

WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:
Get home or into work
Blow your nose, sneeze or cough
. Eat or handle food

LAt immrotad

CATCHIT. BINIT. KILLIT.

Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things
done | We will be clear and treat you with respect

Brighton and Hove City Council may disclose the contents of this email if requested by a third party, under
the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000. For further advice please contact (01273) 291207

or search our website on www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foi

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 21 August 2020 13:39

To: REDACTED TEXT

Cc: REDACTED TEXT >

Subject: Re: Pascal's Bar - Covid-19 Risk Assessment and table spacing

125



This email originates from outside of Brighton & Hove City Council. Please think carefully before
opening attachments or clicking on links.

Hi REDACTED TEXT

Sorry for the lateness of this as it took a while to ensure it was site pacific and putting these controls in
place . | have redone the Risk Assessment and gone through it with Pascal and team. |'ve restricted
numbers and implemented more measures including Friday and Saturday evening taking tables and chairs
of the public highway ( the 4 tables on other side of wall) around 8-8.30 as. This way we can prevent
people congregating outside and all people on terrace and inside are seated. Either the manager on duty
or a security guard if I'm not here will be here from 7-1 am on these days to ensure this happens and
everyone is seated.

I've attached updated Risk assessments with opening checklist for managers and staff return

sheets regarding COVID-19.

Soeak soon

REDACTED TEXT

126



(a19eo1dde 1) sunsopd wody
sainseaw A114nd3s jeuonippe Aue Jo jeaowal asiuesio

sowi} 8uiusdo a1049q
S10|s AJanijap Usy) OS Ji - BRI JDWIOISND Ul YdleY Jej|ad
S| ¢ uiBueyd pasu Asyl op - s1ojsawiy AJanijap ¥o8y)H

$3jgewnsuo)
/ pood / $juiiq :8ulapi yum 1aseuey uoddng

seaAojdwa] X3 1 431DVaIy Suiuinial Aue 10} M3IASY YH

Buiuinias seshoidwa | X31 GILOVAIY 48y10
Aue pue sia8eue|y Aq pa1ajdwod swIo) }IOM 03 UINDY

$354n02 14D palejdwod sey saeuep ¥oay)H

(sdo yum 2a.8e 03 salls
1X31 310vQ3y) elo4 aseq e pjing pue s3|es 15e32.04

suonowoud yoeg swodjam Aue uo 8348y

sawij SuiuadQ uaydy pue 1340 Poo4 uo apad

sinoH SuluadQ uo ap1ag

¢48)40 ays Jo ped e aqg siyz
Him pue pamojje Aemes)iey i - 32UddIT SISIWBIG YI8YD

¢Papaau AlNas sI - 90UadI] SAsIWRI YI3Y)

ssauisng
Ul [}13S SJ9PJOH 92UdDIT JO JaQWINU pPainbal 3I8y)

8)1S 10J Sd(Q 1994100 - MIIAL JIP|OH 39UII]

v/N
ISIUBIWIO) /SBI0N A0 N/A :1a8euey sdo

(uadp-a4d) oq o} - ssauisng ay3 Supjemy-ay

N3dO 34d YIDVYNVIN SdO

4 XiAN3ddv

127



918{dwoo si |1ea uo Isippray) Suiuadoay ssauisng }aayd

SISIPI9YD
[leJ] D1BISUIDJ PUE [IBJ] UO SSWI] Ssauisng ajepdn

¢uo Buippe Jo yo Sunsep
paau Aue oQ ¢dn pausis aJe S13sn 1BYMm - Ipne [1ed]

wea} ul auspyuod ‘a1sjdwod jje Suluies
‘219jdWw0? SIUBWISSISSE Y SI ‘SuoIle]S Jaspues ‘ade|d
uj 98euBis %o ue|d sjgel ‘ssauIsng JO pUnoJe Jjem |euld

Suiuado
-34 MoYs 01 3150d 2UO0 1SE3| 1B - BIPS |BI20S )I3YD

S3U1313S-9NUBA-SOIPIA-BUiulel]
-62T00T/s21d01/352(03pajMmOou/W0d 9210AIRSN SULj0d//:5d11Yy

:$3pIngd 0apIA

sjojsowif} 13 ueid
3[ge1 mau yum pajepdn uaaqg sey 1y3IN Aw udisag yaayd

43440 pue sawil Sujuado 104 AUSYIM HI3YD

8u1d1ad 13 1N UBYIUY UO SNUBW SULIP PUB POO} HI3YD

qgoy
WwoJy papaau siaisod uo swea} uo }asyspealds alepdn

ssauisng jo dn-19S yum uoddng

SIUBWISSASSY MSIY Yum 1oddng

uoiienajed Aldede) 13 uejd 100j4 yum uoddng

[pawuu0d 3q
01 ssa204d] pue Juswade|dal/[eAOWaL 104 BIN}UINS HIeN

219
Wea} Ul 92UapIU0I ‘SSauljued|d ‘sgupjdew 100}y ‘98euss
- Asuunor 921A49s, pue Bulpjing 4O punosejem jjn4

junowe uoi333|j0d agueyd
/ SUO1193]j0) Ulg 31elsulas 0} 1XI1 03LIVAIY 19eW0)

(sjqeoidde 1) sasuea|) ajeisuiay

128



sdQ yum sinoy SuiuadQ uo 2048y

anias 01 Apeay 1a8eueN 1dD

UOI1DY BAIIDROIJ Sunje] - SNIIABUOIOY) 1dD

V/N

ISUBWIWIO) /SBI0N 10 N/A :aahojdwiz/ssauisng

(uadp-aag) oqg o} - ssauisng ay3 Supjemy-ay

N3dO 34d 4IOVNVIN 31IS

¢3uippe pasu s1onposd mau Aue - 1) usyoy

%2342 Burag-jjam Jyels

"$95IN0J
6T-QIAOD |eUOIIPPE Papndul $354n02 AJoiepuRW ||e 10§ 323y uoinajdwo) 1dd

¢Apep 8ujuaddey Asys ase - syoayd Suyaug

%9840 03 1dD uo uodas uny
- ¢3JIBULOIISAND HIOM 0} UINIBY M8y} pa1s|dwod PauInias an_y OyM Wea) |je SAeH

£sa8ueyd 4o pajaLIg usaq weal aney - sa3ueyd AUe - MBIASL JUBWISSISSY HSIY

MIIN3JL ASUINOf BIINISS

MB3IN3I B30Y pue S3jes

"019 SBWI] IVINIBS
pood ‘sawi] SuiuadQ ‘921A13S ‘(pooy pue Yuup) snusy :Jafeuew UHM M3IAaY

sjuawiwo) /sajoN

V/N 10 N/A

:198euen

4a8eue sdQ Aq paiajdwod aq 03 syday) Apjaam SuioSup

SNDIHI ATHIIM SdO

129



sguipeay J213|A 23S

Suipjing

SHEWI XI3Y)

13410 3 sawiL SuiuadQ Yum eIpaI [B120S a1epdn

19440 '@ sawii] SuiuadQ Yum a)sgam d1epdn

‘Buluado-a. 240§30 MBINBY ¢ MBIABI €
anp Aay) aJe - SJUBWISSISSY YSIY 214 pue $H Yysnoayl yoayd

S1UBWISSasSY 3Sid 6T GINOD

s8ul118s-anuan-soapin-8uiuies]
-62100T1/s21do1/958(28pajMmou/wod  9210AI3SN"SUI|00//:5d11Y
:340ddns 01 moy, 03pIA

013 s10isawi] 73 WSIN Aw uBisaqg uo uejd 1004 epdn

uolnenoje) Ajpede) i ue|d 100}4

13p4Q S9|gRWNSUOD

(siqeoyjdde J1) s19p40 poo4

S/49plQ SuuQg

islauea|) aleisuiay

IND UBYAY UO 1SH| SHULIP 0IUO SWdY ,a100-uou, Aue ppy

1N7 USYIIIY OO NUBIA POO4 313D

SWwa3sAS MaN / D) uo uiules|

sluaWalinbal 351n0) 1d) Mau uo pajalqg sasiojdw]

Suiuinial seaAojdwa 03 a4eUUORSIND MLY

(340m 03 s8utBuojaq BuiBuuq ‘waoyun Suipnjour) ydnopny
woJ} Suiuinias saaAojdwa yum Jauq jjes auoyd LY

SSaUISNQ Ul [J13S S49P|OH S2UJIT JO Jaqwinu padinbal 3I8y)

sajes pajdadxa uo paseq ysnojnjun 03 oym apiIaQ

(sdO yum 9a48e 01 9IS 1X3L QILDVATY)
B10J 9seq e p|ing pue sajes 1Se1a.404

sawi} SuiuadQ yum asgsam ailepdn

J24JO pOO4 pue SINOH U3y Uo 9318y

130



12140

Supjsom ase (359n8 pue yeis yioq) Him o9y

S1S10Y 40 S}I| AuB UO UOIIBIIIBD HI3Y)D)

Buppom st walsAs aisnw }aay)

jeoio
ssauisng ase 1.yl Ajsieipawiwi sanssi uawdinba Aue 807

Sy40M 03 Jie/3uieay ¥2ay)

J40m 01 Suluinyal asoy3 Joj Sapod wieje aduey)

wieje 1apnaiu) y28y)d

Ajoieldosdde pajunow pue
UOIIPUO0D POOS Ui SIYsINBuIIXd 841} Ho3Yd ‘Buljjams ‘sasuly
400p 3.1y BupIBYD punoJe y[em [jn} Op Pue uwiieje aJl 153

‘popasu
1 Sdueusjulew Aue 0] pue papasu JI S1EISOWIAY] ISNfpyY

(‘8uip|eds

$0){SL 90NPal 0] §G-05 U3DMIRQ 3q PINOYS J31eM 10H
"au0z Ja3uep ul g J0u 03 s33.88p S SAOQE J31eM 10y pue
$93439p 07 MO[3q 24 P|NOYS 421BM P|0J) "I3]10q Y} WO}
Aeme 1s3yLing pue 15950)2 sde} wouy aunjesadwal ¥I8y)

dn pajeay aq o1 Ajddns
121EM JOJ SINOY € J0J BABI| PUE UO YIB( SIBJI0G YIUMS

"YIN01 03 JOOI S|894 PUR 4BBD S| J21BM BY3 |13UN
[13UN Y3N0oJY3 UNY "13[IN0 JUBISIP 1SOW 3Y3 01 AjjedItewa1sAs
8ulAow pue 3uipjing U3 S8493UD J31BM BY} 943YM

0} 3sa4eau del ay3 yum 3unuess ‘Ajjenpiaipui sdey jje 3aay)

saoueyjdde sed uo Suiuiny usym sjjaws sed Aue jo aieme ag

93ewep Juspou Jo suis Aue 1oy Bulim |BILIII|D YIBaYD

3upjiom st 3unysy jie 30syd

$1y31 pue saoueydde jea1a308)8 U0 uiny Ajjenpelo

131



asodund 104 31 pue paxd031s Ajny 3dd 48119)

sanss| 3sad Aue 104 %23YD

pa830) pue A|1094403 pakosisap uaaqg sey 4aag 40O jie Mo3Y)

Apieipawuwl pagd8oj sanssi Juawdinba Auy

‘Buisn 81049q sawi} € 1se9| 1e 321 dwnp
pue Aldwij 'uo uin) pue ues|d 4J91eM 4O BUIYIBW 3J1 Yysn|4

u01133]|02 404 salzdwa Aue asiuesiQ

Jej|so uesp dasg

(4311dns Aq Ajpoaaip pauesp) asuadsip yulp Yos

21ep ui aJe jeyl s8ay Aue 1o8uu0)

ssa@00.4d piepuels SuImoj|0) Saulj 193q dYy) uea|d

wa)sAs seg pue s13j002 433 3y} UO uinj

wia1sAs Buij00d Jejj9d uo uiny

J33em jueudels Aue jo sAaynd uead

ej|ad

19|qe] dn 198

supjiom s pAd H9YD

sansst 1sad Aue 10} 3234y)

1294102 218p ¥ W] pue SUNOM {|1I1S ALDD HI3YD

y»iom 01 Suluunial sia8euew Aue 03 sA9) ansst-ay

(018 S19]101 44B1S / WOOJ Y4e)S) seade yels Aue jo uea)d daaQ

821440 Jo uea) daaQ

13440 julQ g pood / Sudud 01 sadueyd §i S| alepdn

popasu ji Asey ydnouiyl 1eol
13p4Q - {uoIs123p sS40} ysed Sundadae 1o Ajuo paed i op12a(g

21ep 1034102 0} 08 Ajjeaiewolne siyl saop - SGM

alep 01 dn sj|13 189

132



Jo pasodsip sjuawipuod pauado Auy

paposu 4 sdo yum dn yoid a8uedie - (saynol
adedsa aJij Aue »00|q 10U Op) auniiuing ssadxa Aue a101s

Ajieap pasaquinu sajqel |iv

aouelsip
[e120s JuadIYNS ydiym ueid 100}) Jad se 1IN0 33s sajqey

ISNp [9A3] Y81y ‘sjuswieulo sajqel
‘sireyd ‘sadepins ||e Suipnjoul ‘pauea)d daap eale ajoym

1100}

A11234100 Sunjiom |je siajuiid pue sjji 3asy)

49150d Buiysem puey Aejdsip
S|amo} pue deos yum 3201s pue s/uiseq ysem puey ueajd

1

paAe|dsip sugis sainseapy pue syyBiap/ suadiajy

Jeq uo pahejdsip 1s1; aoud paiepdn

Aejdsip uo a3uady sastwald jo Adod paiizia)

aJemsse|s |je ajeaouuay

Axdws 1s)1ym s3j2A2 7 uni pue saysem ssej3 uea) daag

Spuem weals y3noayy ysnyy pue dn uado
‘BuiyoeW UeBD ‘SIINUIW G S0} JDIBM JO SUIYIRW 3303 ysni4

Pax201s Ajiny I piv 1s414

Jeq puiyaq pax)a01s 3dd

dn 2018

uo uJ4nj pue sagpuy ueap)

Jeq pulyaq saoepns jje ues|d dasq

leg

912D Ul ||13S SI UOIIRIYIIBD HO3YD ‘Baejd Ul Yif |

pasewep jou pue 1apJo Sunjom poos uj sdey Jejsd yI9y)H

133



paueajd daap ainjuiny apisINQ

218 ysiqqnu / a8e1joy - paipi eale apisINQO

19pISINQD

Supjiom si wieje 13|103 pPajqesip 1591

(sjqeaydde j1) 19]101 o1qissadde 10} anoge se sdals swes

pasiliues pue 1apJao 3upjom [n} ul jiun J38ueyd Ageg

asi}ues pue Supaom 3Je s1aAip-puey ¥o3YD

paAe|dsip sis3s0d Suysempuen

191BM P|OD pue 10y
40 Alddns e aney pue Ajaaioaya Sutuiedp aJe SHuUis [je 3I3y)

"sjamol pue deos puey ‘daded 13§101 yum payd01s Ajjnd

Alamioays pue Appinb Buiysny ale s1aj10])

ease 8411us uesd dasg

supjiom si 3uysij jjeoayd

1s39)101

pauedd daap sieyd ysiH

SMOpPUIM Ue3|D)

SUO11e1S 100} Aue Ul PaI01s Jdd

aoejd ui pue payd01s Ajjnj suollels JasIHuUeS

(a1qeoijdde y1) ssjgel usamiaq pue Jeq uo adejd ul Sp|sIYs

papaau Ji ddejd ul sSupjiew Joo}4

2313 siaddoy
ajgel ‘suoijeue|dxa pue sajns 82uenud ‘seale Suiyem
‘swaisAs Suiananb ‘sajnJ s19p101 :Buipnjoul dn 1nd a8eusis ||y

3j2A2 321A195 Mau 1ad se ease A1ayD04d pue AJ3jInd dn 13§

{1494 uayl sijeys saddad pue 3jes |je osiliueS pue ueaj)

134



asodind 10} iy pue UBB|D PUB B|]IEAR B1€ SWIOHUN UBYIY

ajqejieae snuaw uasiajje pajepdn

saqoud a1eaqiied

21015 AJp Ul Sway uo saiep || I8y

Ajoreipawwi synej yuawdinba Aue 807

UBB[D 948 10B4IX3 UO SI3|I I3y

uo LN} Yo Ji pue a8ewep
10§ Sa4IM [B14199]9 || I3y ‘Juawdinba jje uea|d dasg

poSewep
usaq 40 paystiad 10U SABY UBAO UO SjB3S J00p ¥o3y)

pasinbau 1 150439p pue 321 Jo dn pjing 10§ S18Z934) NIBYD

uo u4ny pue sagpuy jje uespd daaq

SY23YD jled] B1eISuUl-ay

Sunjiom st o8y pue 13jqel adiey)

U3y

siaiiieq / sajed / Bupuay o1 a8ewep Aue 4oy ¥I3Y)D

sugap Jo o8ewep
woJy 9344 pue iapio upjiom poos uj ase suajueld jje ¥y

JapJo Bupjiom pood uf aie sBulume / sejjRiquin jje 3osy)

juawdinba Aejd sppyj Aue JJo 3sopd pue }o8y)H

3unjiom ase siareay pue s1ysi| [eusaIxa e 38y

siuawaned Aue Buppojq 1ou - sSunjiew
100}} pue s12350d yum N0 payiew Aespd ananb asuesjug

03 01 Apeau pue pajepdn spieog-y

paAeidsip
si@1s0d sawiy Buiso)d uspled/sinoqysiau Jno adsay

Ajaeap passquinu sajqey ||y

135



wea) 03 pajedunwwod
pue paieSajap sajo. pue 213|dwod Jauueld YIYS

sa|qe} j|e uo uonleuejdxa ad1AIaS Yyum siaddol ajqe].

2oed ui sSupjiew snanp / 1004

ue|d uooyj 4ad se siieyD / se|qey

SUOlIED0| 3|qeNS Ui pue 3|qejleA. 1dd ||V

payo03s Ajpny pue aoe|d uj SUOHIRIS JasIiUES

a2e|d ul 31934402 ||13s sJa3s0d |1y

SIUBISSDSSE
)si 01 sa8ueyd Aue /323yd [edipaw / 39Ad 921185
/ uejd 1004 01 sadueyd Aue :weaj |je yim jaug Ajreg

{so130B4d BUpjIOM BjBS pUR STUSWISSISSY dStY
‘lesodsip ajes pue asn :3JIAPY 3dd ‘seM|iqisuodsal
pue s3j0. gof ‘Asuunol 9o1n43s) Bulujeal uonodnpul
Suiuadoau a3e|dwiod Aep 1541} saaAojdws §|

dJIBULONSAND Yijeay dJom
01 uiniaJ e paia|dwod aney Y4om 1e s,aaAoldw] |iy

:S3U
awwo)/saioN

Vv/N
10 N/A

:198euen

ulpua
yoom

Ae
puns

Aep
Jnjes

epl4

Aep
sinyj

Aeps
3UPAM

Aep
san|

Aep
UO

sya8y) ujulol 493euepw Aang

SHIIHD ONINYOW HIDVNVIN Alivd

Ja)sod 3ujysem puey Aejdsip pue

sjamo3 pue deos yiim }201s Ajjnj pue suiseq ysem puey ueajd

136



aoed ut 135 ssa150d ||y

pasiyues syuiodyonos ||y

saiy|ioey 3uiAip pue deos puey yim paxyd01s ||am 13101

Pa3201S {|]aM UOIIelS Jasilues

sajnJ4 Bulduelsip [e100S 01 SulIdYpE Jels pue SISWOISNI ||y

nmucwEEOU\mmuOZ

V/N d0 N/A

:198euep

Aep ay3 1noySnoays sjeassyul e op 03 SHI3Y) auaISAH auinoy

SMD3IHD INIIDAH INILNOY

sjuiodyonos jje Jo asiiues jeuiy

seaje J01431Xd pue Buipjing
2413U3 J0 ssujjuea|d upPayd punode yjem |eul

137



Appendix G

Return to Work Questionnaire and Advice to Staff

Thank you for returning to work with us after lockdown. We appreciate your hard work and dedication
and want to make sure you feel safe and protected while working with us. We therefore ask that you
take some time to read the following advice and fill out the return to work questionnaire. Guidance
is changing regularly so we will keep you informed of all changes but do please let us know if you have
any concerns about your working environment.

It is important to understand that you must not come to work if you have

symptoms of coronavirus, live in a household where someone has
coronavirus, or a vulnerable household.

Know the routes of transmission

Direct contact to face — eyes, nose from droplets spraying from an infected person onto
another person who is in close contact.

Contamination via droplets from sneezing and coughing landing on surfaces and then
transferring via hands on to eyes and nose and mouth. Other means of secretions getting on
to surfaces could be from infected people touching their eyes, nose and mouth and then
touching surfaces with contaminated hands.

Contaminated hands of infected people can transfer the virus directly to others (e.g.
handshakes) or on to hand contact surfaces which can be picked up by other people’s hands
and transferred to their eyes, nose or mouth

Possible transmission from faeces to hands and then directly or indirectly to the body via
hands and hand contact surface transfer.

Be prepared

Because it is believed that Coronavirus is infective during the 14-day incubation period, you
could be carrying it without having any symptoms and wouldn’t know; others you are in
contact with may also be carrying the virus without any symptoms and could be infectious.

Taking preventive measures means assuming that everyone may have it and taking action
accordingly. It is not a waste of time and is actually very cheap to implement the most
effective measures, because these involve firstly washing your hands at critical times and
second keeping dirty hands away from your face.

Increasing the frequency of disinfection of hand contact surfaces in public areas will help to

reduce the risks, and whilst many businesses are now closed, those that remain open need
to increase sanitising of tables, chairs, doors and door handles and any other touch points.

138



Appendix G

* The precautions for this virus are pretty much the same as for any respiratory virus, so
should also help to reduce the risk of getting other flu and cold viruses as well as norovirus
which can be transmitted through poor hygiene.

Return to work

Every staff member must carry out a return to work assessment. This should be carried out for all
staff returning to work in the pub environment (taking into account GDPR requirements regarding
sharing and storing information). Please answer the following questions (before starting work):

. Do you have a pre-existing conditions that could effect you carrying out your daily tasks and
out you at a higher risk of contracting the virus -Y/N

. are you one of the 1.5 million high risk shielding - Y / N (If yes, notify your manager of this
immediately)
. Are you living with someone who is one of the 1.5 million people shielding - Y / N (If yes,

notify your manager of this immediately)

J Do you have symptoms associated with Covid - 19 or are living with someone with
symptoms associated with Covid - Y/ N

. Do you know to have been been close to somebody who now has Covid-19-Y /N

. Do you take public transport to work -Y /N

You manager will carry out daily briefings with you, covering the latest Government and other advice
regarding safe working. This is to

. review fitness to work status daily based on the above criteria and record this

. and reinforce controls daily

Hand washing

® First and foremost, you must wash your hands when leaving home and then when arriving at
work you must wash your hands immediately upon arrival. This is vital.

® You must wash your hands at the start of every shift. That way any virus particles picked up
on the way to work are removed before they can be spread to others either via direct
contact (do not shake hands) or by touching hand contact surfaces (door handles, tables,
kettle handles, kitchen equipment etc.)

e Hand gel, if used, needs to be anti-viral and the higher the alcohol content, generally the
better it is (over 62% is recommended). Check the labels to ensure that they are effective.
Gels are a good additional resource in the workplace and should be positioned to encourage
use.

139



Appendix G

How you can protect yourself on the way to work/public transport

Keep your hands away from your face, particularly your eyes and nose

Your hands can pick up virus particles on any surface that is contaminated — anywhere
where an infected person may have touched, or where someone has unwittingly transferred
the virus from one contaminated surface to another. NEVER touch your eyes or inside your
nose unless you have just washed your hands.

Don’t shake hands

Keep to the current Government distance guideline away from any other persons and if
possible don’t share cars based on current distancing guidance. If you must share a car keep
the windows open according to current Government advice.

Stay apart as much as you can and turn away from people on public transport if you can,
particularly if they are coughing or sneezing.

Staff protection

If you are serving customers or taking payments, you must be protected, and whilst at the
moment there is no obligation to use masks, you need to keep the minimum distance away
as set out in Government guidance from customers.

The most important thing is to remember the routes of transmission, and to work out what
actions are best in your specific workplace. Ask your manager to see the pub’s latest risk
assessment.

Heightened disinfection needs to be undertaken to disinfect all frequently touched areas
such as bar surface, tables, chairs, counters tills, card machines etc.

For staff break areas/canteens, stagger timings so if there are groups of you, you can have
slots to reduce bunching up.

In the pub back office, many people could be sharing the phone, keyboard, mouse, and the
desk.

Disinfect these before you sit down using an antimicrobial wipe that has anti-viral properties
— look on the label (leave these on the desk). As coronavirus is new, tests have not been
done on this yet, but the next best thing is to use those products that claim to kill flu and

cold viruses.
Minimise contact when taking deliveries.
Make sure that the minimum distancing rule applies at lunch or smoking / vaping breaks

Where uniforms are worn, these should be washed at temperatures above 60°C or a laundry
sanitising agent used if the fabrics can’t be washed at such a temperature

If a high temperature is not possible, and you have sufficient uniforms, leave the laundry in a
bag in a safe place for 72 hours and then wash as normal. This is necessary where the
uniform has come into contact with bodily fluids.

140



Appendix G

¢ Uniforms must not be worn on the way to work as it could become contaminated. For staff
not wearing uniforms, it is advised that staff change into their work clothes on arrival at
work, if it is practical to do so.

*  Where uniforms aren’t worn, you are advised to wash clothes at the same temperature as
above

* To protect others - Always sneeze or cough into the crook of your arm to prevent your hands
becoming contaminated

* To protect others - If you use a tissue, bin it immediately, or flush down the toilet and don’t
leave around on surfaces. Wash your hands or use hand gel afterwards

* If you have a high temperature and new continuous cough you must not come to work and
follow the latest self-isolating guidance (currently 7 days self-isolation)

* If you live with someone who has symptoms of caronavirus you must not come to work and
must self-isolate (currently for 14 days). If you then develop symptoms, this must be 7 days
from onset.

I (Name):

have read and understood the above advice and have filled out the return to work questionnaire to
the best of my knowledge.

Signed:

Date :

141



Appendix H
Pascals Bar
Pascals COVID 19 Policy — Visitors to the business

This policy note applies to:

1. Pascal visiting personnel
2. Non-Pascals visitors/ contractors/ suppliers

Please note: when visiting our site we will work to keep everybody safe and keep a safe social distance at all times.
Where this distance may not be possible, appropriate PPE will be worn. Our team have completed additional health
and safety training directly related to Covid-19 and implemented additional hygiene measures to keep risk in the

business to a minimum.

We ask all contractors and visitors to read the following and sign in and out on the next page.
1. You must only enter sites by appointment. No dropping in.

2. You must not enter these premises if you have or have had health symptoms consistent with COVID-19 (i.e.
fever, new persistent cough, shortness of breath) without completing 7 days self-isolation or if someone in
your household has had these symptoms without completing 14 days self-isolation.

3. You must wash your hands thoroughly (for at least 20 seconds) upon arrival and when necessary throughout
your time on site when the hands may have become contaminated. If you leave the premises at any point,
you must wash your hands when you return. You may also use the sanitiser station that is situated at the

entrance of every building.

4. You must avoid touching your face while on site and always move away from others and sneeze or cough
into a tissue or the crook of your arm to prevent the hands from becoming contaminated. Where a tissue is
used, you must bin it immediately and wash your hands.

5. If you become unwell whilst on site, you must inform the manager in charge and leave immediately.

6. Whilst on site you must always maintain social distancing according to current Government regulations,
from all pub team members, guests, delivery personnel, visitors and other contractors. Where this cannot be
achieved, work must be completed out of hours to ensure social distancing is maintained.

7. If safety critical or business critical work needs to be completed during normal opening hours that cannot be
accomplished whilst observing social distancing requirement, you must escalate this to the property team to

require the business to be closed.

8. Any personal protective equipment (PPE) used by contractors must not be disposed of on site and must be
removed for disposal as required. Face masks if used, must not be placed onto any surface on site and must

always be kept on the contractor’s person.
9. Contractors must not consume any food or drink whilst on site at this time.

10. Contractors and visitors may use the public toilet facilities and must observe hand hygiene requirements as

above.

11. At all times the manager or operator in charge has control of the premises and if they feel at any point that
social distancing or COVID-19 safety requirements are not being met, they are authorised to stop the work
and ask the contractor or visitor to leave the premises without challenge.

142



Appendix H

Pascals Bar

Name

Date

Time In

Time Out

143



Appendix H

Pascals Bar

144



Appendix |

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 16 September 2020 15:31

To: REDACTED TEXT

Cc: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: Pascal's Bar - Covid controls

Dear Pascal,

| just phoned the premises to talk to you about my colleague’s joint visit with the Police last Friday. As you weren’t
around, | spoke to REDACTED TEXT. | am very concerned about what my colleague saw and as | have warned you
before, businesses need to have robust procedures in place to prevent the spread of Covid-19. Practices such as
singing, playing loud music, shaking hands, hugging and kissing customers and customers standing close together all
risk spreading the virus and so are unacceptable behaviours during this pandemic. Intoxicated people lose their
inhibitions and so this is also a potential risk.

These are all issues that should be under control if you were implementing the necessary controls identified in your
Risk Assessment. Evidence shows that you were not managing the situation and this cannot be allowed to continue.

As a result of this, we will be serving an Improvement Notice on you requiring you to put proper Covid controls in
place. | will deliver the Notice to you tomorrow. You will have 21 days to comply with the Notice. A full explanation
will be given in the covering letter. Monitoring visits will be made and | would remind you again that we can also
serve Prohibition Notices to close your business if we see further breaches of Covid controls. We will take whatever
measures are required to keep the city, its residents, visitors and workers safe.

If you wish to discuss this, please email me your mobile number and | will ring you.

Kind regards,

REDACTED TEXT

Food Safety Team, Environmental Health & Licensing
Public Health, Brighton & Hove City Council
Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square

Brighton, BN1 1JP

REDACTED TEXT

www. brighton-hove.gov.uk/foodsafety

My working days are Monday to Thursday

CORONAVIRUS
Keep your business safe by following social distancing guidelines:-
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/social-distancing/index.htm

WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:

s Get home or into work

s Blow your nose, sneeze or cough

° Eat or handle food

g &

CATCHIT. BINIT. KILLIT.

Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things done | We will
be clear and ireat you with respect

145



Brighton and Hove City Council may disclose the contents of this email if requested by a third party, under the
provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000. For further advice please contact (01273) 291207 or search our
website on www.brighton-hove.qgov.uk/foi

146



Appendix }

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 17 September 2020 09:49

To: REDACTED TEXT

Cc: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: Pascal's Bar, 6 Queens Place, Hove - Improvement Notice

Dear Mr Madjoudj,

Further to my email to you yesterday, | attach digital copies of documents that will be posted out/delivered later
today. The Notice requires you to put all necessary controls in place to prevent the spread of Covid-19
(Coronavirus). One Notice is served on you and another on the Limited Company.

You have already been provided with a lot of guidance so | hope that you understand what you need to do to comply
with the Notice.

If you have any questions, hopefully | will see you later at the premises, if not, then please email me your mobile
number and | will ring you later today or on Monday.

Kind regards,

REDACTED TEXT

Food Safety Team, Environmental Health & Licensing
Public Health, Brighton & Hove City Council
Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square

Brighton, BN1 1JP

REDACTED TEXT
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foodsafety

My working days are Monday to Thursday

CORONAVIRUS
Keep your business safe by following social distancing guidelines:-
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/social-distancing/index.htm

WASH YOUR HANDS MORE OFTEN FOR 20 SECONDS
Use soap and water or a hand sanitiser when you:

s« Get home or into work

« Blow your nose, sneeze or cough

o Eat or handle food

v N

CATCHIT. BINIT. KILLIT.

o

{1t Cgmaneepessid

Protect yourself & others
For more information go to nhs.uk/coronavirus

We will make it clear how you can contact or access our services | We will understand and get things done | We will
be clear and treat you with respect

Brighton and Hove City Council may disclose the contents of this email if requested by a third party, under the
provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000. For further advice please contact (01273) 291207 or search our

website on www.brighton-hove.gov. uk/foi

147



Appendix K
Safer Communities

M@M Bartholomew House
ohton & He Bartholomew Square

Brighton & Hove Brighton
City Council BN1 1JP

Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, Sections 21, 23 and 24

IMPROVEMENT NOTICE
Ref. 2020/00091/HSW21/EH

Name: REDACTED TEXT
Address: REDACTED TEXT
Trading As: Pascal’s Bar, 6 Queens Place, Hove, BN3 2LT

|, REDACTED TEXT

1.
Being an inspector appointed by an instrument in writing made pursuant to section 19 of the

said Act and entitled to issue this Notice of
2. Environmental Health & Licensing, Brighton and Hove City Council, Bartholomew

House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton, BN1 1JP
Telephone Number: (01273) REDACTED TEXT

Hereby give you notice that | am of the opinion that at: Pascal’s Bar, 6 Queens Place, Hove,
BN3 2LT

You, as an employer, have contravened in circumstances that make it likely that the
contravention will continue or be repeated, the following statutory provisions:

Regulation 3 (1) (a) & (b) Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999

3. The reasons for my said opinion are: failure to implement a suitable and sufficient Risk
Assessment of the risks of Covid-19 to your employees and others that may be affected by

the activities you undertake

4. | hereby require you to remedy the said contraventions or, as the case may be, the matters
occasioning them by 8 October 2020

Signature: REDACTED TEXT DATE: 17 September 2020

An Improvement Notice is also being served on: Mr Said Pascal Madjoudj related to the
matters contained in this Notice.

This is a relevant notice for the purposes of the Environment and Safety Information Act 1988.

HSCA — M (HSW) 99

148



SEE NOTES OVERLEAF

149



NOTES

1. Failure to comply with this Improvement Notice is an offence as provided by section 33(1)(g) of the
Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and section 33(2) and Schedule 3A of this Act renders the
offender liable on summary conviction, to imprisonment for a term not exceeding 6 months in England
and Wales and 12 months in Scotland, or to a fine, or both, or, on conviction on indictment, to
imprisonment for a term not exceeding 2 years, or a fine, or both.

2. An Inspector has power to withdraw an Improvement Notice or extend the period specified in the notice,
before the end of the period specified in it. If you wish this to be considered you should apply to the
Inspector who issued the notice, but you must do so before the end of the period given init. Such an
application is not an appeal against this notice.

3. The issue of this notice does not relieve you of any legal liability for failing to comply with any statutory
provision referred to in the notice or to perform any other statutory or common law duty resting on you.

4. You can appeal against this notice to an Employment Tribunal. Details of the method of making an
appeal can be found on the GOV.UK website at https://www.gov.uk/employment-tribunals/make-a-
claim. An appeal can either be submitted online at the above website address, or by downloading form
ET1 and posting it to either the Employment Tribunal Central Office (England and Wales), PO Box
10218, Leicester, LE1 8EG; or Employment Tribunal Central Office (Scotland), PO Box 27105,
Glasgow, G2 9JR.

If you do not have access to the internet, contact the person who issued the Notice and ask to be
supplied with a hard copy of form ET1 and guidance T420: Making a claim to an Employment Tribunal.

Time Limit for Appeal

A notice of appeal must be presented to the Employment Tribunal within 21 days from the date of service on
the appellant of the Notice, or Notices, appealed against, or within such further period as the tribunal
considers reasonable in a case where it is satisfied that it was not reasonably practicable for the notice of

appeal to be presented within the period of 21 days.

The entering of an appeal suspends the Improvement Notice until the appeal has been determined or
withdrawn, but does not automatically alter the date given in this notice by which the matters contained in it

must be remedied.

The rules for the hearing of an appeal are given in The Employment Tribunals (Constitution and Rules of
Procedure) Regulations 2013 (S! 2013 No 1237).

Public Availability of Information on all Enforcement Notices

1. The Health and Safety Executive (HSE), for its own purposes, records and monitors trends in the
enforcement action it takes, and in the convictions and penalties imposed by the Courts. Itis HSE's
policy that this information should be brought to the public's attention. HSE also has a statutory
obligation under the Environment and Safety Information Act 1988 to maintain a public register of
certain notices. Details from this notice will therefore be stored on an electronic database, which is

available on HSE's Website (www.hse.gov.uk).

2. Information on a notice will not be entered onto the database until after right of appeal against the
notice has expired. Where a notice is withdrawn or cancelled on appeal no entry will be made. Entries
relating to notices served on individuals will be kept on the database for a period of 5 years from the
date of issue. Notices served on individuals under the age of 18 will be removed sooner.

3. information will be withheld where, in HSE's belief, its disclosure would:

e Cause harm or prejudice; or
¢ Be in breach of the law.

4. Personal information is dealt with in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998. Where disclosure
of personal information would be incompatible with the Act it will not be included on the database.

150



5. If you are not satisfied with the information contained in the entry you have a further right to appeal to
the HSE in the first instance.

151



Appendix L
Safer Communities

‘ l@l i Bartholomew House
A, JO A G Bartholomew Square

Brighton & Hove Brighton
City Council BN1 1JP

Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, Sections 21, 23 and 24

IMPROVEMENT NOTICE
Ref: 2020/00090/HSW21/EH

Name: Mr Said Pascal Madjoudj
Address: Pascal’s Bar, 6 Queens Place, Hove, BN3 2LT
Trading As: Pascal’s Bar, 6 Queens Place, Hove, BN3 2LT

1. |, REDACTED TEXT
Being an inspector appointed by an instrument in writing made pursuant to section 19 of the

said Act and entitled to issue this Notice of
2. Environmental Health & Licensing, Brighton and Hove City Council, Bartholomew

House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton, BN1 1JP
Telephone Number: (01273) REDACTED TEXT

Hereby give you notice that | am of the opinion that at: Pascal’s Bar, 6 Queens Place, Hove,
BN3 2LT

You, as an employer, have contravened in circumstances that make it likely that the
contravention will continue or be repeated, the following statutory provisions:

Regulation 3 (1) (a) & (b) Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999

3. The reasons for my said opinion are: failure to implement a suitable and sufficient Risk
Assessment of the risks of Covid-19 to your employees and others that may be affected by

the activities you undertake

4. | hereby require you to remedy the said contraventions or, as the case may be, the matters
occasioning them by 8 October 2020

Signature: REDACTED TEXT DATE: 17 September 2020

An Improvement Notice is also being served on: REDACTED TEXT related to the matters
contained in this Notice.

This is a relevant notice for the purposes of the Environment and Safety Information Act 1988.
HSCA — M (HSW) 99

152



SEE NOTES OVERLEAF

153



NOTES

1. Failure to comply with this Improvement Notice is an offence as provided by section 33(1)(g) of the
Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and section 33(2) and Schedule 3A of this Act renders the
offender liable on summary conviction, to imprisonment for a term not exceeding 6 months in England
and Wales and 12 months in Scotland, or to a fine, or both, or, on conviction on indictment, to
imprisonment for a term not exceeding 2 years, or a fine, or both.

2. An Inspector has power to withdraw an Improvement Notice or extend the period specified in the notice,
before the end of the period specified in it. If you wish this to be considered you should apply to the
Inspector who issued the notice, but you must do so before the end of the period given init. Such an
application is not an appeal against this notice.

3. The issue of this notice does not relieve you of any legal liability for failing to comply with any statutory
provision referred to in the notice or to perform any other statutory or common law duty resting on you.

4, You can appeal against this notice to an Employment Tribunal. Details of the method of making an
appeal can be found on the GOV.UK website at https://www.gov.uk/employment-tribunals/make-a-
claim. An appeal can either be submitted online at the above website address, or by downloading form
ET1 and posting it to either the Employment Tribunal Central Office (England and Wales), PO Box
10218, Leicester, LE1 8EG; or Employment Tribunal Central Office (Scotland), PO Box 27105,

Glasgow, G2 9JR.

If you do not have access to the internet, contact the person who issued the Notice and ask to be
supplied with a hard copy of form ET1 and guidance T420: Making a claim to an Employment Tribunal.

Time Limit for Appeal

A notice of appeal must be presented to the Employment Tribunal within 21 days from the date of service on
the appellant of the Notice, or Notices, appealed against, or within such further period as the tribunal
considers reasonable in a case where it is satisfied that it was not reasonably practicable for the notice of

appeal to be presented within the period of 21 days.

The entering of an appeal suspends the Improvement Notice until the appeal has been determined or
withdrawn, but does not automatically alter the date given in this notice by which the matters contained in it

must be remedied.

The rules for the hearing of an appeal are given in The Employment Tribunals (Constitution and Rules of
Procedure) Regulations 2013 (S1 2013 No 1237).

Public Availability of Information on all Enforcement Notices

1. The Health and Safety Executive (HSE), for its own purposes, records and monitors trends in the
enforcement action it takes, and in the convictions and penalties imposed by the Courts. Itis HSE’s
policy that this information should be brought to the public’s attention. HSE also has a statutory
obligation under the Environment and Safety Information Act 1988 to maintain a public register of
certain notices. Details from this notice will therefore be stored on an electronic database, which is

available on HSE's Website (www.hse.gov.uk).

2. Information on a notice will not be entered onto the database until after right of appeal against the
notice has expired. Where a notice is withdrawn or cancelled on appeal no entry will be made. Entries
relating to notices served on individuals will be kept on the database for a period of 5 years from the
date of issue. Notices served on individuals under the age of 18 will be removed sooner.

3. Information will be withheld where, in HSE’s belief, its disclosure would:

s Cause harm or prejudice; or
o Be in breach of the law.

4, Personal information is dealt with in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998. Where disclosure
of personal information would be incompatible with the Act it will not be included on the database.

154



5. If you are not satisfied with the information contained in the entry you have a further right to appeal to
the HSE in the first instance.

155



| Appendix M

Regulatory Services ‘ l@l ‘

Bartholomew House

Bartholomew Square Brighton & Hove
Brighton City Council
BN1 1JP
Mr S P Madjoudj Date: 17 September 2020
Pascal’'s Bar Our Ref:  2020/16096/COVIDC/EH
6 Queens Place Contact: REDACTED TEXT
Hove Phone: REDACTED TEXT
BN3 2LT
Email: REDACTED TEXT
BY HAND
Dear Mr Madjoud;j,

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) Regulation 2020
Regulation 3 (1) (a) & (b) Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations
1999

Complaints about overcrowding and a lack of social distancing

Health & Safety Improvement Notice Reference Number 2020/00090/HSW21/EH

Re: Pascal’s Bar (formerly La Fourchette), 6 Queens Place, Hove, BN3 2L T

| write with reference to my previous letter to you dated 20 August 2020, emails sent to
you and REDACTED TEXT to a visit made to the above premises by my colleague
REDACTED TEXT two Police Officers on 11 September 2020, and her letter emailed to
you on 14 September 2020. | also phoned the premises and emailed you on 16

September 2020.

In these emails/letters you were informed about complaints this Department had
received regarding your Covid-19 control measures in the business. You were informed
of specific areas to improve in your business, provided with the relevant guidance and
instructed to undertake/review afyour risk assessment in order to protect your staff,
customers and visitors to your business from the risk of Covid-19.

Unfortunately, this Department has continued to receive further complaints and as a
result, a further visit was carried out on 11 September 2020 by REDACTED TEXT

when poor practices were observed, specifically: people standing inside drinking
close together and singing, lots of intoxication, people from different households
shaking hands and hugging, loud music being played and groups of customers
sitting very close to one another. These practices could result in the transmission

of Covid-19 between people.
Continued/...

If requested by a third party under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 the contents of
this letter may be disclosed by Brighton & Hove City Council. For further advice please contact (01273)
291207 or search our website on www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foi

Telephone: 01273 290000
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

156



It is apparent that insufficient action has been taken following advice given and further
improvements must be made with your business to protect staff and customers from
Covid-19.

As a result of the visit, we are now serving an Improvement Notice on you under the
above legislation, requiring you to carry out a proper Risk Assessment and put adequate
Covid-19 controls in place at the above premises within the next 21 days (by 8 October
2020). A Notice has also been served on REDACTED TEXT.

Monitoring visits will be made before the Notice expires, to assess progress. Further
visits will be made after the expiry of the Notice to check for compliance.

In the interim, you must ensure you have read the updated guidance at
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/working-safely-during-coronavirus-covid-19/restaurants-
offering-takeaway-or-delivery, implemented the necessary controls and trained staff on
them.

For further Covid-related advice and information, you can visit our website at
https://new.brighton-hove.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19

If you have failed to take the necessary action to safeguard yourself, your staff
and your customers, and we assess the risk as unacceptable, we have the power
to take formal action to make you comply, in line with our Enforcement Policy. If
necessary, we can close your business until adequate measures are in place.

Please contact me if you have any queries concerning this letter or the enclosed Notice.

If you are unhappy with the service you have received, please contact the Regulatory
Services Manager, contact number (01273) REDACTED TEXT

Yours sincerely,
REDACTED TEXT

REDACTED TEXT
Senior Technical Officer.

Enclosures: Improvement Notice 2020/00090/HSW21/EH
Copy of Enforcement Policy

c.c. Mr P Madjoudj by email to REDACTED TEXT

c.c REDACTED TEXT

157



Appendix N
Regulatory Services

i I@x i Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square

Brighton & Hove Brighton
City Council BN1 1JP
REDACTED TEXT Date: 17 September 2020
Our Ref:  2020/16096/COVIDC/EH
FIRST CLASS Contactt REDACTED TEXT

Phone: REDACTED TEXT

Email: REDACTED TEXT

Dear Sir/Madam,

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) Regulation 2020
Regulation 3 (1) (a) & (b) Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations
1999

Complaints about overcrowding and a lack of social distancing

Health & Safety Improvement Notice Reference Number 2020/00091/HSW21/EH
Re: Pascal's Bar (formerly La Fourchette), 6 Queens Place, Hove, BN3 2LT

| write with reference to my previous letter to La Fourchette Brasserie Ltd

dated 20 August 2020, emails sent to Mr Madjoudj and REDACTED TEXT

to a visit made to the above premises by my colleague REDACTED TEXT

and two Police Officers on 11 September 2020, and her letter emailed to Mr Madjoudj on
14 September 2020. | also phoned the premises and emailed Mr Madjoudj on 16

September 2020.

In these emails/letters, you and Mr Madjoud;j were informed about complaints this
Department had received regarding your Covid-19 control measures in the business.
You were informed of specific areas to improve in your business, provided with the
relevant guidance and instructed to undertake/review a/your risk assessment in order to
protect your staff, customers and visitors to your business from the risk of Covid-19.

Unfortunately, this Department has continued to receive further complaints and as a
result, a further visit was carried out on 11 September 2020 by REDACTED TEXT
when poor practices were observed, specifically: people standing inside drinking
close together and singing, lots of intoxication, people from different households
shaking hands and hugging, loud music being played and groups of customers

If requested by a third party under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 the contents of
this letter may be disclosed by Brighton & Hove City Council. For further advice please contact (01273)
291207 or search our website on www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foi

Telephone: 01273 290000
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

158




sitting very close to one another. These practices could result in the transmission
of Covid-19 between people.

It is apparent that insufficient action has been taken following advice given and further

improvements must be made with your business to protect staff and customers from
Covid-19.

As a result of the visit, we are now serving an Improvement Notice on you under the
above legislation, requiring you to carry out a proper Risk Assessment and put adequate
Covid-19 controls in place at the above premises within the next 21 days (by 8 October
2020). A Notice has also been served on Mr Madjoudj at the premises.

Monitoring visits will be made before the Notice expires, to assess progress. Further
visits will be made after the expiry of the Notice to check for compliance.

In the interim, you must ensure you have read the updated guidance at
https://www.gov.uk/quidance/working-safely-during-coronavirus-covid-19/restaurants-

offering-takeaway-or-delivery, implemented the necessary controls and trained staff on
them.

For further Covid-related advice and information, you can visit our website at
https://new.brighton-hove.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19

If you have failed to take the necessary action to safeguard yourself, your staff
and your customers, and we assess the risk as unacceptable, we have the power
to take formal action to make you comply, in line with our Enforcement Policy. If
necessary, we can close your business until adequate measures are in place.

Please contact me if you have any queries concerning this letter or the enclosed Notice.
If you are unhappy with the service you have received, please contact the Regulatory
Services Manager, contact number (01273) REDACTED TEXT

Yours faithfully,
REDACTED TEXT

REDACTED TEXT
Senior Technical Officer.

Enclosures: Improvement Notice 2020/00091/HSW21/EH
Copy of Enforcement Policy

c.c. Mr P Madjoudj by email to REDACTED TEXT
c.c REDACTED TEXT

159



160



APPENDIX F

Mr Said Pascal Madjoudj Representations in response to Sussex Police application to revoke
premises licence — Pascal’s Bistro

Mr Said Pascal Madjoudj will say as follows: -

1. That he accepts inadvertent mistakes have been made since August 2020 but that he has
made (and will continue to do so) significant improvements to the premises which will reassure
the licensing authority that they can have ongoing confidence in the management of the
premises. He will uphold the licensing objectives, namely the Prevention of Crime and Disorder,
Public Safety and Prevention of Public Nuisance.

2. Mr Madjoudj has taken on board the concerns of Sussex Police and the Licensing Officers
raised in the application and as such he has decided to restructure his business. Pascal’s Bar was
previously ‘Pascal’s Brasserie’. He accepts that the concerns of this application occurred with
‘Pascal’s Bar’. He has now taken the sensible decision to revert the premises back to Pascal’s
Brasserie. Mr Madjoudj has owned and managed a number of restaurant/Brasseries in Brighton
& Hove since 1999, without licensing issues. The licensing authority therefore can be reassured
that there will be no further concerns moving forward.

3. In light of Mr Madjoudj’s significant decision to revert the premises back to a brasserie, he will
submit that either no action need be taken by the authority or if deemed appropriate that
informal action is sufficient to respond to the concerns of Sussex Police and the Licensing
Officers, whilst allowing the premises to remain open to save Mr Madjoudj’s business and
livelihood.

4. Mr Madjoudj seeks to respond to all the concerns raised in the Application to assist all
parties.

161



The Application

The Application is made by Sussex Police with recommendations to revoke the premises licence
raising the following concerns: -

i. “No confidence in the management to operate the premises in a safe and responsible way and
to maintain the licensing objectives”;

ii. Traces of drugs found in the premises;

iii. Serving customers on the verge of intoxication;

iv. A recent assault outside the premises;

v. Failure to cooperate with recommendations made by officials.

Mr Madjoudj seeks to deal with each of the above concerns in his representations.

Concern (i) - “No confidence in the management to operate the premises in a safe and
responsible way and to maintain the licensing objectives”;

Mr Madjoudj
It will assist the licensing authority to acquire knowledge about Mr Madjoudj himself.

Mr Madjoudj is a family man. Married, with three children. He is fearful of the impact that a
revocation will have on his livelihood and family.

Mr Madjoudj is primarily a chef/owner. His career, relevant to this application, commenced in
1999 when he opened a French Restaurant on Western Road in Brighton — ‘La Fourchette’. In
2000, after many national press reviews, he opened ‘La Petite Fourchette’ in East Street
Brighton as a small French bistro. After the success of both premises, he opened the larger ‘La
Fourchette’ in Western Road.

It was in 2007 that he opened the premises relevant to this application as ‘Pascal’s Brasserie’
(now ‘Pascal’s Bar’). Shortly followed by a further French patisserie ‘La Fourchette Patisserie’ on

New Church Road, Hove.

In 2010 he took over the landmark cafe that is now the newly refurbished Birdcage on the beach
— ‘The Bandstand Café’

Mr Pascal has never had any licensing concerns after his many years of success of venues in
Brighton & Hove (save for at most, occasional noise when guests have left).

162



The success of Mr Madjoudj’s business has been his presence and culinary skills. Unfortunately,
as his venues grew in number, size, and success, he spent less time in the kitchens and struggled
to run all premises, alongside the recession and was ‘let down’ by what he will describe as ‘well
paid’ chefs and managers. He made the difficult decision for the sake of his family to sell all his
businesses save for Pascal’s Brasserie.

In 2014 he returned as chef/owner to Pascal’s Brasserie. He invested hard work and time into
the premises to put the business back on track — reverting the name back to his original
restaurant La Fourchette. This premises (30% bar, 70% restaurant) thrived for the past 5 years.

In the midst of the Covid Pandemic at the end of 2019/early 2020, he could see that the demand
for high end food was no longer there, competition became harder, he had a lack of
professional staff (chefs and waiters) impacted by Brexit and made the decision to change the
premises to a Bar/Bistro where the cooking was easier to handle with less professional staff
required. The change was successful and well received by guests, but he will accept that this is
where the issues relevant to this application commenced.

Mr Madjoudj will say that he simply was not ready for the side effects of being so busy as a bar,
but he has ample experience in the management of restaurants/brasseries.

Concern (ii) - Traces of Drugs found in the premises

Mr Madjoudj has never smoked or taken a drug throughout his entire life. He accepts that he
was somewhat naive to the excessive drinking and drug culture that can be present in such
venues, particularly in the area of Hove where his premises are located. The drug testing results
came as a huge shock and disappointment to Mr Madjoud,;.

Mr Madjoudj will accept that the drugs issue has been difficult to handle. He invested significant
funds to hire managers that reassured him that they were able to deal with such issues, having
had previous experience in the city.

Issues commenced in July 2020 shortly after the first Covid lockdown. It seems that customers
of the premises were particularly keen to celebrate the lifting of lockdown. He took the decision
to hire a front of house manager who had vast experience in the bar industry but when it
transpired that he was not appropriately responding to the issues relevant to the application, he
acted promptly to terminate his contract.

163



He promoted an existing member of staff as assistant manager leaving himself to cook and
manage the premises.

During the further month of lockdown, he lost all his staff who wanted to more Covid secure
jobs (Deliveroo etc), one of his main waiters returned to France and the other sadly passed away
following illness.

When the business reopened in November 2020, he was required to hire a new team. No one
quite predicted the level of customers that followed. In hindsight he regrets opening between
the 2nd and 3rd covid lockdown as he was not prepared for what was to follow, which has
ultimately led to the concerns of the application.

During the 3rd lockdown Mr Madjoudj invested in a new manageress with a huge amount of
experience in the Pub and Bar trade. She had previously managed the REDACTED TEXT on in the
same area as Pascal’s Bar. She was sure that she could resolve any issues, past or present. Her
job was to work with Mr Madjoudj to put the appropriate systems in place, to be Covid safe and
deal with all communications of the premises. Sadly, she did not deliver the above and the
problems only got worse — she was subsequently dismissed as a result.

Since the dismissal of the manageress Mr Madjoudj has tried his upmost to comply with all
requests from the Police and Licensing Officers. He accepts that he has made mistakes and is
trying to promptly rectify these failings promptly.

Mr Madjoudj has undertaken the following changes to the premises to ensure that the licensing
objective of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and Prevention of Public

Nuisance can be achieved: -

a. Restructure of the business

From Monday 5th July 2021 Mr Madjoudj will revert the premises back to a brasserie from the
bar. He will change the name of the premises from ‘Pascal’s Bar’ back to ‘Pascal’s Brasserie’. This
will be a clear step to show customers that the premises is no longer a bar, but a restaurant. His
new manager REDACTED TEXT has ample experience in restaurants and brasseries to assist him
with his ongoing aim to focus on ‘what they do best’.

Immediate changes will include removing the high tables to dinner tables (save for tables 1 — 4
which are around the bar area).

There will be no tables or chairs obstructing the public highway.
Mr Madjoudj is keen and motivated to focus on returning the premises to the restaurant — he

has found the bar difficult to manage, resulting in huge amounts of stress which has ultimately
removed him from the kitchens and his passion.

164



b. New CCTV System-

The installation of a new CCTV system at a significant cost — this new system records for 31 days
with night vision with the installation of new cameras — two on the terrace, a further to the side
of the building, one on the lobby to the toilets with the three original in the main area of the
bar.

c. Works to the Toilets

It is of course hoped that the restaurant will not attract drug misuse, however, to ensure that
the licensing objectives can be achieved, for the prevention of drug use in/on the toilets the
following works have been undertaken:-

I. Surfaces have now been made uneven and seats removed — photographs are enclosed for the
authorities inspection.

II. The hand dryers have been raised to prevent the top being used as a base for drug use.

[ll. In addition, tandem toilet use is not permitted with a one person at a time rule with toilet
checks on the hour (or more when busy).
d. New Manager

A new manager has now been employed. He is well known and respected in Hove REDACTED
TEXT — he knows the area well. He is aware of the drug issues. He is sensible and experienced.
He will work with Mr Madjoudj to ensure all the concerns raised in the application are
addressed and will ensure that the licensing objectives are met.

e. Staff Training

All staff are now trained to ensure that they are more aware of suspicious customer behaviours
and to report any suspicious activity to their manager or the Police. Training was administered in
house using the commonly referred to British Beer & Pub Association guidance documentation.

f. Drug Policy

A new Drugs Policy is now in place and has been added to the existing Staff Handbook and is
available for the authority’s perusal.

Concern (iii) - Serving customers on the verge of intoxication

This has been addressed with the additional training of staff members however, Mr Madjoud;j
does not anticipate that the return to his restaurant will attract customers

165



seeking to drink to excess with customers visiting the venue to consume food as opposed to
alcohol.

Concern (iv) - The Assault outside the premises

Again, this is addressed with the additional training and return to the restaurant however, Mr
Madjoudj is of the opinion that their conduct on the night was appropriate with the door
security (employed from REDACTED TEXT) removing the two males who argued in the premises,
this was as far as the door security was concerned the end of the matter.

Concern (v) - Failure to cooperate with recommendations made by officials.

Mr Madjoudj has now followed the recommendations made by officials as detailed in these
representations and will continue to do so as required.

Conclusion

It is clear that Pascal’s Bar attracted issues which were neither anticipated nor welcome by all
parties concerned. It has however been a remarkably difficult year in the hospitality trade
coping with the Covid pandemic (and to some extent Brexit). Whilst the application refers to
issues occurring since August 2020 it must not be forgotten that the premises in question
remained closed for a significant period of time since August 2020 as a result of lockdowns and
restrictions, at a cost to Mr Madjoudj and his staff.

It must also be relevant that Mr Madjoudj is a renowned and experienced restauranteur
(evidenced by his impressive licensing history since 1999 in Brighton and Hove) — with Pascals
Bar being his first experience in the pub and bar field. The authority will appreciate that the
usual interviewing process that would ordinarily occur in such situations has not been available
due to the Covid limitations, the authority may consider that the interviewing process may have
been an opportunity for the issues to be raised and responded to accordingly and thus not
resulting in the present application.

Mr Madjoudj very much hopes that the authority and all parties concerned will be satisfied with
the significant and costly steps that have been taken in response to this application to uphold
the licensing objectives.

Mr Said Pascal Madjoudj

166



167



168



169



s

170



171



Licensing Team

Brighton & Hove City Council
2nd Floor Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square

Brighton

BN1 1JP

20 July 2021

Dear team

6 Queens Place, Second Avenue, Hove, East Sussex, BN3 2LT
Tenant : Pascal Madjoudj

Landlord: REDACTED TEXT

| am writing with reference to the above-named tenant and his occupation of our premises
noted above.

| can confirm that Mr Madjoudi has been our tenant since 18 January 2007 under the terms
of a 20 year lease.

Mr Madjoudi has ensured he has met the terms of his lease since the period of his
occupation and has been a model tenant. He has made significant improvements to the
premises ensuring that we, as landlords, have been fully aware of the changes he wished to
make prior to making the appropriate planning application.

| understand that Mr Madjoudi had altered his business model slightly to open as a bar and
this has not worked favourably however he feels that reverting to the dining experience he
previously offered is the way forward and requires the licence for this purpose and as his

landlord we support this application.

| hope you will consider his licence review favourably as it will impact the income stream to
the pension fund should this not be possible.

Yours faithfully
REDACTED TEXT

On Behalf of the REDACTED TEXT

172






V.1

Introduction...

The success of any organisation and that of its employees and workers depends very largely on the employees and workers themselves, and so we look to
you to play your part as we shall continue to play ours.

We provide equal opportunities and are committed to the principle of equality regardless of race, colour, ethnic or national origin, religious belief, political
opinion or affiliation, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, age or disability. We operate employment policies that are fair, equitable
and consistent with the skills and abilities of our employees and the needs of the business.

We look to your support in implementing these policies to ensure that all employees are accorded equal opportunities for recruitment, training and
promotion and, that equal terms and conditions of employment are applied to all jobs of like work.

We will not condone any discriminatory act or attitude in the conduct of our business either with members of the public or our employees. Acts of
harassment or discrimination on the grounds of race, colour, ethnic or national origin, religious belief, political opinion or affiliation, sex, marital status,
sexual orientation, gender reassignment, age or disability are disciplinary offences.

We welcome you and express our sincere hope that you will be happy here in our team.

We ask that you carefully study the contents of this Handbook as, in addition to setting out our rules and regulations, it also contains a great deal of helpful
information.

Any queries you may have relating to information within this Handbook should be raised with your Departmental Manager.



G.T

Contents

1-Joining our organisation

2-Wages and salaries, etc.

3-Holiday entitlement and conditions
4-Sickness/injury payments and conditions
5- Safeguards

6-Standards

7-Health, safety, welfare and hygiene
8-General information and procedures
9-Making a protected disclosure
10-Capability

11-Disciplinary rules and procedures
12-Disciplinary appeal procedure
13-Grievance procedure

14-Equal opportunities policy

15-Personal harassment policy and procedure

16-Termination of employment

17-Alcohol and Drugs Policy: A. In the Worplace / B. Guests Experience



9.7

1-Joining Our Company

A)

B)

F)

PROBATIONARY PERIOD

You join us on an initial probationary period of three months. During this period your work performance and general suitability will be assessed
and, if it is satisfactory, your employment will continue. However, if your work performance is not up to the required standard, or you are
considered to be generally unsuitable, we may either take remedial action or terminate your employment without recourse to the capability or if a
conduct matter the disciplinary procedure. At the end of your probationary period you will again be assessed and, if satisfactory, you will become a
member of our regular staff. If you have not reached the required standard we may either extend the probationary period in order that remedial
action can be taken or terminate your employment without recourse to the capability or disciplinary procedure. In the event of you failing to
improve during the extended probationary period, your employment will be terminated without recourse to the capability or disciplinary procedure
and subject to the basic requirements of the ACAS Code of Practice.

JOB DESCRIPTION

You will have been provided with a job description of the position to which you have been appointed but amendments may be made to your job
description from time to time in relation to our changing needs and your own ability.

EMPLOYEE TRAINING

At the commencement of your employment you will receive training for your specific job, and as your employment progresses your skills may be
extended to encompass new job activities within the business. If you are interested in any particular training you should discuss this with your Line
Manager.

PERFORMANCE AND REVIEW

Our policy is to monitor your work performance on a continuous basis so that we can maximise your strengths, and help you overcome any possible
weaknesses.

STAFF APPRAISAL SCHEME

We have a staff appraisal scheme in place for the purpose of monitoring staff performance levels with a view to maximising the effectiveness of
individuals, details of which are available separately.

JOB FLEXIBILITY



LLT

G)

It is an express condition of employment that you are prepared, whenever necessary, to transfer to alternative duties within our business. During
holiday periods, etc. it may be necessary for you to take over some duties normally performed by colleagues. This flexibility is essential as the type
and volume of work is always subject to change, and it allows us to operate efficiently and gain maximum potential.

MOBILITY

It is a condition of your employment that you are prepared, whenever applicable, to travel to any other of our sites within reasonable travelling
distance on a temporary basis. This mobility is essential to the smooth running of our business.

2-Wages and Salaries. etc.

A) ADMINISTRATION

1. Payment

a. Payment is made weekly for hourly paid variable staff, and monthly for permanent staff.

b. Weekly Paid Staff — The working week runs from Monday to Sunday. Payment of wages will take place on the following Friday directly into your
bank account or building society account — you will be required to give your account details.

c. You will receive a payslip showing how the total amount of your pay has been calculated. It will also show the deductions that have been made
and the reasons for them, e.g. Income Tax, National Insurance, etc.

d. Any pay queries that you may have should be raised with your Line Manager.

2. Overpayments

If you are overpaid for any reason, the total amount of the overpayment will normally be deducted from your next payment but if this would cause
hardship, arrangements may be made for the overpayment to be recovered over a longer period.

3. Income Tax and National Insurance

At the end of each tax year you will be given a form P60 showing the total pay you have received from us during that year and the amount of
deductions for Income Tax and National Insurance. You may also be given a form P11D showing non-salary benefits. You should keep these
documents in a safe place as you may need to produce them in your dealings with the Inland Revenue and other government departments, or if
completing a self-assessment form.

B) LATENESS/ABSENTEEISM



8.T

1. You must attend for work punctually and be ready to commence work at the specified time(s) and are required to comply strictly with any time
recording procedures relating to your work.

2. All absences must be notified in accordance with the sickness reporting procedures laid down in this Employee Handbook.

3. If you arrive for work more than one hour late without having previously notified us, other arrangements may have been made to cover your
duties and you may be sent off the premises for the remainder of the shift/day without pay.

4. Lateness or absence may result in disciplinary action and/or loss of appropriate payment.

C) SHORTAGE OF WORK If there is a temporary shortage of work for any reason, we will try to maintain your continuity of employment even if this
necessitates placing you on short time or having to lay you off work without pay other than statutory guarantee pay.

D) MATERNITY/PATERNITY LEAVE AND PAY You may be entitled to maternity/paternity leave and pay in accordance with the current statutory
provisions. If you (or your partner) become pregnant you should notify your Departmental Manager at an early stage so that your entitlements and
obligations can be explained to you.

E) PARENTAL LEAVE

If you are entitled to take parental leave in respect of the current statutory provisions, you should discuss your needs with your Departmental
Manager, who will identify your entitlements and look at the proposed leave periods dependent upon your child’s/children’s particular
circumstances and the operational aspects of the business.

F) TIME OFF FOR DEPENDANTS

You may be entitled to take a reasonable amount of unpaid time off during working hours to take action that is necessary to provide help to your
dependants. Should this be necessary you should discuss your situation with your Departmental Manager, who, if appropriate, will agree the
necessary time off. In the event of emergency situations, you must contact your Line Manager as soon as possible after the event in order to advise
the Company of your personal situation.



6.7

3-Holiday Entitlement and Conditions

A) ANNUAL HOLIDAYS

1. Details of your holiday year and your annual holiday entitlement is shown in your individual Contract of Employment.

2. It is our policy to encourage you to take all of your holiday entitlement in the current holiday year. We do not permit holidays to be carried
forward.

B) CONDITIONS APPLYING TO YOUR ANNUAL HOLIDAY ENTITLEMENT

1. You should complete a holiday request form for all holiday requests and have it signed by your Departmental Manager before making any firm
holiday arrangements.

2. Holiday requests will only be considered if you present them on a holiday request form and we will allocate agreed holiday dates on a “first come
- first served” basis whilst ensuring that operational efficiency and minimum staffing levels are maintained throughout the year.

3. You should give at least four weeks’ notice of your intention to take holidays and at least one week’s notice is required for odd single days.

4. Your holiday pay will be at your normal basic pay unless shown otherwise in your contract of employment or Letter of Engagement

5. In the event of the termination of your employment any holidays accrued but not taken will be paid for. However, in the event of you having
taken holidays in the current holiday year, which have not been accrued pro-rata, then the appropriate payments will be deducted from your final
wages/salary. This is an express written term of your contract of employment.

4-Sickness/Injury Payments and Conditions

A) NOTIFICATION OF INCAPACITY FOR WORK

1. You must notify us by telephone on the first day of incapacity at the earliest possible opportunity before your start time. Notification should be
made personally (or if you are unable to do so, then by a relative, neighbour or friend), to your Departmental Manager or in their absence the
Senior Staff on duty. You should try to give some indication of your expected return date and notify us as soon as possible if this date changes.

2. If your incapacity extends to more than seven days you are required to notify us of your continued incapacity once a week thereafter, unless
otherwise agreed.

B) EVIDENCE OF INCAPACITY



08T

1. Doctors’ certificates are not issued for short-term incapacity. In these cases of incapacity (up to seven calendar days) you must sign a self-
certification absence form on your return to work.

2. If your sickness has been (or you know that it will be) for longer than seven days (whether or not they are working days) you should see your
doctor and make sure he/she gives you a Fitness to Work Certificate and forward this to us without delay.

Subsequently you must supply us with consecutive doctors’ medical certificates to cover the whole of your absence.

C) PAYMENTS

1. You are entitled to statutory sick pay (SSP) if you are absent because of sickness or injury provided you meet the criteria in the current SSP
regulations. When you are absent for four or more consecutive days you will be paid SSP by us if you are eligible. This is treated like wages and is
subject to normal deductions.

2. Qualifying days are the only days for which you are entitled to SSP. These days are normally your working days unless otherwise notified to you.
The first three qualifying days of absence are waiting days for which SSP is not payable. Where a second or subsequent period of incapacity (of four
days or more) occurs within 56 days of a previous period of incapacity, waiting days are not served again.

3. Any payment of wages/salary made during periods of absence from work due to any injury sustained at work will not imply acceptance of
responsibility.

4. Where the circumstances of your incapacity are such that you receive or are awarded any sum by way of compensation or damages in respect of
the incapacity from a third party, then any payments which we may have made to you because of the absence (including SSP) shall be repaid by you
to us up to an amount not exceeding the amount of the compensation or damages paid by the third party and up to, but not exceeding, any
amount paid by us.

D) RETURN TO WORK

1. You should notify your Departmental Manager as soon as you know on which day you will be returning to work, if this differs from a date of
return previously notified.

2. If you have been suffering from an infectious or contagious disease or illness you must not report for work without clearance from your own
doctor. Separate rules relating to infectious diseases and food handlers are to be found later in this handbook and you, if you are a food handler,
must familiarise yourself with them.

3. Upon returning to work you may be interviewed by your Departmental Manager for the purposes of ascertaining your well-being; this is known
as a return to work interview

E) GENERAL



18T

1. Submission of a medical certificate or sickness self-certification absence form, although giving us the reason for your absence, may not always be
regarded by us as sufficient justification for accepting your absence. Sickness is just one of a number of reasons for absence and although it is
understandable that if you are sick you may need time off, continual or repeated absence through sickness may not be acceptable to us.

2. In deciding whether your absence is acceptable or not we will take into account the reasons and extent of all your absences, including any
absence caused by sickness. We cannot operate with an excessive level of absence as all absences, for whatever reason, reduces our efficiency.

3. We will take a serious view if you take sickness/injury leave which is not genuine, and it will result in disciplinary action being taken.

4. If we consider it necessary, we may ask your permission to contact your doctor or for you to be independently medically examined.

5-Safeguards

A) RIGHTS OF SEARCH

1. We have the contractual right to carry out searches of employees and their property (including vehicles) whilst they are on our premises or
business. These searches are random and do not imply suspicion in relation to any individual concerned.

2. If you should be required to submit to a search, if practicable you will be entitled to be accompanied by a third party to be selected from only
someone who is on the premises at the time a search is taking place. This right also applies at the time that any further questioning takes place.
3. You may be asked to remove the contents of your pockets, bags, vehicles, etc.

4. Whilst you have the right to refuse to be searched, refusal by you to agree to being searched will constitute a breach of contract, which could
result in your dismissal.

5. We reserve the right to call in the police at any stage.

6. If you suspect someone of stealing, whether from yourself, the team, restaurant or customers, you should report the matter to your Manager or
a Director who will treat the information with the utmost confidentiality.

B) CONFIDENTIALITY
1. All information that:

a. is or has been acquired by you during, or in the course of your employment, or has otherwise been acquired by you in confidence;

b. relates particularly to our business, or that of other persons or bodies with whom we have dealings of any sort; and c. has not been made
public by, or with our authority; shall be confidential, and (save in the course of our business or as required by law) you shall not at any time,
whether before or after the termination of your employment, disclose such information to any person without our prior written consent.



28T

2. You are to exercise reasonable care to keep safe all documentary or other material containing confidential information, and shall at the time of
termination of your employment with us, or at any other time upon demand, return to us any such material in your possession.

C) COPYRIGHT All written material, whether held on paper, electronically or magnetically which was made or acquired by you during the course of
your employment with us, is our property and our copyright. At the time of termination of your employment with us, or at any other time upon
demand, you shall return to us any such material in your possession.

D) STATEMENTS TO THE MEDIA

Any statements to reporters from newspapers, radio, television, etc. in relation to our business will be given only by the Directors of the Company
or nominated persons.

E) CASH HANDLING/TRANSACTION
You are required to strictly comply with cash handling and transaction procedures as notified separately

F) ORDERING AND RECEIVING GOODS
Only Departmental Managers authorised through the Directors and the General Manager are allowed to place orders for goods on our behalf and
within the agreed budgetary limits. You may only sign for goods received or accept deliveries if you have been authorised to do so.

G) INDUCEMENTS
If you are offered any inducements, whether in cash, kind or goods, you should refuse such offers and immediately report the matter to your
Departmental Manager or a Director. Any employee not adhering to this could be subject to disciplinary action.

H) KEY SECURITY

If you are entrusted with Company keys e.g. to premises, vehicles, cupboards etc, you are responsible for the security of these. They should not be
left lying around etc and you should never give them to another person unless specifically authorised to do so.

I) ENTERING/LEAVING PREMISES
For your own protection and the benefit of customers, you should use entrance/exits designated for your use.

10



J) INVENTIONS/DISCOVERIES
1. An invention or discovery made by you will normally belong to you. However, an invention or discovery made by you will become our property if
it was made:

a. in the course of your normal duties under such circumstances that an invention might reasonably be expected to result from those
duties;

b. outside the course of your normal duties, but during duties specifically assigned to you, when an invention might reasonably be expected
to result from these; and

c. during the course of any of your duties, and at the time you had a special obligation to further our interests arising from the nature of
those duties, and your particular responsibilities.

K) VIRUS PROTECTION PROCEDURES

1. In order to prevent the introduction of virus contamination into the software system the following must be observed:-
a. unauthorised software including public domain software, magazine cover disks/CDs or Internet/World Wide Web downloads must not be
used; and
b. all software must be virus checked using standard testing procedures before being used.

€art

L) USE OF COMPUTER EQUIPMENT / E-MAIL AND INTERNET POLICY
1. In order to control the use of the company’s computer equipment and reduce the risk of contamination the following will apply:
a. The introduction of new software must first of all be checked and authorised by a nominated senior member of the company before
general use will be permitted.
b. Only authorised staff should have access to the company’s computer equipment.
c. Only authorised software may be used on any of the company’s computer equipment.
d. Only software that is used for business applications may be used.
e. No software may be brought onto or taken from the company’s premises without prior authorisation.
f. Unauthorised access to the computer facility will result in disciplinary action in line with the Company’s Disciplinary Procedure
g. Unauthorised copying and/or removal of computer equipment/software will result in disciplinary action, such actions could lead to
dismissal in line with the Company’s Disciplinary Procedure.
h. Employees should be aware that abuse of Company computer equipment could also result in civil and criminal law action if deemed
necessary the result of which could be prosecution

11



781

2. Introduction The purpose of the Internet and E-mail policy is to provide a framework to ensure that there is continuity of procedures in the usage
of Internet and E-mail within the company. The Internet and E-mail system have established themselves as an important communications facility
within the company and have provided us with contact with professional and academic sources throughout the world. Therefore, to ensure that we
are able to utilise the system to its optimum we have devised a policy that provides maximum use of the facility whilst ensuring compliance with
the legislation throughout.

3. Internet Where appropriate, duly authorised staff are encouraged to make use of the Internet as part of their official and professional activities.
Attention must be paid to ensuring that published information has relevance to normal professional activities before material is released in the
company name. Where personal views are expressed, a disclaimer stating that this is the case should be clearly added to all correspondence. The
intellectual property right and copyright must not be compromised when publishing on the Internet. The availability and variety of information on
the Internet has meant that it can be used to obtain material reasonably considered to be offensive. The use of the Internet to access and/or
distribute any kind of offensive material, or non-related employment issues, leave an individual liable to disciplinary action which could lead to
dismissal.

3. The use of the E-mail system is encouraged as its appropriate use facilitates efficiency. Used correctly it is a facility that is of assistance to
employees. Inappropriate use however causes many problems including distractions, time wasting and legal claims. The procedure sets out the
company’s position on the correct use of the E-mail system.

4. Procedures - Authorised Use
a. Unauthorised or inappropriate use of the E-mail system may result in disciplinary action which could include summary dismissal.
b. The E-mail system is available for communication and matters directly concerned with the legitimate business of the company.

Employees using the E-mail system should give particular attention to the following points:

o All comply with company communication standards;

e E-mail messages and copies should only be sent to those for whom they are particularly relevant;

e E-mail should not be used as a substitute for face-to-face communication or telephone contact. Flame mails (i.e. E-mails that are
abusive) must not be sent. Hasty messages sent without proper consideration can cause upset, concern or misunderstanding;

12



e [f E-mail is confidential the user must ensure that the necesary steps are taken to protect confidentiality. The company will be liable
for infringing copyright or any defamatory information that is circulated either within the company or to external users of the
system; and

e Offers or contracts transmitted by E-mail are as legally binding on the company as those sent on paper.

c. The company will not tolerate the use of the E-mail system for unofficial or inappropriate purposes, including:

e Any messages that could constitute bullying, harassment or other detriment

e Personal use (e.g. social invitations, personal messages, jokes, cartoons, chain letters or other private matters); iii) on-line gambling;
e Accessing or transmitting pornography.

e  Transmitting copyright information and/or any software available to the user

e Posting confidential information about other employees, the company or its customers or suppliers

6-Standards

A) WASTAGE

G8T

1. We maintain a policy of “minimum waste” which is essential to the cost-effective and efficient running of all our operations.

2. You are able to promote this policy by taking extra care during your normal duties by avoiding unnecessary or extravagant use of services, time,
energy, etc. The following points are illustrations of this:

e handle machines, equipment and stock with care;
e turn off any unnecessary lighting and heating. Keep doors closed whenever possible;
e ask for other work if your job has come to a standstill; and d. start with the minimum of delay after arriving for work and after breaks.

3. The following provision is an express written term of your contract of employment:-

e any damage to vehicles, stock or property (including non-statutory safety equipment) that is the result of your carelessness, negligence
or deliberate vandalism may render you liable to pay the full or part of the cost of repair or replacement;

e any loss to us that is the result of your failure to observe rules, procedures or instruction, or is as a result of your negligent behaviour or
your unsatisfactory standards of work may render you liable to re-imburse to us the full or part of the cost of the loss; and

13



98T

e inthe event of an at fault accident whilst driving one of our vehicles you may be required to pay the cost of the insurance excess up to a
maximum of £250.00.

4. In the event of failure to pay, we have the contractual right to deduct such costs from your pay.
B) STANDARDS OF DRESS/APPEARANCE

1. As you are liable to come into contact with customers and members of the public, it is important that you present a professional image with
regard to appearance and standards of dress. Where workwear is provided, this must be worn at all times whilst at work and laundered on a regular
basis. Where workwear is not provided, you should abide by our dress code if applicable and wear clothes appropriate to your job responsibilities,
which should be kept clean and tidy at all times.

2. Hair should be clean and tidy and long hair should be tied back. Stud like earrings only may be worn and jewellery should be kept to a minimum.
Nails should be neatly trimmed and you should avoid using a harsh colour nail varnish. Body piercing or tattoos should not be visible if you are
working in customer service areas.

3. You should wear footwear that is appropriate for your departmental duties but in all cases it must be of a safe working height, preferably with a
non-slip sole. All front of house staff should wear black closed toe shoes and black socks/tights/stockings.

C) HOUSEKEEPING

Both from the point of view of safety and of appearance, work areas must be kept clean and tidy at all times

7-Health, Safety, Welfare and Hygiene

GENERAL STATEMENT
The Company accepts the aim and provisions of the Health & Safety at Work Act 1974.

The Company recognises that one of its foremost duties and responsibilities is the need to provide and maintain safe, healthy and hygienic working
conditions and practices for all employees. The company considers that management and employees should share this responsibility for ensuring
strict adherence to all company safety rules and regulations, and that they are obliged to co-operate with the company in maintaining high

14



.87

standards of health and safety. The company considers the health & safety of its employees to be of paramount importance. Failure by any member
of staff to observe correct and adequate health & safety practices will result in disciplinary action.

A) PERSONAL LIABILITY OF EMPLOYEES

It is the duty of each individual employee to take every reasonable care to ensure the health and safety of himself /herself and other persons who
may be affected by his/her acts or omissions at work at work. It is also the duty of all employees to co-operate with their employers in achieving
compliance with Health & Safety at Work Act 1974.

B) SCOPE OF POLICY
This policy statement will apply to all persons working within one of our locations contractually employed by the Company.
C) ACCIDENT PREVENTION

It is the responsibility of the members of the Management Team within the site to walk floors regularly to spot potential hazards to take remedial
action. It is also their responsibility to ensure that staff is briefed in the necessary measures and precautions. It is the responsibility of all staff to be
vigilant and to protect their own colleagues’ health and safety and to report potential or actual hazards.

D) TRAINING
Each site Manager is responsible for identifying the training needs of his/her staff and ensuring that the necessary health and safety training,
including induction training, is given to and understood by his/her staff.

E) ACCIDENT INVESTIGATIONS

Any member of staff who has had an accident must make sure that it is recorded in the ‘Accident Book’ which will be reviewed monthly by
management. Any hazards causing or contributing to the accident will be dealt with and a record made of the action taken.

F) FIRST AID ARRANGEMENTS

First aid materials are provided at each branch. The Manager is responsible for their distribution and the nomination (if required) of a responsible
person to take charge.

G) FIRE & ACCIDENT PREVENTION EMERGENICIES & TRAINING

All staff will take part in fire training under the instruction of the Fire & Safety Officers located on their site. Or from the Branch Manager, who
MUST be well versed in the individual branch fire evacuation procedure.

15



88T

Training and drills will also be undertaken to cover accidents and emergencies such as bomb scares.
In an emergency: Remain Calm Walk — Don’t Run!

Dangers from fire: Suffocation Major Burns

H) SAFETY

e Sign-in on arrival

o Know where the fire assembly point is.

e |[f fire alarm sounds leave by the nearest exit & meet at the designated area
e Only tackle a small fire if safe to do so

e Do not return for personal belongings

e Only return to the building when told to do so by the Fire Officer

USE OF DANGEROUS MACHINERY

Branch Managers/ Supervisors must ensure that no employee is allowed to operate any machinery prescribed as dangerous without adequate
training or supervision and that no person under 18 years of age is allowed to operate or clean such machinery under any circumstances.

J) DANGEROUS MACHINERY

All catering equipment can be dangerous unless used in the correct manner. The Site Manager will outline the dangers of each piece of equipment
at the branch, but the following points should be noted:

e Check that protective devices are in place and that the machine is correctly set for the operation
e The plug and cable should be inspected to ensure they are in sound condition and have been correctly wired
e Report breakdowns and replacements needed, to your Manager immediately

16



68T

K) PERSONAL PROTECTION EQUIPMENT

Where personal protection equipment or clothing is required for a particular task the necessary equipment will be issued to you.
Please ensure that you wear this equipment and after use ensure that it is cleaned and returned to its correct storage place.
Examples of equipment:

e Gloves
e Goggles
e  Masks

L) PRESSURISED CLYINDERS

Always ensure that gas bottles are upright and securely fixed either in a holster or with chains. Failure to do so could result in broken bones,
bruising or explosions. If the above is not available, the cylinder should be laid on the floor so that it cannot fall over and cause injury.

M) MANUAL LIFTING

Staff are often required to lift and carry items. Some will be heavy. Many back injuries are caused through incorrect lifting procedures.
BASIC LIFTING RULES

Think things through before you start:-

Examine the object — for size, shape & weight. Can this be moved by mechanical means? If not, decide where & how to hold it.
Clear your path of obstruction & tripping hazards.

Know where & how you will let the object down.

If you have any doubts about lifting objects, get help. MOVING OBJECTS SAFELY

o 0o T w

e Assess the load

e Plan the task

Use equipment

Get enough help

Clear the area

e Never lift at arms length

e Never lift with any back injury
o Always follow safety rules

17



06T

Legal Requirements

A) LICENSING LAW
e All staff working in a licensed unit must be over 18
e Customers who appear to be under 21 must not be served without proof of age
¢ Age must be proved if there is any doubt
¢ Customers who appear to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs must not e served
¢ Staff must ensure correct measures are served to comply with weights & measure regulations
B) WEIGHTS & MEASURES ACT 1985
It is an offence to give a short measure to a customer.
The quantities of beer & spirits which can lawfully be sold in licensed premises are:
e Beer including lager and cider must be sold only in quantities of half pints and multiples thereafter
e Spirits only to be sold in quantities of 25ml or multiples thereafter
C) PRICE DISPLAYS
An up-to date tariff indicating current prices and alcohol by volume strengths must be displayed in view of the public.
D) TRADE DESCRIPTION 1968
Under the Act, it is an offence to apply a false description of goods, either in writing, verbally or by customer request.
For example, a customer asks for a ‘Pepsi’ your reply should be “We only sell Coca Cola”.
Hygiene
A) FOOD HYGIENE LAWS

The unit in which you work should and must be at all time maintained to a high standard of cleanliness.

Food Safety & Hygiene laws states “You must keep food/drink free from harmful germs, chemical and foreign bodies.

Food becomes contaminated in three ways:

e Contaminations from foreign bodies e.g. Kitchen & other debris being allowed to fall into food stuffs.
e Chemical contamination from pesticides, insecticides and other chemicals including cleaning fluids.

18



T6T

e Bacterial contamination from bacteria. Viruses do not grow but can be passed on through the food chain.

B) CARELESSNESS CAUSES CONTAMINATION

For example:
a. Food handlers aren’t careful enough with personal hygiene
b. Preparation, storage, display and serving area aren’t kept clean
c. Equipment isn’t kept clean or used as recommended
d. Food isn’t stored, prepared or cooked at regulation temperatures Food must never be touched by hand when serving. Always use utensils,

napkins or thermal bags as appropriate. Hot food must be sold and kept at temperatures of above 63 2C. If you have any doubts, contact
your manager.

C)PERSONAL HYGIENE STANDARDS

e Keep yourself and clothing clean
e Keep any make-up discreet — use sparingly.
e No jewellery except a single plain bank ring (wedding style), one pair of ear studs (either sleeper or stud style) and a watch. Nose, studs,
single earrings, or ear studs must be removed as must all other jewellery before starting work.
e Hair must be clean and tidy and if collar length, tied back. Hats must be worn by all food bar staff, cooks and food preparation staff
including Chefs.
e Wear low healed, sensible enclosed shoes which are clean and in a good state of repair.
o Legs, except when wearing a specified uniform which includes ankle length trousers, must be fully covered with stockings or tights. vii)
Finger nails should be short and free from vanishes.
e Wash hands after:
Visiting the toilet, Putting Waste in bins, Before starting work, Sneezing and coughing, Touching hair, eyes nose or ears, Touching
raw food or any knife, board etc that has been in contact with raw food, Smoking or taking a break smoking is prohibited in work
areas) and using Chemicals.

Hand basins are for the washing of hands only. Hot water, soap and drying facilities must be always available and used.

E) INFECTIONS / ILLNESS
Before starting work you must notify your Manager if you are suffering with any of following ailments: colds, sore throats, ear infections, cuts,
boils, vomiting, diarrhoea or have been in close contact with anyone suffering from food poisoning symptoms

19



6T

8-General Terms of Employment, Information and Procedures

A)

B)

F)

G)

CHANGES IN PERSONAL DETAILS

You must notify us of any change of name, address, telephone number, etc., so that we can maintain accurate information on our records and
contact you in an emergency, if necessary, outside normal working hours.

OTHER EMPLOYMENT

If you already have any other employment or are considering any additional employment you must notify us so that we can discuss any
implications arising from the current working time legislation.

TIME OFF

Circumstances may arise where you need time off for medical/dental appointments, or for other reasons. Where possible, such appointments
should be made outside normal working hours, or you may change your shift with a colleague. If this is not possible, time off required for these
purposes may be granted at the discretion of your Departmental Manager and will normally be without pay. You should endeavour to make
these appointments at the beginning or end of the day to cause as least disruption as possible.

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

Individuals’ reactions to bereavement vary greatly and the setting of fixed rules for time off is therefore inappropriate. You should discuss your
circumstances with your Line Manager and agree appropriate time off and whether this is with or without pay.

TRAVEL EXPENSES

We will reimburse you for any reasonable expenses incurred whilst travelling on our business. The rules relating to travelling expenses will be
issued separately. You must provide receipts for any expenditure.

COMMUNICATIONS

We will try to keep you informed about items of interest by means of our notice board, you should use these, if you wish (with permission), to
promote any particular item of interest to other employees.

EMPLOYEES’ PROPERTY

We do not accept liability for any loss of, or damage to, property that you bring onto the premises. You are requested not to bring personal
items of value onto the premises and, in particular, not to leave any items overnight.

LOST PROPERTY

Articles of lost property should be handed to your Line Manager who will retain them whilst attempts are made to discover the owner.
PARKING

Where parking is provided, to avoid congestion, all vehicles must be parked only in the designated parking areas. No liability is accepted for
damage to private vehicles, however it may be caused.

MAIL

20



€61

K)

P)

Q)

R)

S)

All mail received by us will be opened, including that addressed to employees and private mail, therefore, should not be sent care of our
address. No private mail may be posted at our expense except in those cases where a formal re-charge arrangement has been made.
TELEPHONE CALLS

Telephones are essential for our business. Urgent personal calls can only be made with the prior permission of Management and where a pay
phone is provided this should be used.

MOBILE PHONES

a. Company mobile phones, where possible, should be switched on during working hours. Urgent personal calls are permitted but should be
of short duration. Any abuse may lead to disciplinary action and we reserve the right to deduct from your monies the cost of any excessive
calls. This is an express written term of your contract of employment.

b. Personal mobile phones should be switched off during working hours unless agreed with Management.

USE OF MOBILE WHILST DRIVING

It is illegal to use a mobile phone whilst driving (without a hands free set). It is our company policy that you should not use any mobile phones

whilst driving. You should pull over to the side of the road in an appropriate place before making or receiving any telephones calls. In the event

of you being unable to pick up a call because you cannot find a safe place to stop, you must return the call as soon as conveniently possible.

BUYING OR SELLING OF GOODS

You are not allowed to buy or sell goods on your own behalf on our premises or during your working hours.

COLLECTIONS FROM EMPLOYEES

Unless specific authorisation is given by your Departmental Manager, no collections of any kind are allowed on our premises.

FRIENDS AND RELATIVES CONTACT

You should discourage your friends and relatives from either calling on you in person or by telephone except in an emergency.

COMMENTS/IDEAS

We welcome and encourage your comments and ideas to evolve and improve the Company which will be accepted and acknowledged by

Management. Even the smallest idea can result in improvement.

STAFF BREAKS

Staff breaks are allowed but these must be agreed with your Departmental Head to ensure they do not affect the smooth running of your

department.

LOCKERS

If you have been provided with a locker you will be issued with a key and be required to sign for this. Any replacement needed due to your

negligence/carelessness, will leave you liable for the cost of this and we reserve the right to deduct from your monies such sum. This is an

express written term of your contract of employment.

21



V61

9-Making a Protected Disclosure

A) INTRODUCTION

1. Under certain circumstances, employees have legal protection if they make disclosures about organisations for whom they work. These
employees are commonly referred to as ‘whistle blowers’ and their activities have often received wide publicity in the media.

2. An employee who believed, for example, that organisations were disposing of toxic waste illegally may have ‘blown the whistle’ directly to the
press or television, perhaps because of concern for the environment, a belief that the organisation would attempt a ‘cover-up’ if asked to stop, or
for financial gain.

3. Employees, who blew the whistle on organisations, were often treated detrimentally by them or their engagements were terminated. This
discouraged employees from whistle blowing even where such action would be for the good of the public. The legislation is designed to protect
employees from suffering any detriment or termination of engagement for whistle blowing.

B) QUALIFYING DISCLOSURES

1. Certain disclosures are prescribed by law as ‘qualifying disclosures’. Disclosures are qualifying disclosures where it can be shown that the
company commits a ‘relevant failure’ by:

e committing a criminal offence;

e failing to comply with a legal obligation;

e amiscarriage of justice;

e endangering the health and safety of an individual;
e environmental damage; or

e concealing any information relating to the above.

2. These acts can be in the past, present or future, so that, for example, a disclosure qualifies if it relates to environmental damage that has
happened, is happening, or is likely to happen.

C) THE PROCEDURE

1. If you so wish you should in the first instance report any concerns you may have to your Manager who will treat the matter with complete
confidence. If you are not satisfied with the explanation or reason given to you, you should raise the matter with the appropriate organisation or
body, e.g. the Police, the Environment Agency, Health and Safety Executive or Social Services Department.

22



G6T

2. If you do not report your concerns to your Manager you may take them direct to the appropriate organisation or body however you are
encouraged to fully exhaust the formal internal procedures where possible.

D) GENERAL NOTES

1. The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 prevents you from suffering a detriment or having your contract terminated for ‘whistle blowing’ and we
take very seriously any concerns which you may raise under this legislation.

2. We encourage you to use the procedure if you are concerned about any wrongdoing at work. However, if the procedure has not been invoked in
good faith (e.g. for malicious reasons or in pursuit of a personal grudge), then it will make you liable to immediate termination of engagement or
such lesser disciplinary sanction as may be appropriate in the circumstances.

10-Capability

A) INTRODUCTION
We recognise that during your employment with us your capability to carry out your duties may deteriorate. This can be for a number of
reasons, the most common ones being that either the job changes over a period of time and you fail to keep pace with the changes, or you
change (most commonly because of health reasons) and you can no longer cope with the work.

B) JOB CHANGES

1. If the nature of your job changes we will make every effort to ensure that you understand the level of performance expected of you and that you
receive adequate training and supervision. If we have concerns regarding your capability these will be discussed in an informal manner, and you will
be given time to improve.

2. If your standard of performance is still not adequate you will be warned in writing that a failure to improve and to maintain the performance
required could lead to your dismissal. We will also consider the possibility of a transfer to more suitable work if possible.

3. If there is still no improvement after a reasonable time and we cannot transfer you to more suitable work, you will be issued with a final warning
that you will be dismissed unless the required standard of performance is achieved and maintained.

4. If such improvement is not forthcoming after an agreed period of time, you will be dismissed with the appropriate notice.

C) PERSONAL CIRCUMSTANCES

23



96T

1. Personal circumstances may arise which do not prevent you from attending for work but which prevent you from carrying out your normal duties
(e.g. a lack of dexterity or general ill health). If such a situation arises, we will normally need to have details of your medical diagnosis and prognosis
so that we have the benefit of expert advice. Under normal circumstances this can be most easily obtained by asking your own doctor for a medical
report. Your permission is needed before we can obtain such a report and we will expect you to co-operate in this matter should the need arise.
When we have obtained as much information as possible regarding your condition and after consultation with you, a decision will be made about
your future employment with us in your current role or, where circumstances permit, in a more suitable role.

2. There may also be personal circumstances which prevent you from attending work, either for a prolonged period(s) or for frequent short
absences. Under these circumstances we will need to know when we can expect your attendance record to reach an acceptable level. This may
again mean asking your own doctor for a medical report or by making whatever investigations are appropriate in the circumstances. When we have
obtained as much information as possible regarding your condition, and after consultation with you, a decision will be made about your future
employment with us in your current role or, where circumstances permit, in a more suitable role.

11-Disciplinary Rules and Procedures

A) INTRODUCTION
1. It is necessary to have a minimum number of rules in the interests of the whole organisation.

2. The rules set standards of performance and behaviour whilst the procedures are designed to help promote fairness and order in the treatment of
individuals. It is our aim that the rules and procedures should emphasise, and encourage, improvement in the conduct of individuals, where they
are failing to meet the required standards, and not be seen as a means of punishment.

3. Every effort will be made to ensure that any action taken under this procedure is fair, with you being given the opportunity to state your case and
appeal against any decision that you consider to be unjust.

4. The following rules and procedures should ensure that:

the correct procedure is used when inviting you to a disciplinary hearing;

you are fully aware of the standards of performance, action and behaviour required of you;

disciplinary action, where necessary, is taken speedily and in a fair, uniform and consistent manner;

you will only be disciplined after careful investigation of the facts and the opportunity to present your side of the case. On some occasions
temporary suspension on full pay may be necessary in order that an uninterrupted investigation can take place. This must not be regarded
as disciplinary action or a penalty of any kind;

a0 oo

24



L6T

f.
g.

other than for an “off the record” informal reprimand, you have the right to be accompanied by a fellow employee, who may act as a
witness or speak on your behalf, at all stages of the formal disciplinary process;

you will not normally be dismissed for a first breach of discipline, except in the case of gross misconduct; and

if you are disciplined, you will receive an explanation of the penalty imposed and you will have the right to appeal against the finding and
the penalty.

B) DISCIPLINARY RULES

It is not practicable to specify all disciplinary rules or offences that may result in disciplinary action, as they may vary depending on the nature of the
work. In addition to the specific examples of unsatisfactory conduct, misconduct and gross misconduct shown in this handbook, a breach of other
conditions, procedures, rules etc. within this handbook will also result in the disciplinary procedure being used to deal with such matters.

C) RULES COVERING UNSATISFACTORY CONDUCT AND MISCONDUCT (These are examples only and not an exhaustive list.)

1. You will be liable to disciplinary action if you are found to have acted in any of the following ways:

S oo oTo

53T AT o@

T 0

failure to abide by the general health and safety rules and procedures;

smoking in designated non smoking areas;

consumption of alcohol on the premises;

persistent absenteeism and/or lateness;

unsatisfactory standards or output of work;

rudeness towards customers, members of the public or other employees, objectionable or insulting behaviour, harassment, bullying or bad
language;

failure to devote the whole of your time, attention and abilities to our business and its affairs during your normal working hours;
unauthorised use of E-mail and Internet;

failure to carry out all reasonable instructions or follow our rules and procedures;

unauthorised use or negligent damage or loss of our property;

failure to report immediately any damage to property or premises caused by you;

use of our vehicles without approval or the private use of our commercial vehicles without authorisation;

. failure to report any incident whilst driving our vehicles, whether or not personal injury or vehicle damage occurs;

if your work involves driving, failure to report immediately any type of driving conviction, or any summons which may lead to your
conviction;

carrying unauthorised goods or passengers in our commercial vehicles or the use of our vehicles for personal gain; and

loss of driving licence where driving on public roads forms an essential part of the duties of the post.

25



86T

D) SERIOUS MISCONDUCT

1. Where one of the unsatisfactory conduct or misconduct rules has been broken and if, upon investigation, it is shown to be due to your extreme
carelessness or has a serious or substantial effect upon our operation or reputation, you may be issued with a final written warning in the first
instance.

2. You may receive a final written warning as the first course of action, if, in an alleged gross misconduct disciplinary matter, upon investigation,
there is shown to be some level of mitigation resulting in it being treated as an offence just short of dismissal.

E) RULES COVERING GROSS MISCONDUCT (These are examples only and not an exhaustive list.)
1. You will be liable to summary dismissal if you are found to have acted in any of the following ways:

grossly indecent, immoral behaviour, deliberate acts of unlawful discrimination, serious acts of harassment;
dangerous behaviour, fighting or physical assault;
incapacity at work or poor performance caused by intoxicants or drugs;
possession, supply or use of illicit drugs;
deliberate falsification of any records (including time sheets, absence records and so on, in respect of yourself or any fellow employee);
undertaking private work on the premises and/or in working hours without express permission;
working in competition with us;
taking part in activities which result in adverse publicity to ourselves, or which cause us to lose faith in your integrity;
theft or unauthorised possession of money or property, whether belonging to us, another employee, or a third party;
destruction/sabotage of our property, any property on the premises;
serious breaches of health and safety rules, including those within the Employee Safety Handbook, that endanger the lives of or may cause
serious injury to employees or any other person;
interference with, or misuse of, any equipment for use at work that may cause harm;
. gross insubordination and/or continuing refusal to carry out legitimate instructions;
abuse of the personal harassment policy; and o. abuse of the protected disclosure provisions
smoking in the kitchen or behind the bar

AT TS o0 oo

°© 5353

F) DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE

1. Disciplinary action taken against you will be based on the following procedure:

26



66T

OFFEMCE FIRST SECOMD THIRD FOURTH
QCCASION QCCASION OCCASION QCCASION
UNSATIS Faremal Written Final Dismizsal
FACTORY wierhal warning written
CONDUCT warning WarTing
MISCOMDUCT Written Firal Dismizsal
warning written
Warning
SERIOUS Final Dismissal
MISCOMDUCT wiritten
warning
GROSS Dizenissal
MISCOMDUCT

2. We retain discretion in respect of the disciplinary procedures to take account of your length of service and to vary the procedures accordingly. If
you have a short amount of service you may not be in receipt of any warnings before dismissal but you will retain the right to a disciplinary hearing
and you will have the right of appeal.

3. If a disciplinary penalty is imposed it will be in line with the procedure outlined above, which may encompass a formal verbal warning, written
warning, final written warning, or dismissal, and full details will be given to you.

27



00¢

4. In all cases warnings will be issued for misconduct, irrespective of the precise matters concerned, and any further breach of the procedure in
relation to similar or entirely independent matters of misconduct will be treated as further disciplinary matters and allow the continuation of the
disciplinary process through to dismissal if the warnings are not heeded

G) DISCIPLINARY AUTHORITY

The operation of the disciplinary procedure contained, in the previous section, is based on the following authority for the various levels of
disciplinary action. However, the list does not prevent a higher level of seniority progressing any action at whatever stage of the disciplinary
process.

PERSON AUTHORISED TO TAKE DISCIPLINARY ACTION IN THE CASE OF:

Formal verbal  Director Departmental Manager/Head Chef
warning
Written Director Departmental Manager/Head Chef
warning
Final written Director Departmental Manager/Head Chef
warning
Dismissal Director Departmental Manager/Head Chef

H) PERIOD OF WARNINGS
1. Formal verbal warning A formal verbal warning, confirmed in writing, will normally be disregarded after a three month period.
2. Written warning A written warning will normally be disregarded after a six month period.

3. Final written warning A final written warning will normally be disregarded after a twelve month period.



T0C

I) GENERAL NOTES

1. If you are in a supervisory or managerial position then demotion to a lower status at the appropriate rate may be considered as an alternative to
dismissal except in cases of gross misconduct.

2. In exceptional circumstances, suspension from work without pay for up to five days as an alternative to dismissal (except dismissal for gross
misconduct) may be considered by the person authorised to dismiss.

3. Gross misconduct offences will result in dismissal without notice.

4. You have the right to appeal against any disciplinary action (see Disciplinary Appeal Procedure)

12-Disciplinary Appeal Procedure

1. The disciplinary rules and procedures which form part of your contract of employment incorporate the right to lodge an appeal in respect of any
disciplinary action taken against you.

2. If you wish to exercise this right you should apply in writing to the person indicated in your individual Statement of Main Terms of Employment.

3. An appeal against a formal warning or dismissal should give details of why the penalty imposed is either too severe, inappropriate or unfair in the
circumstances.

4. The disciplinary appeal procedure will normally be conducted by a member of staff not previously connected with the disciplinary process so that
an independent decision into the severity and appropriateness of the disciplinary action can be made.

5. If you are appealing on the grounds that you have not committed the offence then your appeal may take the form of a complete re-hearing and
reappraisal of all matters so that the person who conducts the appeal can make an independent decision before deciding to grant or refuse the
appeal.

6. You may be accompanied at any stage of the appeal hearing by a fellow employee of your choice or trade union representative, who may act as a
witness or speak on your behalf. The result of the appeal will be made known to you in writing within five working days after the hearing.

7. If you are dissatisfied with the decision, you may appeal in writing to the next level of Management within five working days. The result of the
hearing will be made known to you in writing within five working days. The final redress being with a Director of the Company.

29



c0¢

13-Grievance Procedure

1. It is important that if you feel dissatisfied with any matter relating to your work you should have an immediate means by which such a grievance
can be aired and resolved.

2. Nothing in this procedure is intended to prevent you from informally raising any matter you may wish to mention. Informal discussion can
frequently solve problems without the need for a written record but if you wish to raise a formal grievance you must do so in writing from the
outset. You have the right to be accompanied at any stage of the procedure by a fellow employee who may act as a witness or speak on your behalf
to explain the situation more clearly.

3. If you feel aggrieved at any matter relating to your work (except personal harassment, for which there is a separate procedure following this
section), you should first raise the matter with the person specified in your Contract of Employment, in writing, explaining fully the nature and
extent of your grievance. You will then be invited to a meeting at which your grievance will be investigated fully. You will be notified of the decision,
in writing, within five working days of the meeting, including your right of appeal.

4. If you wish to appeal you must do this, in writing, to the Director of the Company within five working days. You will then be invited to a further
meeting, the decision of which will be notified to you, in writing, within five working days. This decision will be final.

6. Appeals should be sent in writing to the site address.

14-Equal Opportunities Policy

A) STATEMENT OF POLICY
1. We recognise that discrimination is unacceptable and although equality of opportunity has been a long standing feature of our employment
practices and procedure, we have made the decision to adopt a formal equal opportunities policy. Breaches of the policy will lead to disciplinary
proceedings and, if appropriate, disciplinary action.
2. The aim of the policy is to ensure no job applicant, employee or worker is discriminated against either directly or indirectly on the grounds of
race, colour, ethnic or national origin, religious belief, political opinion or affiliation, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, gender
reassignment, age or disability.
3. We will ensure that the policy is circulated to any agencies responsible for our recruitment and a copy of the policy will be made available for
all employees and made known to all applicants for employment.
4. The policy will be communicated to all private contractors reminding them of their responsibilities towards the equality of opportunity.

30



€0c

5. The policy will be implemented in accordance with the appropriate statutory requirements and full account will be taken of all available
guidance and in particular any relevant Codes of Practice.
6. We will maintain a neutral working environment in which no employee or worker feels under threat or intimidated.

B) RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION

1. The recruitment and selection process is crucially important to any equal opportunities policy. We will endeavour through appropriate
training to ensure that employees making selection and recruitment decisions will not discriminate, whether consciously or unconsciously, in
making these decisions.

2. Promotion and advancement will be made on merit and all decisions relating to this will be made within the overall framework and principles
of this policy.

3. Job descriptions, where used, will be revised to ensure that they are in line with our equal opportunities policy. Job requirements will be
reflected accurately in any personnel specifications.

4. We will adopt a consistent, non-discriminatory approach to the advertising of vacancies.

5. We will not confine our recruitment to areas or media sources which provide only, or mainly, applicants of a particular group.

6. All applicants who apply for jobs with us will receive fair treatment and will be considered solely on their ability to do the job.

7. All employees involved in the recruitment process will periodically review their selection criteria to ensure that they are related to the job
requirements and do not unlawfully discriminate.

8. Short listing and interviewing will be carried out by more than one person where possible.

9. Interview questions will be related to the requirements of the job and will not be of a discriminatory nature

10. We will not disqualify any applicant because he/she is unable to complete an application form unassisted unless personal completion of the
form is a valid test of the standard of English required for the safe and effective performance of the job.

11. Selection decisions will not be influenced by any perceived prejudices of other staff.

C) TRAINING AND PROMOTION
1. Senior staff will receive training in the application of this policy to ensure that they are aware of its contents and provisions.
2. All promotion will be in line with this policy.

D) MONITORING

1. We will maintain and review the employment records of all employees in order to monitor the progress of this policy.
2. Monitoring may involve:

31



14014

e the collection and classification of information regarding the race in terms of ethnic/national origin and sex of all applicants and current
employees;

e the examination by ethnic/national origin and sex of the distribution of employees and the success rate of the applicants; and

e recording recruitment, training and promotional records of all employees, the decisions reached and the reason for those decisions.

3. The results of any monitoring procedure will be reviewed at regular intervals to assess the effectiveness of the implementation of this policy.
Consideration will be given, if necessary, to adjusting this policy to afford greater equality of opportunities to all applicants and staff.

15-Personal Harassment Policy and Procedure

A) INTRODUCTION

1. Many people in our society are victimised and harassed as a result of their race, colour, ethnic or national origin, religious belief, political
opinion or affiliation, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, age or disability.

2. Personal harassment takes many forms ranging from tasteless jokes and abusive remarks to pestering for sexual favours, threatening
behaviour and actual physical abuse. Whatever form it takes, personal harassment is always taken seriously and is totally unacceptable.

3. We recognise that personal harassment can exist in the workplace, as well as outside, and that this can seriously affect employees’ working
lives by interfering with their job performance or by creating a stressful, intimidating and unpleasant working environment.

B) POLICY
1. We deplore all forms of personal harassment and seek to ensure that the working environment is sympathetic to all our employees.

2. We have published these procedures to inform employees of the type of behaviour that is unacceptable and provide employees who are the
victims of personal harassment with a means of redress.

3. We recognise that we have a duty to implement this policy and all employees are expected to comply with it.

C) EXAMPLES OF PERSONAL HARASSMENT
1. Personal harassment takes many forms and employees may not always realise that their behaviour constitutes harassment. Personal
harassment is unwanted behaviour by one employee towards another and examples of harassment include:

e insensitive jokes and pranks;

o |ewd or abusive comments about appearance;

e deliberate exclusion from conversations;

32



G0¢

e displaying abusive or offensive writing or material; e. unwelcome touching; and
e abusive, threatening or insulting words or behaviour. These examples are not exhaustive and disciplinary action at the
appropriate level will be taken against employees committing any form of personal harassment.

D) COMPLAINING ABOUT PERSONAL HARASSMENT

1. Informal complaint We recognise that complaints of personal harassment, and particularly of sexual harassment, can sometimes be of a
sensitive or intimate nature and that it may not be appropriate for you to raise the issue through our normal grievance procedure. In these
circumstances you are encouraged to raise such issues with a senior person of your choice (whether or not that person has a direct supervisory
responsibility for you) as a confidential helper. This person cannot be the Director who will be responsible for investigating the matter if it
becomes a formal complaint.

If you are the victim of minor harassment you should make it clear to the harasser on an informal basis that their behaviour is unwelcome and
ask the harasser to stop. If you feel unable to do this verbally then you should hand a written request to the harasser, and your confidential
helper can assist you in this.

2. Formal complaint Where the informal approach fails or if the harassment is more serious, you should bring the matter to the attention of a
Director as a formal written complaint and again your confidential helper can assist you in this. If possible, you should keep notes of the
harassment so that the written complaint can include:

e the name of the alleged harasser;

e the nature of the alleged harassment;

e the dates and times when the alleged harassment occurred;

e he names of any witnesses; and

e any action already taken by you to stop the alleged harassment.

On receipt of a formal complaint we will take action to separate you from the alleged harasser to enable an uninterrupted investigation to take
place. This may involve a temporary transfer of the alleged harasser to another work area or suspension with pay until the matter has been
resolved. The person dealing with the complaint will carry out a thorough investigation in accordance with our disciplinary procedure. Those
involved in the investigation will be expected to act in confidence and any breach of confidence will be a disciplinary matter. When the
investigation has been concluded, a draft report of the findings and of the investigator’s proposed decision will be sent, in writing, to you and to
the alleged harasser. If you or the alleged harasser are dissatisfied with the draft report or with the proposed decision this should be raised with

33



90¢

the investigator within five working days of receiving the draft. Any points of concern will be considered by the investigator before a final report
is sent, in writing, to you and to the alleged harasser.

E) GENERAL NOTES

1. If the report concludes that the allegation is well founded, the harasser will be subject to disciplinary action in accordance with our
disciplinary procedure. An employee who receives a formal warning or who is dismissed for harassment may appeal against the disciplinary
action by using our disciplinary appeal procedure.

2. If you bring a complaint of harassment you will not be victimised for having brought the complaint. However if the report concludes that the
complaint is both untrue and has been brought with malicious intent, disciplinary action will be taken against you.

16-Termination of Employment

1.

RETIREMENT

Employees who wish to retire should speak with their Line Manager.

TERMINATING EMPLOYMENT WITHOUT GIVING NOTICE

If you terminate your employment without giving or working the required period of notice, as indicated in your individual contract of
employment, you will have an amount equal to any additional cost of covering your duties during the notice period not worked deducted
from any termination pay due to you. This is an express written term of your contract of employment. You will also forfeit any contractual
accrued holiday pay due to you over and above your statutory holiday pay.

RETURN OF OUR PROPERTY

On the termination of your employment you must return all our property which is in your possession or for which you have responsibility.
Failure to return such items will result in the cost of the items being deducted from any monies outstanding to you. This is an express
written term of your contract of employment.

RETURN OF VEHICLES
On termination of your employment you must return your company vehicle to our premises. Failure to return the vehicle will result in the

cost of its recovery being deducted from any monies outstanding to you. This is an express written term of your contract of employment.

GARDEN LEAVE

34



If either you or the company serves notice on the other to terminate your employment the company may require you to take “garden
leave” for all or part of the remaining period of your employment. If you are asked to take garden leave you:
a. must not attend your place of work or any other premises of the company or any associated company; unless otherwise
requested by a Director;
b. may be asked to relinquish immediately any offices you hold in the company/associated company;
may not be required to carry out your normal duties during the remaining period of your employment; however you will still be
available for answering queries;
d. must return to the company all documents, software, equipment, property and other materials (including copies) belonging to
the company or associated company containing confidential information; and
e. must not, without the prior written permission of a Director, contact or attempt to contact any client, customer, supplier,
agent, professional adviser, broker, or banker of the company or any associated company or any employee of the company or
any associated company.
NB. During any period of garden leave you will continue to receive your full salary and any other contractual benefits

17-Alcohol and Drugs Policy

A. In the Workplace
1. Introduction

This company is committed to providing a safe, healthy and productive working environment for all employees, contractors, customers and
visitors involved in its operation.

This policy sets out the company’s aims in reducing and managing alcohol and drug problems in the workplace.

Alcohol and drug problems are prevalent in society and are associated with a wide variety of costs for both employers and employees. These
costs include ill-health sickness absence, reduced work performance and accidents.

The consumption of alcohol and drugs has implications for health and safety at work since these substances impair co-ordination, judgement
and decision making; as such this is a policy matter.

35



80¢

2. Policy Aims and Objectives
Aim:
To clearly state the company’s position on alcohol and drugs within the workplace.

Objectives:
e To ensure the company complies with appropriate legislation
e To minimise the risks associated with alcohol and drugs in the workplace
e To have clear rules regarding alcohol and drugs in the workplace
e To provide employees with an education programme on the adverse health effects of alcohol and drugs
e To encourage the early identification of employees who may be experiencing alcohol or drug problems
e To provide support for employees experiencing alcohol and drug problems
e To provide training and support to line managers to ensure they are equipped to support employees experiencing problems

3. Definitions Alcohol problem

- An alcohol problem is defined as any drinking, either intermittent or continual which interferes with a person’s health and/or social
functioning and/or work capability or conduct.

Drugs

- Any drug, whether illegal, prescribed or over the counter or solvents such as glue, butane, etc. In the case of prescribed and over the counter
drugs, their possession and use by the employee is acknowledged as legitimate. Drug problem - The use of illegal drugs, the deliberate use of
prescribed or over the counter drugs (when not for a medical condition) and the use of solvents, either intermittent or continual which
interferes with a person’s health and/or social functioning and/or work capability or conduct.

4. Legal

4.1 The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 requires employers to protect the health, safety and welfare of their employees and others who
may be affected by their activities, as far as is reasonably practicable.

4.2 The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999 requires employers to carry out a risk assessment to identify hazards in
the workplace and put measures in place to minimise these risks.

36



602

4.3 The Misuse of Drugs Act (1971) is the main legislation covering drugs and categorises them as classes A, B and C. These drugs are called
controlled substances and class A drugs are considered to be the most harmful under this act. It is illegal for anyone, whether at work or not to
produce, supply or be in possession of illegal drugs. Employers may be liable if they knowingly allow dispensing, manufacturing, possession,
using or selling on their premises.

5. Policy Rules

5.1 The company requires all employees to report for duty free from the effects of alcohol and drugs*. It is not acceptable to be under the
influence of alcohol or drugs at work or consume alcohol or drugs during hours of workthis includes paid and un-paid breaks.

5.2 Employees found in possession of illegal drugs or using illegal drugs whilst at work will normally be reported to the police.

5.3 In some cases the legitimate use of prescribed drugs can affect a person’s ability to do their job. In such instances employees should inform
their line manager.

6. Education

6.1 The company is committed to promoting healthy lifestyles to employees via the Healthy Working Lives programme. Alcohol and drug issues
will be incorporated into the staff health programme and employees will be provided with information on the current health guidance in
relation to safe and sensible drinking and the risks associated with using drugs. This information will be disseminated by means of written
material, email communication and workshops run by health specialists from the alcohol and drugs field.

6.2 Training will be provided for managers to outline their responsibilities for enforcing this policy.
New managers will be made aware of their responsibilities in relation to this policy.

6.3 This policy will be sent to all staff.
New staff will be made aware of this policy at induction and will be sent a copy with their contract of employment.

7. Implementation of the Policy

7.1ldentification of a problem Alcohol and drug problems may become apparent through a number of means, for example the following
(particularly in combination) may result in a problem being suspected:

e Persistent short term absence

37



0T¢

Unauthorised absence

Poor time keeping

Reduced work performance
Poor working relationships
e Deterioration in appearance

However it must be remembered that these factors can have a number of other causes.
Employees experiencing alcohol or drug problems may first become apparent to their colleagues.
If a member of staff suspects an alcohol or drug problem in a colleague, they should either:

e Encourage the person to seek help from support agencies.
e Report the matter to a manager (particularly if the person is involved in a safety critical job).

7.2 Misconduct This policy is primarily concerned with ongoing alcohol and drugs problems which are classed as capability issues, i.e. where the
problem impacts on the person’s ability to do their job. One-off cases where the rules of this policy are breached, such as someone reporting
for work clearly under the influence of alcohol or drugs or suffering from the effects of alcohol will be classed as a conduct issue and will be
dealt with under the normal disciplinary procedures as outlined in the company hand book.

Very serious incidents such as violence at work whilst under the influence of alcohol or drugs or dealing illegal drugs at work will be deemed
serious misconduct justifying summary dismissal.

In some instances of misconduct where the employee admits to having an alcohol or drug problem, disciplinary proceedings may be held in
abeyance subject to successful outcome of treatment. In instances of serious misconduct where the employee subsequently admits to having
an alcohol or drug problem, the support route and the disciplinary route may be implemented in tandem.

7.3 Voluntary Referral for Support Employees who suspect or know they have a drug or alcohol problem are encouraged to seek support at an
early stage. Employees may or may not wish to inform their line manager in such instances.

7.4 Referral by Management Employees suspected of having an alcohol or drug problem will be offered support by their manager. Where the
problem has become apparent through deterioration in work performance, the employee will have to demonstrate satisfactory completion of a
programme of support and an improvement in work performance or disciplinary action will be taken. Employees will be given the opportunity
of attending treatment within work time.

38



TT¢

Alternatively if employees require to be absent from duty normal sick pay arrangements will apply.

7.5 Confidentiality The company aims to ensure that the confidentiality of all employees experiencing alcohol or drug problems is maintained
by appropriate people, for example, human resources, occupational health and line manager.

Information regarding individual cases will not be divulged to third parties unless the safety of the person concerned, or others would be
compromised by not doing so.

7.6 Equal Opportunities
This policy will apply equally to all staff regardless of grade, experience, or role within the company.
7.7 Relapse

The company acknowledges that relapse is common with alcohol and drug problems. Employees will normally be supported through two
relapses after treatment. Subsequent relapses will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis, taking into account the needs of the department
affected and the business needs of the organisation. Employees should be aware that the disciplinary route might be followed after subsequent
relapses.

7.8 Return to Work Following treatment the company will endeavour to ensure the employee returns to their existing job.
If the employee is unable to fulfil those duties the company will consider alternative duties.

Promotional prospects will be unaffected following treatment.

B. Guest experience

1. Introduction
The use of illicit drugs is often associated with the night-time economy.

Unfortunately even the most responsible and well-run licensed premises are not immune from issues surrounding drugs.

Pascal’s is committed to providing a safe, healthy environment for all customers and neighbourhood .

39



A4

This policy sets out the company’s aims in reducing and managing alcohol and drug problems. to ensure that licensee and team members can
be fully informed and equipped to tackle drug-related issues.

Alcohol and drug problems are prevalent in society and are associated with a wide variety of costs for Business and local authority.

These costs include , disorder, accidents and vandalism.

A proactive approach to tackling illicit drugs and a strong relationship with the police and local authorities is the best way forward.

The consumption of alcohol and drugs has implications for health and safety since these substances impair co-ordination, judgement and
decision making as such this is a policy matter.

2. Policy Aims and Objectives

Aim:

To clearly state the company’s position on alcohol and drugs within the Business and the area.

Objectives:

To ensure the company complies with appropriate legislation

To minimise the risks associated with alcohol and drugs in and out of the premise.

To have clear rules regarding alcohol and drugs for guest to understand.

To educate customer on the effect of over consuming alcohol and taking drugs could have on the premise licence and the
business they like to patron

To encourage the early identification of customers who may be experiencing alcohol or drug problems

To deal with this customers

To provide managers and team member the tools to deal with this kind of customers in a safe and professional fashion.

Cooperation with emergency services is vital when it comes to dealing with drug users.
If we suspect that someone is under the influence of illegal drugs in the interests of safety we may then refuse them service and ask them to vacate the

premises immediately.

If the individual refuses to comply or becomes aggressive, we will then contact the Police immediately for assistance.

40



€Te

3.ldentifying someone on drugs
¢ Unexplained changes in personality or attitude that are inconsistent with alcohol use
e Extreme hyperactivity or lethargy
¢ Fearful or paranoid without logical reason
¢ Tremors, slurred speech, giggling or lack of coordination (be aware of those with a genuine disability)
¢ Bloodshot eyes or pupils much larger or smaller than usual
e Hallucinations

¢ Suspicious behaviours including frequent trips to the toilet, garden etc

4.General signs of drug use in the premises
* Torn up beer mats/ cigarette packets/bits of cardboard left on tables or in ashtrays
* Roaches (home-made filter tips from cannabis cigarettes)
e Empty packets made of folded paper, card or foil

* Needles, syringes, swabs, spoons, candles, pieces of burned tinfoil, filters removed from cigarettes, lemon juice or citric acid
sachets ¢ Traces of powder on flat hard surfaces

e Strong, sickly sweet, smoky smells, or an ammonia-like smell

¢ Blood or blood stained items

¢ Payment with tightly rolled banknotes or notes that have been tightly rolled
 Traces of blood or powder on banknotes

* Solvent paraphernalia e.g. aerosol cans, lighter refills

41



vic

If we suspect that someone is suffering from the effects of drug use, and is showing signs of distress or unconsciousness, we will move them to
the recovery position and contact the emergency services. Ensuring that the area around the individual is clear and free of dangerous objects
whilst awaiting assistance.

5.ldentifying someone suffering from drug abuse
¢ Problems with vital signs including: temperature; heart rate; respiratory rate
¢ Nausea and vomiting as well as abdominal pain and diarrhoea including that which contains blood
* Confusion, semi-consciousness and coma

¢ Chest pain and extremely rapid or slow breathing

6.Door searches

e Implementing a search policy at the door.

e Door supervisors have no statutory legal rights to search individuals and any search must be conducted with the individual’s
consent.

e Letting know costumers that we are able to refuse entry to our premises if they do not consent to being searched.

e Where an individual is found to be in possession of a controlled substance, door supervisor will either seize the item and allow
entry, seize the item and refuse entry, or seize the item and request that the individual remains present whilst the police are
contacted.

o  We will ask the Police to indicate which option they prefer, asking door staff to make a distinction between an amount of drugs
for personal use and an amount of drugs intended for sale.

e When controlled substance are seized, the door staff will place the drugs in an evidence bag, seal the bag and record the
incident in the appropriate manner. Manager will always be present to witness this process to protect the integrity of staff
against any potential allegations (Considering a “drug safe” that can only be open by the Police).

7.Preventing drug use on the premises

We are committed to tackle drug-related issues, no matter how small.

42



GT¢

o Whilst staff will be trained to handle such situations, a degree of judgement should be exercised in deciding whether to handle
the problem ourselves or call the police.

e We do not want to put our staff or customers in unnecessary risk. If we/they feel that a situation is unsafe, we/they will call the
police to ask for advice or assistance.
A good relationship, with a well-established line of communication between the police and our premises, will aid in dealing with
such issues in a timely and proper manner.

e |f choosing to approach an individual in possession of, or inhibited by, illegal drugs, we will avoid any confrontation that may
trigger aggression. We will politely state our policy on drugs and ask the individual to vacate the premises.

e We will put emphasising on our legal obligations and stating that we could lose our licence or face prosecution for allowing the
use of drugs on our premises.

e Managers and Staff are aware that they should ring the police immediately if they start to feel unsafe.

We must be proactive in deterring illegal activity on your premises.

¢ Train staff on how to identify signs of drug use or supply.

¢ Maintaining vigilance at all times and continue to supervise the entire premises by doing walk around.

¢ Maintain high standards of cleanliness to deter drug users and dealers. We are committed to not tolerate illegal activity.

e Establish strong relationships with your licensing officers and police in order to preserve a channel of communication and advice.
Check with the Police forces for workshops on the subject.

¢ Get to know your customers.

e Alteration of flat surfaces in the toilets if necessary

¢ Door staff will assist in both removing drugs before they enter a premises and deterring drug users from attempting to enter the
premises at all.

¢ CCTV to provides an effective deterrent to keep track of those in a premises, including in secluded areas (toilet lobby for example)
and outside.

¢ Record any drugs finds or seizures

43



9T¢

* Have a locally agreed arrangement with the police as to how and when seized drugs will be collected for destruction (secure place
where they can be stored as stated above “drug safe” to be considered)

All movement of drugs is documented so that an audit trail is maintained.

To become an active member of your local Pubwatch. To look to create safe and responsible drinking environments through
the sharing of intelligence and information between premises on individuals who are known to threaten such safe and
responsible environments.

Membership will aid us in identifying individuals who are linked to drug use or supply and ensure that staff are able to prevent
such individuals from entering the premises.

8. Legal
e The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 requires employers to protect the health, safety and welfare of their employees and
others who may be affected by their activities, as far as is reasonably practicable.
e The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999 requires employers to carry out a risk assessment to identify
hazards in the workplace and put measures in place to minimise these risks.
e The Misuse of Drugs Act (1971) is the main legislation covering drugs and categorises them as classes A, B and C. These drugs
are called controlled substances and class A drugs are considered to be the most harmful under this act.
e ltisillegal for anyone to produce, supply or be in possession of illegal drugs.
e Licensee may be liable if they knowingly allow dispensing, manufacturing, possession, using or selling on their premises.
9.Policy Rules

It is not acceptable to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs before entering the premises.

Customers found in possession of illegal drugs or using illegal drugs while in the premise will normally be reported to the police.
In some cases, the legitimate use of prescribed drugs can affect a person’s ability.

In such instances customer should inform a team member, manager or door security when present.

10. Training and Implementation of the Policy

Training will be provided for managers to outline their responsibilities for enforcing this policy.

New managers will be made aware of their responsibilities in relation to this policy and its implementation.

44



LTC

New staff will be made aware of this policy on induction and will be sent a copy with their contract of employment.

45



8T¢



APPENDIX G

219



220



	Agenda
	3 Pascals Bistro Bar Licensing Panel (Licensing Act 2003 Functions)
	APPENDIX A
	Appendix B (PDF)
	Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
	Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
	Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)

	APPENDIX B (1)
	APPENDIX C
	APPENDIX D
	APPENDIX E
	APPENDIX F
	APPENDIX F (1)
	APPENDIX G


